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s a revenue cycle leader, our vision for

efficient healthcare is to improve the accuracy,
"~ quality and communication of the information
captured during care delivery to enable a prompt
and complete financial settlement between providers,
patients and payers. Below I'd like to share with you
some of our milestones as we pursue this vision and
a steady path for growth.

EXPANDING OUR MARKET LEADERSHIP

On January 6, 2006, we acquired NDCHealth
Corporation’s physician, hospital and pharmacy
businesses. Joining forces with an organization that
shares our strategic focus on the financial success
of providers significantly increases our industry
presence and client reach. Today, we represent
more than 120,000 physicians, 3,000 hospitals and
healthcare organizations and 50,000 retail pharmacies.
This increased market penetration enables many
more providers to benefit from our revenue cycle
management solutions.
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Physician

With the addition of the NDCHealth businesses, Per-Se

is a leader in its chosen market segments that serve key
healthcare providers. We are the leader in outsourcing
receivables management to hospital-affiliated physician
groups. We are the leader in practice management software
delivered to small, office-based physicians. We are the leader
in revenue cycle management (RCM) software and resource
management software for hospitals. And we are the leader

in delivering network services and systems to pharmacies.

Per-Se expects to nearly double its revenue in 2006 from
last year. Our marketing focus is to work with decision
makers within our expanded client base to introduce more
RCM solutions to help their businesses prosper. Opportunity
exists for further organic growth and also product synergies.
We are improving the administrative efficiencies of healthcare
for more providers. And the information we're collecting —
from a patient’s first visit with a physician, to a hospital stay,
through to prescription fulfillment at a pharmacy — will

offer a unique opportunity to further drive efficiencies in the
business of healthcare.




2005: A YEAR OF SOLID GROWTH

Looking back on 2005, it was a year of solid growth and
financial performance improvements for cur Company. We
generated total revenue growth of 6%. Our adjusted income
from continuing operations’ increased more than 25% over
2004 to $36.1 million, or $1.08 per diluted share. { believe
this continued success in our profitability has positioned us

to continue to grow and expand our businesses.

CASH FLOW GROWTH

Our physician and hospital businesses continue to leverage
high levels of recurring revenue to generate very strong
cash flow. Our cash flow from continuing operations in
2005 reached $48.8 million, a more than 25% incrsase over
adjusted 2004 levels®. With the addition of the NDCHealth
businesses, we expect a further significant increase in our
cash flow. We expect 2006 adjusted cash ﬂovv from continuing
operations® to more than double from our 2005 levels,

With continued cash flow growth, we expect that we'll
achieve meaningful reductions in our debt during 2006.

CONTINUED SUCCESS WITH

PHYSICIANS AND HOSPITALS

Our physician business, the largest of our three businesses,
demonstrated record levels of new business throughout
the past two years. For 2005, net new business sold in

our outsourced receivables management operations was
$25 million, a 30% improvement from 2004. This increase
is a testament to our proven processes and technology,
and an affirmation of cur leadership position in this market.

D er-Se is a leader in important market
segments that serve healthcare providers

and focus on their financial success.

Our hospital business continued to deliver solid growth in
2005. Strong trends in new business sold were driven by a
market very receptive to the benefits of our RCM software and
transactions services. We also experienced a 14% increase

in medical-related transaction volume through our healthcare
clearinghouse in 2005.

Cur financial results and operating success in 2005

have established a strong platform for our future growth,
Our business model continues to demonstrate that we
can achieve sustainable EPS and cash flow growth for our
shareholders while remaining committed to addressing the
needs of our provider customers.

FOCUSING FORWARD ON VALUE AND INNOVATION

Our prospects for continued growth in 2006 and beyond

are strong. We recognize what is necessary to execute on
our business plans and deliver financial and operating results
that our shareholders expect. We also realize that we need
o continue to develop new and innovative solutions that will
help our clients and further extend our market leadership.

With an expanded market opportunity, we're excited about
pursuing these prospects in the coming year. As we continue
our quest to make healthcare more efficient, | want to
recognize that a talented team of employees provide the
energy and expertise to facilitate the financial success for
our provider clients. | also would like to thank our loyal
customers and our shareholders for their continued support

of our business and our vision for efficient healthcare.
Sincerely,

s Lo

Philip M. Pead
Chairman, President & CEO

12005 income from continting operations excludes fourth quarter acquisition-related expenses of $74,000, a non-cash tax benefit of $2.2 miflion and a litigation settlement of $1.3 million. The 2004 income from continuing
operations excludes the fourth quarter non-cash tax benefit of $28.1 million, a gain an a litigation settlement of $1.5 million, additional accounting procedure expenses of $6.3 million, corporate relocation costs of $1.0 million,
and debt refinancing costs of $5.9 million. )

2 Cash flow in 2004 included atypical items that net to positive cash flow of approximately $10 million, including cash received for a fitigation settlement of $16.2 million, offset by a use of cash of approximately $6.3 million
related to the additionat accounting procedures. ;

3 Forecasted 2006 adjusted cash flow from continuing operations excludes an estimated $33-$37 million in transition, integration and merger-related items. PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES_2005 ANNUAL REPORT [3]
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revenue

revenue D

° Value-added solutions for physicians and hospitals

o Record levels of net new business sold in 2004 and 2005
for outsourced services to physicians

o Positive market drivers and expanded/maturing sales force

operating cash flow*

—

cash flow from operating activities L

(continuing operations)

*2004 special item:
2004 excludes atypical net benefit from a litigation settlement of approximately $10 million.

© High recurring revenue business mode!
o Good business leverage for margin contributions on revenue growth

o Improved capital structure and lower debt service costs

earnings per share
from
continuing operations*

EPS on a GAAP basis' . - :
40
EPS, excluding special items™_~

*

2003 special items: |
other expenses and loss on extingishment of debt totaling $(0.22) per fully diluted share :

2004 special items: ;
release of a portion of tax valuation allowance, other expenses, :
and loss on extingishment of debt totaling $0.50 per fLlly dituted share !

2005 spegcial item:
release of a portion of tax valuation totaling $0.07 per fully diluted share :

in Millions

$ 380
370
360
350
340
330
320
310

300

in Millions

$ 50

2004 2005

2004

2005
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After a medical procedure, even
one as routine as having a baby,
it's only a matter of time before
medical invoices fill the mailbox.
And it’s never just one invoice,
but several, over a period of time.
Too often payment responsibility is
not clear on the multiple invoices
resulting in payment delays

and slow reimbursement back

to providers.

110,000 pages of Medicare regulations
(more than the U.S tax code), increasing
claims denials, hundreds of unique
insurance plans, high write-offs for
uncompensated care ... Healthcare

is a very complicated business for
everyone involved — from patients to
providers to payers.

The scenarios on the next page are
all too common in healthcare. Per-Se
offers a more efficient process for
healthcare business.

RelESe & MER2
eicient fer
healiicars business:
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Physicians. Hospitals. Pharmacies. No matter the type of
healthcare provider, Per-Se offers a solution to help streamline
the revenue cycle and speed up reimbursement.

Healthcare is only getting more complex. Per-Se offers proven
processes and technology to streamline the revenue cycle so
that providers stay profitable. That's why providers turn to
Per-Se. We offer in-depth industry knowledge and a keen sense
for the unigue business needs of providers. With decades of
reimbursement expertise, our solutions allow providers to spend
less time on the business and more time caring for patients.
And providers who work with Per-Se pass on an added benefit
to patients: a self-service patient portal to view bills, make
payments online, update address and insurance information.

That's an efficient approach to taking care of business and patients.

-SE TECHNOLOGIES_2005 ANNUAL REPORT

Our Solutions:

[+ Physician outsourced receivables

i+] Small-office physician
information systems

[+] Hospital claims processing
|+] Hospital scheduling systems

{+] Pharmacy network
claims processing

i+] Pharmacy systems

Leadership Position:

{+] More than two decades of revenue
cycle management expertise

{+] The leading national provider of
outsourced receivables management
to hospital-based physicians

{+} Approximately 40% of hospitals in
the United States use a Per-Se
Connective Healthcare solution and
14 of the 16 hospitals listed among
“America’s Best Hospitals” Honor Roll
list by U.S.News & World Report are
also Per-Se customers

{+] Approximately 90% of U.S. pharmacies
are connected to Per-Se’s pharmacy
claims clearinghouse, which processes
approximately 70% of all available
electronic pharmacy transactions in
the United States

{+} One of the largest electronic clearinghouses
for healthcare transactions in the United
States, which processes more than
six billion healthcare transactions annually
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“Per-Se offers more rescurces in a wider range of billing areas, including compliance, than

any other vendor we considered. Thatl’s particularly important for us, since anesthesiology

reimbursement regulations seem to become more and more complex every year.”
- Andrew Rice, administrative director, The Children’s Hospital, Denver

ost physicians didn’t go to medical school
Mto run a business. So each day they balance
patient care with ensuring they are being properly
reimbursed. And they struggle, regardiess of
practice size, specialty, or experience of billing
staff, with the tremendous challenge of keeping
up with information critical to each phase of the
revenue cycle from charge capture through claim
payment — leaving them with a nagging feeling
that more income could be collected if only
they were able to identify all the nuances of the
process. Closing this information gap with a
mix of best practice processes and information
technology is how Per-Se helps physicians be
more financially successful.

When physicians choose to outsource to
Per-Se they get a trusted business resource
with specialty-specific expertise that can
provide them with all the tools they need to
position their practice for success. Per-Se

is the largest, and only national company to
provide business process outsourcing (coding,

billing and accounts receivable management)

to physicians. We offer expert coders, a gold
standard compliance program, advanced

print and mail services, and an expansive
clearinghouse for healthcare transactions.

Per-Se offers an integrated solution to physicians
who would prefer to focus on the care they
provide, rather than untangle the inefficiencies

of the administrative burden of healthcare.

Smaller physician groups have the option to
choose a practice management system from
Per-Se to manage the entire front-office. And
should they choose to outsource the accounts
receivable management, we can help provide
both services and software.

Unlike any other revenue cycle management
provider, Per-Se’s leadership in Connective
Healthcare enables us to orchestrate transactions
efficiently between providers, patients and
payers. It's this expertise and connectivity that
keeps our physician clients financially heaithy.

“We set out to find a full-service solution with experience managing critical functions of

the revenue cycle for large multispeciaity practices. After evaluating different alternatives

in the marketplace, we established a relationship with Per-Se.”
— Ron Stern, president and CEQ, Lovelace Health System, Albuquerque, New Mexico

PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES_2005 ANNUAL REPORT
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“Qur decision to adopt ePREMIS was based on a strategy to improve our revenue cycle

management by directly addressing workflow and enterprise-wide data sharing capabilities.

We've integrated ePREMIS Claims Management with our patient accounting systems

to enable accelerated cash flow, reduce accounts receivable and enhance productivity

in our 15 acute-care facilities.”

- Sharon Leerssen, regional business office director, IASIS Healthcare, Nashville

’:rom the operating room to the central
L billing office, hospitals need access to
information to improve efficiency. At issue
are patient reimbursement, making the
most of costly resources and automating
patient and staff scheduling. And many

of America’s best hospitals trust Per-Se to
deliver the tools to meet these challenges.

Qur resource management solutions help
hospitals consolidate enterprise patient,
staff and operating room scheduling to
improve profitability by coordinating a
hospital’s most essential resources and
speeding complex decisions. Qur revenue
cycle management tools and services help

hospitals improve reimbursement and reduce

denials. The delivery of critical patient and
claim information is made via a connection
to Per-Se’s expansive clearinghouse and
network for healthcare transactions, which
is one of the largest in the nation.

In addition, Per-Se offers business process
outsourcing to enable hospitals to improve
their revenue cycle by completely or partially
outsourcing the functions of its central

billing office. And, because delivering clear

and accurate communication to patients and
payers is critical for hospitals to maintain

cash flow, our state-of-the-art print and mail
center can manage the entire patient billing

and communications function, reducing
administrative costs and a hospital’s reliance on
expensive printing eguipment, all while improving
patient satisfaction.

Per-Se’'s Connective Heaithcare solutions

give hospitals the information and control

they need to improve the financial outlook of
their enterprise. We've cultivated decades

of experience in the business of healthcare

and have a solid reputation for high return on
investment, which is why so many organizations
place their financial health in our hands.

“Century City Doctors Hospital asked Per-Se to step into our plans for a new all digital/
paperless hospital late in the game. They provided a crew of staff whe were service oriented
and very efficient. We had our system up and running in no time. The end users love the
system. We are very pleased with our selection of Per-Se.”

— Stephanie Mearns, MN, RN, vice president patient care services and chief nursing officer,

PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES_2005 ANNUAL REPORT
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— “With Medicare Part D and complex reimbursement processes, we need stronger reporting
/—M | and administrative tools to excel. Per-Se’s EnterpriseRx" system gives us that competitive
edge as well as the ability to offer more convenience and higher levels of service for

our customers.”
~ Cunrtis Hartin, R.Ph., director of pharmacy operations, Schnuck Markets, St. Louis, MO

e
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Pharmacists are important healthcare providers.  As part of our commitment to make heatthcare

; Through the acquisition of NDCHealth, more efficient, Per-Se supports pharmacies

5 Per-Se now provides point-of-service pharmacy in the medication delivery process by offering

management systems, and intelligent network its extensive real-time network to connect

and decision support services that add our clients to all healthcare payers, including

value and efficiency to pharmacy businesses. pharmacy benefit managers. The Centers for

’: And, with connections to appreximately 90% of Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) also

| the pharmacies in the United States, Per-Se's uses the Per-Se Intelligent Network to assist

solutions provide pharmacies of all sizes with in its facilitation of the Medicare Part D

customized solutions focused on increasing prescription drug benefit program for seniors.
revenue, margins, cash flow and store traffic. Pharmacy solutions from Per-Se include

actionable information that can positively
Per-Se’s software and real-time claims processing impact a pharmacy’s bottom line and help

| network services for retail pharmacy clients, increase efficiency, maintain regulatory

i smaller chains and independent pharmacies compliance, reduce overhead costs and

i allow these businesses to better manage the react quickly to changing market conditions.

complex medication delivery process. And,

k our Connective Healthcare solutions help Per-Se provides pharmacists with a total solution,

high-volume, cutpatient and long-term care helping them make the best decisions to keep

! pharmacies to be more productive and profitable. their businesses financially healthy.

“Tracking and recouping reimbursement discrepancies is a complicated and labor-intensive

'

process. By working with Per-Se and using its electronic resubmission service, we simplified
\ our processes, minimized personnel requirements and automated the process of recouping

\ f . . .
N - those elusive additional reimbursement dollars.”

e — Jerry Ray, senior vice president of store operations, Duane Reade, New York City
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Z=. Physician Solutions
Focus:
Streamlining the revenue cycle process to get physicians

more money, faster.

Clients:
120,000

Hospital Solutions

Focus:
Revenue Cycle Management: Streamlining the revenue cycle
process 1o get hospitals more money, faster.

Resource Management: Reducing expenses and
increasing revenue related to scheduling and managing
resources (staff, patients and operating room).

Clients:
3,000

Pharmacy Solutions

Focus:
Automating the medication delivery process and streamlining the
revenue cycle process to get pharmacies more money, faster.

Clients:
50,000

[18] PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES_2005 ANNUAL REPORT
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PART I

Item 1. Business !
|
Introduction ‘
Per-Se Technologies, Inc. (“Per-Se” or the “Company”), a corporation organized in 1985 under the
laws of the State of Delaware, is focused on providing solutions that improve the administrative functions
of the healthcare industry. Specifically, Per-Se provides Connective Healthcare solutions that help
physicians, hospitals and pharmacies achieve their income potential. Connective Healthcare solutions
support and unite healthcare providers, payers and patients with innovative technology processes that

improve and accelerate reimbursement and reduce the administrative cost of care.
|

The Company markets its products and services to constitucnts of the healthcare industry, primarily
to hospital-affiliated physician practices, physician groups in academic settings, hospitals, healthcare
organizations, integrated delivery networks (“IDN’s”) and retail, mail order and managed care
pharmacies. !

‘ .

The Company focuses on the administrative functions of the healthcare market, with the majority of
its business based in the United States. Healthcare spending in the United States is to have surpassed
$1.9 trillion or approximately 16% of gross domestic product in 2005. It has been estimated that
administrative costs in the U.S. healthcare system comprise al‘)out 25% of total healthcare spending. The
Company’s solutions help make the reimbursement of healthcare more efficient and help improve the
overall patient care experience by simplifying the revenue cycle process for physicians, hospitals and
pharmacies. The Company’s services and solutions are not capital-intensive for providers, making them a
cost-effective solution as providers focus on their financial health.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, and as of December 31, 2005, and 2004, the
Company served the healthcare industry through two divisions: Physician Solutions (formerly Physician
Services) and Hospital Solutions (formerly Hospital Services). Refer to Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for financial
information regarding the Company’s Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions divisions.

On August 29, 2005, Per-Se and NDCHealth Corporation (“NDCHealth”) announced that they had
signed definitive agreements for the acquisition of NDCHealth, a leading provider of healthcare technology
and information solutions. The transaction was completed on January 6, 2006. In the acquisition, Per-Se
acquired the physician, hospital and retail pharmacy businesses of NDCHealth. The retail pharmacy
business will be operated as a new division known as the Pharfnacy Solutions division. Accordingly, the
Company will serve the healthcare industry through three divisions, Physician Solutions, Hospital Solutions
and Pharmacy Solutions, effective January 6, 2006. Those divisions are described below. As the transaction
was not completed in 2005, this annual report on Form 10-K includes limited discussion and does not
include results of the business acquired as part of the NDCH@alth acquisition.

The Physician Solutions division provides Connective Healthcare solutions that manage the revenue
cycle for physician groups. The division provides a complete outsourcing service, therefore, allowing
physician groups to avoid the infrastructure investment and administrative costs in their own in-house
billing office. The division is the largest provider of business management outsourced services that supplant
all or most of the administrative functions of a physician group. Its target market is primarily hospital-
affiliated physician groups in the specialties of radiology, anesthesiology, emergency medicine and
pathology as well as physician groups practicing in the academic setting and other large physician groups.
Services include clinical data collection, data input, medical coding, billing, contract management, cash
collections, accounts receivable management and extensive reporting of metrics related to the physician
practice. These services help physician groups to be financially 'successful by improving cash flows and
reducing administrative costs and burdens. Fees for these services are primarily based on a percentage of
net collections on the clients’ accounts receivable. The division recognizes revenue and bills customers
when the customers receive payment on those accounts receivable, which aligns the division’s interests
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with the interests of the physician groups it services. The Company also generates revenue from one-time
sales of physician practice management (“PPM”) software or monthly usage fees for software used via an
Application Service Provider (“ASP”) model. The division’s revenue model is approximately 95%
recurring in nature due to the transaction-based nature of its fee revenue in the outsourced services
business and the monthly usage fee in the PPM business.

The Hospital Solutions division provides Connective Healthcare solutions that focus on revenue cycle
and resource management to improve the financial health of hospitals and healthcare organizations. The
division has one of the largest electronic clearinghouses in the medical industry, which provides an
important infrastructure to support its revenue cycle management offerings. The clearinghouse delivers
dedicated clectronic and Internet-based business-to-business solutions that focus on electronic processing of
medical transactions as well as complementary transactions, such as electronic remittance advices, real-
time eligibility verification and high-speed print and mail services. Other revenue cycle management
solutions provide insight into a hospital’s revenue cycle inefficiencies, such as denial management. Denial
management allows hospitals to identify charges denied reimbursement by a payer and to facilitate
corrective actions such as resubmitting for reimbursement. Hospitals may opt to outsource portions of their
revenue cycle management process to the Company, such as secondary insurance billing. The division also
provides resource management solutions that enable hospitals to efficiently manage resources to reduce
costs and improve their bottom line. The division’s staff scheduling software efficiently plans nurse
schedules, accommodating individual preferences as well as environmental factors, such as acuity levels,
and can schedule all the personnel across the hospital enterprise. The division’s patient scheduling software
helps effectively manage a hospital’s most expensive and profitable area, the operating room,-as well as
schedules patients across the enterprise. The division primarily recognizes revenue on a per-transaction
basis for its revenue cycle management solutions and primarily recognizes revenue on a percentage-of-
completion basis or upon software shipment for sales of its resource management software solutions.
Greater than 90% of the division’s revenue is recurring due to its transaction-based business and the
maintenance revenue from its substantial installed base for the revenue cycle management solutions and
resource management software.

The Pharmacy Solutions division provides Connective Healthcare solutions that focus on transaction
clearinghouse services and point-of-service systems to improve administrative efficiencies and optimize the
revenue and cash flow of retail, mail order and managed care pharmacies in the U.S. This division has a
leading market position in pharmacy services and systems with connectivity to approximately 90% of the
retail pharmacy stores, processing more than six billion total pharmacy transactions annually, and has
systems installed in more than 20% of pharmacies in the U.S. The division’s electronic clearinghouse for
pharmacy transactions provides real-time processing related to claims submission, eligibility verification,
remittance advice, referral authorization, drug formulary and inventory management, as well as claim
status and tracking. The division also provides value-added transaction services and claims edits that
perform financial and administrative reviews on transactions to help pharmacies enhance the accuracy of
submitted claims, decrease receivable days outstanding and improve labor efficiency. As part of the
Medicare Modernization Act of 2003, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) awarded
the division a one-year contract in May 2005 with three potential one-year extensions to provide the
network services as part of a system for calculating beneficiaries’ True Out-Of-Pocket (“TrOOP”) costs.
The TrOOP infrastructure helps CMS ensure that what seniors pay at pharmacy counters takes into
account the out-of-pocket payments and the proper level of their Medicare coverage. CMS also contracted
the division to be the primary facilitator for Medicare Part D enrollee benefit eligibility, which enables
retail pharmacies to electronically check primary and supplemental coverage for seniors who have not
received their new coverage information. Medicare beneficiaries who have enrolled in the program began
receiving prescription drugs under the new benefit program starting January 1, 2006. The division’s
point-of-service systems offerings help retail, mail order and managed care pharmacies streamline
workflow, improve cash flow and reduce costs while also serving as an additional source of transaction
volume for the division’s electronic clearinghouse. Historically, the division has generated pharmacy
systems revenue through the sale of software licenses, upgrades and recurring maintenance and support
fees. The Company’s new line of systems products is being sold to customers with varying pricing and
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revenue models that may include per-transaction fees, a licenjse fee plus annual maintenance or a monthly
per store fee, depending on the customer. The division’s revenue model is more than 90% recurring in
nature due to the transaction-based or fixed-fee nature of its revenue in the services business and the
licensing and maintenance-based nature of revenue in its systé;ms business.

Recent Developments i

On March 10, 2006, the Company concluded binding arbitration for a claim of breach of contract
arising from an acquisition completed in 2000. The binding arbitration resulted in an award to be paid by
Per-Se of approximately $1.3 million, including interest of $0.3 million. The Company included the award
in Other Expenses and the interest in Interest Expense in the\‘Company’s 2005 Consolidated Statement of
Income. In Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, the costs associated with the award are classified in the Corporate
segment.

On January 6, 2006, Per-Se acquired Atlanta, GA-based NDCHealth. The acquisition included the
physician, hospital and retail pharmacy businesses, for total consideration of approximately $665 million.
As part of the transaction, Wolters Kluwer Health, Inc., Wholly owned by Wolters Kluwer, NV, based in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands, purchased the pharmaceutical information management business from
NDCHealth for $382 million in cash. The transaction resulted in consideration to NDCHealth’s
shareholders of $19.50 per share, with $14.05 paid in cash and $5.45 paid in Per-Se stock. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company had incurred approximately $3.8 million of transaction costs that are
included in other long-term assets in the Company’s Consolidéted Balance Sheet.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company secured financing in the form of a new senior credit
facility consisting of a $435 million Term Loan B and a $50 million revolving credit facility (“Senior
Credit Facility”). The Term Loan B bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.25% or Base Rate, as
defined by the Senior Credit Facility agreement, plus 1.25% and matures in seven years. The revolving
credit facility has an interest rate that varies between LIBOR :plus 1.50% and LIBOR plus 2.50% or
between Base Rate plus 0.5% and Base Rate plus 1.50%, based on performance, and matures in five years.
While $435 million is currently outstanding under the Term Loan B, the Company has incurred no
borrowings under the revolving credit facility. All outstanding debt of NDCHealth was retired in
connection with the closing of the transaction. ;

On December 1, 2005, the Company acquired privately held Integra Solutions (“Integra”), a hospital
revenue cycle management outsourcing firm located in Norcross, Georgia, for a purchase price of
approximately $10.8 million. The Company paid approximately $5.4 million of the purchase price at
closing and will pay the remaining purchase price of approximately $5.4 million at the one-year
anniversary. In addition, if Integra achieves certain revenue objectives over the first two years, the
Company will pay an additional purchase price amount of approximately $3.8 million. Since the amount is
contingent, the additional purchase price is not included in the Company’s December 31, 2005,
Consolidated Balance Sheets or Consoclidated Statements of Income Integra Solutions offers a
comprehensive suite of services designed to help healthcare prov1ders improve their bottom line results.
This includes a full range of outsourcing options, from health information and patient accounting
management consulting to auditing and accounts receivable setvices. The Company currently provides
outsourcing services to more than 80 hospitals, and Integra will be a key component of its outsourcing
growth strategy in the hospital market. !

During the latter part of 2004, the Company initiated a project to enhance its physician claims
clearinghouse functionality. The Company expects that the improved platform will provide efficiencies and
competitive advantages for its Physician Solutions division. During 2005, the Company incurred
approximately $1.9 million in capital expenditures and capitalized software development costs and
approximately $1.6 million in expenses related to the physician claims clearinghouse enhancement which
are reflected in the Hospital Solutions division. During 2006, the Company expects to incur between
$3 and $4 million in capital expenditures and capitalized software development costs and between $2 and
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$3 million in expenses related to the physician claims clearinghouse enhancement. The enhancement: is
expected to be substantially complete in-2006.

Description of Business by Industry Segment

The following description of the Company’s business by industry segment should be read in
conjunction with Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.

Physician Solutions
Business Management Qutsourced Services for Physicians

Approximately 225,000 U.S.-based hospital-affiliated physicians represent the Company’s target
market for business management outsourced services. The target market consists of large physician
groups — typically 10 or more physicians depending upon the specialty — and represents an estimated
market opportunity of approximately $7 billion. The Company estimates that approximately 20% to 30% of
the physicians in the target market currently outsource their business management needs, with the
remainder of physicians performing these services in house. The Company believes its Physician Solutions
division is the largest provider of comprehensive business management outsourcing services to the
U.S. hospital-based physician market. The business of providing integrated business management
outsourcing services is highly competitive. The division competes with regional and local billing companies
as well as physician groups performing these services in house. Competition among outsourcing companies
is based upon the relationship with the client or prospective client, the efficiency and effectiveness of
converting medical services to cash while minimizing compliance risk, the ability to provide proactive
practice management services and, to the extent that service offerings are comparable, price. The
Company believes there is a trend toward outsourcing among physician groups performing these revenue
cycle management services in house due to the complexity of reimbursement regulations and the financial
pressures physician groups face.

Practice Management Systems for Physicians

The Company’s PPM solutions are targeted at office-based physician groups in the United States,
typically those practices with less than ten physicians. The Company provides the software necessary to
streamline billing and other internal processes (such as scheduling), increase productivity and help ensure
accurate reimbursement. Sold through the Company’s value-added reseller (“VAR™) channel and through
a direct sales force, the Company’s enhanced PPM solutions also include interactive training, electronic
claims processing to payers, patient statements processing, electronic prescription capabilities and other
electronic commerce services designed to automate processes and improve the business of healthcare. The
PPM market is highly competitive with large national competitors including Cerner Corporation, Emdeon
Corporation, and Misys plc, as well as small regionally or locally focused competition.

Hospital Solutions
Revenue Cycle Management Solutions for Hospitals and Healthcare Facilities

The market for hospital revenue cycle management solutions ranges from providing technology tools
that allow a hospital’s central billing office (“CBO”) to more effectively manage its cash flow to full or
partial outsourced solutions. Technology tools include electronic transactions, such as claims processing,
that can be delivered via the Web or through dedicated electronic data interfaces as well as license-based
solutions, such as automated cash posting solutions which are deployed at the CBO. Competition in the
revenue cycle management market is based on providing solutions that enable hospitals to improve their
cash flow, and the Company believes that it is the largest provider of revenue cycle — electronic
transaction solutions to hospitals and healthcare facilities in the U.S. The Company’s hospital revenue
cycle management solutions are offered through its direct sales force as well as through strategic alliances.
Competitors include traditional electronic data interface companies, Internet healthcare companies,
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outsourcing companies and specialized software vendors such ‘as CareMedic, Emdeon Corporation,
MecKesson, SSI Group and other national and regional providFrs.

Resource Management Solutions for Hospitals ‘

The market for resource management solutions for hospi‘éals focuses on license-based and Internet
solutions to help hospitals efficiently and effectively manage their costs. The Company’s resource
management business focuses on the areas of staff and patient: scheduling. The Company’s Hospital
Solutions division has the market-leading staff scheduling solution and a market-leading patient scheduling
solution. Competition in this market segment is based on enabling a hospital to decrease costs by
improving the utilization of its personnel and facilities. The Company competes against national software
vendors, specialized software vendors and Internet healthcare ‘companies.
|
|

Results by Industry Segment

Information relating to the Company’s Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions segments, including
revenue, segment operating expenses, segment operating income and identifiable assets attributable to each
division for each of the fiscal years ended 2005, 2004, and 2003, and as of December 31, 2005, and 2004,
is presented in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data. \ '

Healthcare Industry

Trends in the United States healthcare industry affect Per-Se’s business. Over the past two decades,
there have been changes in the U.S. healthcare delivery system. For example, the proportion of patients
requiring intensive care in acute-care facilities has increased while the number of acute-care facilities has
decreased. The U.S. government estimates that national health expenditures are expected to reach
$4 trillion in 2015, growing from approximately $2 trillion in health-related spending during 2005.

| .

As healthcare expenditures have become a larger percentage of the gross domestic product, increasing
focus has been placed on the adminisirative costs and burdens associated with the delivery of care. As a
result, payers have sought to control costs by changing from the traditional fee-for-service reimbursement
model to managed care, fixed fee and capitation arrangements. These reimbursement models, coupled with
extensive regulatory control and government healthcare fraud and abuse initiatives, have resulted in a
significantly more complex accounting, coding, billing, and collection environment. Such industry changes
create a more positive market for solutions that reduce a healthcare provider’s administrative burdens, help
ensure compliance in the complex regulatory environment anq minimize medical coding and billing errors,
while improving reimbursement and reducing costs. |

Both governmental and private payers continue to restrict payments for healthcare services, using
measures such as payment bundling, medical necessity edits and post-payment audits. These measures may
decrease revenue to the Company’s provider clients and consdqucntly decrease revenue derived by the
Company from such clients, as well as increase the cost of providing services.

The healthcare industry continues to focus on the impact that regulations governing standards for
electronic transactions, privacy and information security issued under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA™) have on operations and information technology systems. HIPAA
was designed to reduce administrative waste in healthcare and protect the privacy and security of patients’
health information. HIPAA regulations identify and impose standards for all aspects of handling patient
health information. These regulations, which are described in more detail below under the subheading
“Regulation,” may require the Company to enhance its internal systems and software applications sold, but
HIPAA may also create an increased demand for the Company’s services and solutions. While the
Company has incurred and will continue to incur costs to comply with HIPAA, management believes
these compliance costs will not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations.

‘ 4
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Regulation

Per-Se’s business is subject to numerous federal and state laws, programs to combat healthcare fraud
and abuse, and increasing restrictions on reimbursement for healthcare services. Each of the major federal
healthcare payment programs (Medicare, Medicaid and TRICARE) has its own set of complex and
sometimes conflicting regulations. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 and HIPAA have mandated
additional regulations, and many states have passed legislation addressing billing and payment for
healthcare services.

The federal government is making significant efforts to detect and eliminate healthcare fraud and
abuse, particularly through its enforcement of the False Claims Act, the Medicare and Medicaid Patient
and Program Protection Act of 1987 and HIPAA, all of which provide the federal government with the
authority to impose both civil and criminal sanctions and penalties for submission of false claims to
governmental payers. The federal government may impose civil monetary penalties up to $50,000 per
offense as well as exclude a provider from participation in Medicare and other governmental healthcare
programs. In addition, the False Claims Act allows a private party to bring a “qui tam” or “whistleblower”
suit alleging the filing of false or fraudulent Medicare or Medicaid claims and potentially share in damages
and civil penalties paid to the government. The CMS offers rewards for information leading to the
recovery of Medicare funds, and CMS engages private contractors to detect and investigate fraudulent
billing practices.

The Company’s compliance program, which is modeled after the Office of Inspector General’s
Compliance Program Guidance for Third-Party Medical Billing Companies, is designed and maintained to
detect and prevent regulatory violations. The Company believes its compliance program is effective;
however, a compliance program cannot be expected to provide absolute compliance with the law. The
existence of an effective compliance program may, nevertheless, mitigate civil and criminal sanctions for
certain healthcare-related offenses.

Under HIPAA, the federal government published final rules regarding the standards for electronic
transactions as well as standards for privacy and security of individually identifiable health information.
These rules set new or higher standards for the healthcare industry in handling healthcare transactions and
information, with penalties for noncompliance.

The HIPAA rules regarding standards for electronic transactions require healthcare providers,
healthcare clearinghouses and health plans that send or receive healthcare transaction data electronically to
use standard data formats. The compliance deadline for standard electronic transactions was October 16,
2002, which was later extended to October 16, 2003, by filing a compliance extension plan. In September
2003, CMS issued transitional guidance that allowed noncompliant electronic transactions after the
October 2003 compliance deadline. The industry continues to work toward compliance. The Company has
substantially modified the operations of its subsidiaries that are engaged in the electronic transmission of
such data to comply with HIPAA’s electronic transaction standards.

The HIPAA rules regarding privacy of patient health information require organizations that handle
such information to establish safeguards regarding access, use and disclosure, and to restrict how other
entities use that information. The privacy rules had a compliance deadline of April 14, 2003, and the
Company implemented policies and procedures and other processes (e.g., Company-wide privacy training)
before the deadline. The Company believes that its operations are in compliance with the privacy rule
requirements. Although the HIPAA privacy rules do not provide a private right of action for individuals,
individuals could bring a privacy action under applicable state law for misuse or improper disclosure of
their health information.

The HIPAA rules regarding the security of medical information became final on February 20, 2003.
Under these rules, health insurers, certain healthcare providers and healthcare clearinghouses must
establish procedures and mechanisms to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of electronic
protected health information. The Company established the required security procedures andi mechanisms
to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of electronic protected health information that had a
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compliance deadline of April 20, 2005. Management bcheves that the costs of compliance with the
HIPAA security rules will not materially impact the Company s results of operations.
Employees ‘

As of December 31, 2005, the Company employed appfokimately 5,100 full-time and part-time
employees. The Company has no labor union contracts and bcheves relations with its employees are
satisfactory.

|
1
Available Information (

The Company’s Internet address is www.per-se.com. On its Internet website, the Company makes
available, free of charge, its annual reports on Form 10-K, quartcrly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of 15(d) of
the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such material
with the SEC. The reference to the website address does not, constitute incorporation by reference of the
information contained on the website, which should not be cbnsidered part of this document. Additionally,
materials that the Company files with the SEC may be read jand copied at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 100 F. Street, N.E. Washington, D.C. 20544, or by‘visiting the SEC’s website at
http://www.sec.gov. Information may be obtained on the operatlon of the Public Reference Room by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

i
|
i

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements included in Management’s Discussioﬂf and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations and elsewhere in this report, including certain statements set forth under the
captions “Recent Developments,” “Description of Business by Industry Segment,” “Healthcare Industry,”
“Regulation,” “Employees,” “Legal Proceedings,” “Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities,” “Recent Accounting Pronouncements,”
“Overview of Critical Accounting Policies,” “Other,” “Results of Operations,” “Liquidity and Capital
Resources,” “Interest Rate Sensitivity,” “Exchange Rate Sensitivity,” “Controls and Procedures,”
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” “D1scont1nued Operations,” “Long-term Debt,” and “Legal
Matters,” are “forward-looking statements” within the meamng of the Securities Act of 1933 and the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
(the “Reform Act”). Forward-looking statements include the Company’s expectations with respect to
meritorious defenses to the claims and other issues asserted in pending legal matters, industry growth
segments, effect of industry and regulatory changes on the Company’s customer base, the state of
employee relations, use of estimates for revenue recognition, bad debt accruals in reserve for doubtful
accounts receivable and other estimates used for accounting purposes, effect of adoption of recent
accounting pronouncements, timing of arbitration, overall profitability, our ability to successfully integrate
NDCHealth and capitalize on synergies associated with the acquisition, the availability of capital and other
similar matters. Although the Company believes that the statements it has made are based on reasonable
assumptions, they are based on current information and beliefs and, accordingly, the Company can give no
assurance that its expectations will be achieved and such statements speak only as of their dates. In
addition, these statements are subject to factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those suggested by the forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to, factors
identified under the caption “Factors That May Affect Future Results of Operations, Financial Condition
or Business” in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7 and those risk factors set forth below. Thc Company disclaims any responsibility to
update any forward-looking statements. ‘

As discussed above in Item 1, on January 6, 2006, Per-Sei completed its acquisition of NDCHealth.
These risk factor disclosures include a number of risk factors relating to that acquisition.
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The Company’s businesses ave highly competitive, and an inability to successfully compete for business
could adversely affect the company.

The physician receivables management outsourcing business is highly competitive. The Company
competes with regional and local physician reimbursement organizations as well as physician groups that
provide their own business management services in-house. Potential industry and market changes that
could adversely affect the Company’s ability to compete for receivables management outsourcing services
include an increase in the number of local, regional or national competitors providing comparable services
and new alliances between healthcare providers and third-party payers in which healthcare providers are
employed by such third-party payers,.

The business of providing services and solutions to hospitals for both revenue cycle and resource
management is also highly competitive. The Company competes with traditional electronic data interface
companies, outsourcing companies and specialized software vendors with national, regional and local bases.
Some competitors have longer operating histories and greater financial, technical and marketing resources
than us. The Company’s successful competition within this industry is dependent on industry and market
changes.

The business of providing value-added claims processing and pre- and post-editing services to retail
pharmacies is highly competitive. The Company competes not only with independent providers of similar
systems and services, but also with customers’ and potential customers’ internal resources that provide
similar services. Successful competition within this industry is dependent on a number of industry and
market conditions including functionality of products and services, price, quality and innovation. In
addition, some of the Company’s competitors may have greater access to capital and marketing and
technological resources, and the Company cannot guarantee that it will be able to compete successfully
with them.

The markets for the Company’s services and solutions are characterized by rapidly changing technology,
evolving industry standards and frequent new product introductions and an inability to keep pace could
adversely affect the Company.

The markets for the Company’s services and solutions are characterized by rapidly changing
technology, evolving industry standards and frequent new product introductions. The Company’s ability to
keep pace with changes in the healthcare industry may be dependent on a variety of factors, including the
Company’s ability to:

+ enhance existing products and services;

« introduce new products and services quickly and cost effectively;

« achieve market acceptance for new products and services; and

» respond to emerging industry standards and other technological changes.

Competitors may develop competitive products that could adversely affect the Company’s operating
results. It is possible that the Company will be unsuccessful in refining, enhancing and developing the
Company’s technology. The costs associated with refining, enhancing and developing these systems may
increase significantly in the future. Existing software and technology may become obsolete as a result of
ongoing technological developments in the marketplace.

The healthcare marketplace is characterized by consolidation, which may result in fewer potential
customers for the Company’s services.

In general, consolidation initiatives in the healthcare marketplace may result in fewer potential
customers for the Company’s services. Some of these types of initiatives include employer initiatives such:
as creating group purchasing cooperatives (“GPOs™); provider initiatives, such as risk-sharing among
healthcare providers and managed care companies through capitated contracts; and integration among
hospitals and physicians into comprehensive delivery systems. Consolidation of management and billing
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services through integrated delivery systems may result in a decrease in demand for the Company’s
business management outsourcing services for particular physician practices. In addition, consolidation
among the Company’s customers may result in such customers having greater leverage, which could
adversely affect the price the Company is able to charge for the Company’s products.
1
The healthcare industry is highly regulated, which may increase the Company’s costs of operation or
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s businesses“.

The healthcare industry is highly regulated and is subjeét to changing political, economic and
regulatory influences. Federal and state legislatures have periodically considered programs to reform or
amend the U.S. healthcare system at both the federal and state level and to change healthcare financing
and reimbursement systems, such as the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 and the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003. These programs may contain proposals to increase
governmental involvement in healthcare, lower reimbursement rates or otherwise change the environment
in which healthcare industry participants operate. Current or future government regulations or healthcare
reform measures may affect the Company’s businesses. Healthcare industry participants may respond by
reducing their investments or postponing investment decisions, including investments in the Company’s

products and services. |

Medical billing and collection activities are governed by ‘numerous federal and state civil and criminal
laws. Federal and state regulators use these laws to investigate healthcare providers and companies that
provide billing and collection services, or that provide consulting services in connection with billing and
collection activities. Such laws also could potentially be used; to bring enforcement actions against
companies like Per-Se that provide software and other services used by healthcare providers to support
their billing and collection activities. In connection with thcsé; laws, the Company may be subjected to
federal or state government investigations and possible penalties may be imposed upon us, false claims
actions may have to be defended, private payers may file claims against us, and the Company may be
excluded from Medicare, Medicaid or other government-funded healthcare programs. In the past, Per-Se
has been the subject of federal investigations relating to the Company’s billing and collection activities,
and the Company may become the subject of future false claims litigation or additional investigations. Any
such proceeding or investigation could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s businesses.

The federal anti-kickback law prohibits any person or entity from offering, paying, soliciting or
receiving anything of value, directly or indirectly, for the referral of patients covered by Medicare,
Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs or the leasing, purchasing, ordering or arranging for, or
recommending the lease, purchase, order or arrangement for, any item, good, facility or service covered by
these programs. The anti-kickback law is broad and may apply to some of the Company’s activities and its
relationships with customers or business partners. Penalties for violating the anti-kickback law include
imprisonment, fines and exclusion from participating, directly!or indirectly, in Medicare, Medicaid and
other federal healthcare programs. Many states have similar anti-kickback laws that are not necessarily
limited to items or services for which payment is made by a federal healthcare program. The Company
carefully reviews its business practices in an effort to ensure that it complies with all applicable laws.
However, the laws in this area are both broad and vague and;it is often difficult or impossible to determine
precisely how the laws will be applied. Any determination by a state or federal regulatory agency that any
of these practices violate any of these laws could subject us to civil or criminal penalties and require us to
change or terminate some portions of the Company’s businesses.

|

Numerous federal and state civil and criminal laws govefn the collection, use, storage and disclosure
of health information for the purpose of safeguarding the privacy and security of such information. Federal
or state governments may impose penalties for noncompliancé, both criminal and civil. Persons who
believe their health information has been misused or disclosed improperly may bring claims against us or
the Company’s customers seeking monetary damages.

Under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), final rules have
been published regarding standards for electronic transactions as well as standards for privacy and security
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of individually identifiable health information. The HIPAA rules set new or higher standards for the
healthcare industry in handling healthcare transactions and information, with penalties for noncompliance.
The Company has incurred and will continue to incur costs to comply with these rules. Although
management believes that future compliance costs will not have a material impact on the Company’s
results of operations, compliance with these rules may prove to be more costly than anticipated. Failure to
comply with such rules may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s businesses and may subject
us to civil and criminal penalties as well as loss of customers.

Per-Se relies upon third parties to provide data elements to process electronic medical claims in a
HIPAA-compliant format. While Per-Se believes it is fully and properly prepared to process ¢lectronic
medical claims in a HIPAA-compliant format, there can be no assurance that third parties, including
healthcare providers and payers, will likewise be prepared to supply all the data elements required to
process electronic medical claims and make electronic remittance under HIPAA’s standards. If payers
reject electronic medical claims and such claims are processed manually rather than electronically, there
could be a material adverse affect on the Company’s businesses. The Company has made and expects to
continue to make investments in product enhancements to support customer operations that are regulated
by HIPAA. Responding to HIPAA’s impact may require us to make investments in new products or
charge higher prices.

Passage of HIPAA is part of a wider healthcare reform initiative. The Company expects that the
debate on healthcare reform will continue. The Company also expects that the federal government as well
as state governments will pass laws and issue regulations addressing healthcare issues and reimbursement
of healthcare providers. We cannot predict whether the government will enact new legislation and
regulations, and, if enacted, whether such new developments will affect the Company’s businesses.

Payment restrictions by governmental and private payers and the use of measures such as payment
bundling, medical necessity edits, and post-payment audits may decrease revenue to the Company’s
provider clients and consequently, decrease revenue derived by the Company and increase the cost of
services.

The trading price of the Company’s common stock may be volatile and may negatively affect your
investment.

The trading price of Per-Se common stock may be volatile. The market for Per-Se common stock
may experience significant price and volume fluctuations in response to a number of factors including
actual or anticipated quarterly variations in operating results, changes in expectations of future financial
performance or changes in estimates of securities analysts, government regulatory action, healthcare reform
measures, client relationship developments and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s
control. Furthermore, the stock market in general and the market for software, healthcare business services
and high technology companies in particular, has experienced volatility that often has been unrelated to
the operating performance of particular companies. These broad market and industry fluctuations may
adversely affect the trading price of the Company’s common stock, regardless of actual operating
performance.

Per-Se has significantly increased its long-term debt as a result of the NDCHealth acquisition, which
could limit funds available to Per-Se to finance other activities.

Per-Se has increased its long-term debt from approximately $125 million to approximately
$560 million. If unable to make the required debt payments, Per-Se could be required to reduce or delay
capital expenditures, sell certain assets, restructure or refinance its indebtedness, or seek additional equity
capital. The ability of Per-Se to make payments on its debt obligations will depend on the Company’s
future operating performance, which may be affected by conditions beyond the Company’s control.
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The agreements governing Per-Se’s debt limit the Companb)’s financial and operating flexibility.

Per-Se’s debt agreements contain restrictive covenants ﬂhat limit its financial and operating flexibility.
Those agreements contain restrictions regarding, among othe:r things:

* incurring additional indebtedness or guarantee obligat!ions;
+ declaring or paying dividends and other distributions; |
+ prepaying or modifying the terms of indebtedness;
» creating liens;
. rhaking capital expenditures;
» making investments or acquisitions;
* entering into acquisitions or consolidations;

1
+ making sales of assets; and ‘
+ engaging in transactions with affiliates. |

In addition, Per-Se is required to comply with specified financial covenants, including a maximum
leverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a minimum interest expense ratio.

The covenants summarized above could place Per-Se atia disadvantage compared to some of its
competitors, which may have fewer restrictive covenants and\may not be required to operate under these
restrictions.

|

Loss of key management could adversely affect the Compar;zy’s business.

The success of Per-Se is materially dependent upon its Key managers and, in particular, upon the
continued services of Philip M. Pead, who will continue to serve as Per-Se’s Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer. In addition, Per-Se does not carry key employee insurance on Mr. Pead or other
members of management. The combined company’s future business and financial results could be
adversely affected if the services of Mr. Pead or other key mz}magers cease to be available.

Per-Se may be unable to successfully integrate the businesses of Per-Se and NDCHealth and may be
unable to vealize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition.\}

Per-Se is required to devote significant management attention and resources to integrating
. . “ . | . fpas .
NDCHealth’s business practices and operations with those ofiPer-Se. Potential difficulties that the
Company may encounter in the integration process include the following:

« the inability to achieve the cost savings and operating synergies anticipated in the acquisition,
including a reduction in costs associated with the acquisition;

« complexities associated with managing the geographic scope of the combined businesses, coupled
with those of consolidating multiple physical locations where management may determine
consolidation is desirable;

+ integrating personnel from diverse corporate cultures whlle maintaining focus on providing
consistent, high quality customer service; and

« potential unknown liabilities and increased costs associated with the acquisition.

The process of integrating operations could cause a disruption of, or loss of momentum in, the
activities of the combined business, the loss of key personnel and/ or the loss of key or large customers. In
addition, customer contracts of NDCHealth contain pr0v151ons that may permit the customer to terminate
the contract upon consummation of the acquisition. The diversion of management’s attention and any

i
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delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the integration of the two companies’ operations could
have an adverse effect on business and financial results.

The integration process may result in additional and unforeseen expenses, and the anticipated benefits
of such integration plans may not be realized.

If Per-Se is unable to manage its growth profitably, its business and financial results could suffer.

Over the past several years, each of Per-Se and NDCHealth has engaged in the identification of and
competition for, growth and expansion opportunities. The company’s future financial results depend in part
on managing growth profitably. Management needs to maintain existing customers and attract new
customers, recruit, train, retain and effectively manage employees as well as expand operations, customer
support and financial control systems. If Per-Se is unable to manage its growth profitably, its business and
financial results could suffer.

As part of the acquisition, Per-Se and NDCHealth entered into, and are bound by the terms of, long-
term data sharing agreements with Wolters Kluwer that place certain vestrictions on the Company’s
ability to sell certain products to third parties and compete in certain markets.

In connection with the completion of the acquisition and the related sale of NDCHealth’s information
management business to Wolters Kluwer, Per-Se and NDCHealth entered into long-term data sharing
agreements with Wolters Kluwer, pursuant to which Per-Se and NDCHealth will share with, and receive
from Wolters Kluwer, certain specified information used in their respective businesses for the consideration
specified in these agreements. Those agreements provide, among other things, that Per-Se and NDCHealth
will sell certain information exclusively to Wolters Kluwer, and that neither Per-Se nor NDCHealth will
compete with Wolters Kluwer with respect to certain uses of data purchased by, or sold by, Wolters
Kluwer in specified markets for various time periods set forth in those agreements. In addition, the stock
purchase agreement with Wolters Kluwer prohibits NDCHealth from competing with Wolters Kluwer in
the provision of certain products and services to specified markets traditionally served by NDCHealth’s
information management business for five years from the closing of that transaction. These restrictions and
limitations will limit the types of products and customers to whom the Company can market such products
and could have a material and adverse impact on the Company’s operating and financial results.

Additionally, because the healthcare marketplace is rapidly changing, it is difficult to predict whether
the data sharing agreements will be favorable to us over the full 20-year term of the agreements. In the
event those agreements prove to be unfavorable to us, they could have a long-term negative impact on the
Company’s results of operations.

The Company is regularly involved in litigation, which may expose us to significant liabilities.

The Company is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, which may expose us
to loss contingencies. These matters include, but are not limited to, claims brought by former customers
with respect to the operation of the Company’s businesses. The Company has also received written
demands from customers and former customers that have not yet resulted in legal action.

NDCHealth is a named defendant in certain other lawsuits, including a putative securities class-action
lawsuit, captioned Garfield v. NDCHealth Corporation, et. al. The complaint in that action generally
alleged, among other things, that members of a purported class of stockholders who purchased
NDCHealth common stock between August 21, 2002, and August 9, 2004, were damagcd as a result of
(1) improper revenue recognition practices in NDCHealth’s physician business unit; (ii) the failure to
timely write-down NDCHealth’s investment in MedUnite; and (iii) the improper capitalization and
amortization of costs associated with software development. The second amended complaint alleges that,
as a result of such conduct, NDCHealth’s previously issued financial statements were materially false and
misleading, thereby causing the price of NDCHealth’s common stock to be inflated artificially. The second
amended complaint asserts violations of certain provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act™), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and seeks unspecified monetary damages and
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other relief. A U.S. federal district court judge granted NDCHealth’s motion to dismiss these claims on
July 27, 2005. The plaintiffs have appealed this decision to the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals, and that
appeal is pending.

NDCHealth is also a defendant in a private securities lawsuit filed by MMI Investments, a former
stockholder of NDCHealth. This lawsuit is generally based on the same allegations contained in the
securities class-action lawsuit. NDCHealth filed motions to t“ransfer the action to the same federal district
court hearing the securities class-action lawsuit and to dismiss the action. Following oral argument, the
motions were denied on September 28, and October 18, 200§, respectively.

The Company may not be able to successfully resolve such legal matters, or other legal matters that
may arise in the future. In the event of an adverse outcome with respect to such legal matters or other
legal matters in which the Company may become involved, the Company’s insurance coverage may not
fully cover resulting losses. Although the Company maintainsi insurance coverage in amounts that the
Company believes are sufficient, such coverage may prove to|be inadequate or may become unavailable on
acceptable terms, if at all. A successful claim brought against the Company that is uninsured or under-
insured, could materially harm the Company’s businesses, results of operations or financial condition.

Per-Se and NDCHealth are each the subject of separate SEC investigations, the resolution of which
could have a matevial adverse effect on the combined comp(znies.

On April 4, 2005, Per-Se announced that it had been no:tiﬁed by the SEC staff of the issuance of an
order of investigation, which Per-Se believes relates to allegations of wrongdoing made by a former
employee in 2003. These allegations were the subject of a prlor investigation by the audit committee of
Per-Se’s board of directors and an outside accounting firm that resulted in the performance of extensive
additional procedures. Per-Se has produced documents and prov1ded testimony relating to these allegations
to the SEC. i

On December 14, 2004, the SEC staff obtained a formal order of investigation relating to certain
NDCHealth accounting matters. NDCHealth restated its financial statements for the fiscal years ended
May 28, 2004, May 30, 2003, and May 31, 2002, to correct errors relating to these accounting matters.
NDCHealth produced documents relating to the restatement to the SEC, and the SEC took the testimony
of a number of current and former employees in relation to its investigation.

Responding to these investigations requires significant defense costs, attention and resources of
management. Either or both companies could face civil or crlmmal penalties that could have a material
adverse effect on the combined companies.

Prior to its acquisition by Per-Se, NDCHealth identified material weaknesses in its internal control over
financial reporting. If such deficiencies persist, the combined company may not be able to accurately
report its financial results and management of Per-Se may not be able to provide an unqualified report
on the effectiveness of the combined company’s internal control over financial reporting.

NDCHealth’s former management and its independent régistered public accounting firm identified
three “material weaknesses” in its internal controls over ﬁnanmal reporting. As of May 27, 2005,
NDCHealth’s management concluded that NDCHealth’s documentatlon and procedures relating to
(1) the revenue recognition and billing processes, (2) the ﬁngnmal statement close process and
(3) NDCHealth’s accounting for income taxes resulted in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

These control deficiencies could result in a material misstatement to the financial statements related
to NDCHealth and could adversely impact the accuracy and }future timeliness of the combined company’s
financial reports filed pursuant to the Exchange Act. As a result, current and potential stockholders could
lose confidence in the combined company’s financial reportmg, which could harm the trading price of the
Company’s common stock.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

The Company’s principal executive office is leased and is located in Alpharetta, Georgia. The lease for
that office expires in July 2014,

Physician Solutions

Physician Solutions’ principal office is leased and is located in the Company’s principal executive
office. In addition to its principal office, Physician Solutions operates 62 business offices throughout the
United States. One of the business offices is owned. All of the remaining facilities are leased with various
expiration dates through March 2016.

Hospital Solutions

Hospital Solutions’ principal office is leased and is located in the Company’s principal executive office.
In addition to its principal office, Hospital Solutions operates 9 offices in the United States. These facilities
are leased with various expiration dates through September 2010.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The information required by this Item is included in Note 11 of Notes to Financial Statements in
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data on page F-22.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to security holders for a vote during the fourth quarter of 2005.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company as
of March 10, 2006:

Year First
Name Age Position Elected Officer
Philip M. Pead .................... 53 Chairman, President and Chief 1999
Executive Officer
Chris E. Perkins . .................. 43 Executive Vice President, Chief 2001
Operating Officer and Interim
Chief Financial Officer
Patrick J. Leonard ................. 40  President, Physician Solutions 2004
G. Scott MacKenzie................ 42 President, Pharmacy Solutions 2006
David F. Mason ................... 48 President, Hospital Solutions — 2004
Revenue Cycle Management
Karl E. Straub..................... 48  Senior Vice President & General 2006
Manager, Hospital Solutions —
Resource Management
Philip J. Jordan.................... 58  Chief of Products Strategy 2003
Paul J. Quiner..................... 46  Senior Vice President, General 2001

Counsel and Secretary
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Each of the above executive officers was elected by the Board of Directors to hold office until the
next annual election of officers and until his successor is elected and qualified or until his earlier
resignation or removal. !

|
Philip M. Pead has served as the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

since May 2003. He was named President and Chief Executive Officer in November 2000. He has also
been a member of Per-Se’s Board of Directors since November 2000. From August 1999 to November
2000, Mr. Pead served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company.
Mr. Pead joined the Company in April 1997 as a senior executive in the hospital software business and
formed the Company’s electronic transaction processing business segment in 1999. He served as President
of the hospital software business from May 1997 until August 1999. From May 1996 to April 1997,
Mr. Pead was employed by Dun & Bradstreet Software as a senior executive, with responsibility for
international operations. ‘

Chris E. Perkins was named to the position of Chief Oberating Officer of the Company in January
2006. He has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
February 2001, and will continue to serve as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer until a successor to
that position is named. From April 2000 to February 2001, Mr. Perkins served as Senior Vice President of
Corporate Development. Prior to joining Per-Se in April 2000, Mr. Perkins held various executive
management positions with AGCO Corporation. He was apéointed as AGCO’s Chief Financial Officer in
January 1996, after serving as Vice President of Finance and Administration for the Europe, Africa and
Middle East division, and in various roles within corporate development. In July 1998, Mr. Perkins was
named Vice President of AGCO’s parts division, a $500 million global business unit, for which he was
responsible for all operations. Mr. Perkins also spent seven years in public accounting with Arthur
Andersen LLP.

Patrick J. Leonard has served as President, Physician Sblutions, since January 2006. From March
2005 to January 2006, Mr. Leonard served as President, Specialty Service Operations for the Physician
Services division. From April 2004 to March 2005, Mr. Leonard served as Senior Vice President, Specialty
Services Operations for that division. From June 2002 to April 2004, Mr. Leonard served as the division’s
Senior Vice President, Radiology Operations, with responsibility for the entire operations of the Radiology
specialty. From June 2000 to June 2002, Mr. Leonard was responsible for the division’s Central Radiology
operation. Prior to June 2000, Mr. Leonard held various operations and account management positions
with Per-Se. Before joining Per-Se in 1994, Mr. Leonard was employed by Rockwell International as a
consultant and spent four years in public accounting with Deloitte & Touche LLP.

G. Scott MacKenzie has served as President, Pharmacy Solutlons since January 2006. From February
2005 to January 2006, he served as NDCHealth Corporatlon s Executive Vice President and General
Manager of Pharmacy Systems and Services and ePrescribing. Prior to joining NDCHealth, he served for
four years as Vice President and General Manager of Providing Care, a unit of Cerner Corporation. While
at Cerner, he also held senior management positions in physician solutions and business development. Prior
to joining Cerner, Mr. MacKenzie held executive positions at AT&T Outsourcing Solutions, a unit of
AT&T Solutions; Commercial Processing Services, a unit of GE Capital Corp.; and several senior
management positions at Electronic Data Systems Corp. ‘\

David F. Mason has served as President, Hospital Solutions — Revenue Cycle Management, since
January 2006. From March 2005 to January 2006, Mr. Mason served as President, Academic and Multi-
Specialty Operations for the Physician Services division. From February 2004 to March 2005, Mr. Mason
served as Senior Vice President, Academic and Multi-Specialty Operations for that division. From October
2000 to February 2004, Mr. Mason served as the division’s Senior Vice President, Account Management.
In this position, Mr. Mason was responsible for client retention and cross-specialty initiatives. Prior to
joining Per-Se in October 2000, Mr. Mason served as the Chicf Executive Officer and Executive Director
of Optimum Physician Services, a privately-held physician management company. Mr. Mason also held
various practice management and administration positions w1th the Georgetown University Hospital and
Georgia’s Northside Hospital systems.
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Karl E. Straub was named Senior Vice President & General Manager, Hospital Solutions — Resource
Management, in January 2006, continuing responsibilities that he has had since 2005 for resource
management tools delivered to hospitals and healthcare organizations, including the Company’s patient and
staff scheduling systems, ORSOS One-Call and ANSOS One-Staff. From 2001 to 2005, he served as
Senior Vice President of Sales the Hospital Services division. Prior to joining Per-Se in 2001, he was vice
president of national accounts for McKesson Information Solutions. From 1991 to 1999, he was sales and
business director with SmithKline Beecham Clinical Laboratories.

Philip J. Jordan has served as Chief of Products Strategy since January 2006. From August 2003 to
January 2006, Mr. Jordan served as President of the Hospital Services division. Prior to joining Per-Se in
August 2003, Mr. Jordan led Kelvick Ltd., an investment and management consulting company that he
founded. Previously, he was Chief Executive Officer of SmartStream Technologies Ltd., a company
specializing in “straight through processing” solutions for the banking indusiry. Mr. Jordan also has held
positions at Geac Computers Ltd. overseeing its operations in Europe, Africa, Middle East and Latin
America. He also has held various leadership positions with software and services companies that include
Pilot Executive Software, TECS Ltd., and Comshare Computers Ltd.

Paul J. Quiner has served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of the Company
since May 2001. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Quiner was a private investor from January 2000 to
May 2001. He served as Senior Vice President, Mergers & Acquisitions of Coram Healthcare Corporation
from July 1998 to December 1999. Prior to serving in that position, he had six years of experience in
Coram’s legal department, including service from March 1995 to July 1998 as Senior Vice President and
General Counsel. Prior to joining Coram, Mr. Quiner was a partner in the Atlanta/New York/
Washington, D.C. law firm of Alston & Bird LLP, where he specialized in healthcare, medical malpractice
defense, media and general corporate litigation.
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PART I |

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Relatéd Stockholder Matters
The Company’s Common Stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “PSTL.”

The prices in the table below represent the high and low sales price for the Common Stock as
reported on Nasdaq for the periods presented. Such prices are based on inter-dealer bid and asked prices
without markup, markdown or commissions and may not represent actual transactions.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 ‘ : _High Low
First QUarter. .. .........ooveeeeineeeeneee $16.25 $14.15
Second Quarter ............... i il ‘ ................... 21.55 14.94
Third Quarter .. ... ‘ ................... 23.55 17.97
Fourth Quarter. ... ... 25.64 19.63
Year Ended December 31, 2004 ‘ ilg_h__ ﬂ_
First Quarter. ........ ... ... .. i ST $18.26  $10.68
Second Quarter ........... ... i l‘ ................... 14.90 8.10
Third QUAarter .. .......oouiee et L 1510 11.47
Fourth Quarter......... ... ... ... .. ..., e 16.35 12.89

The last reported sales price of the Common Stock as re%ported on Nasdaq on March 8, 2006, was
$23.65 per share. As of March 8, 2006, the Company’s Common Stock was held by 6,322 stockholders of
record.

Per-Se has never paid cash dividends on its Common Stock The Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement entered into on January €, 2006, and the Credit Agreemcnt entered into on September 11,
2003, as amended, contain restrictions on the Company’s abrhty to pay dividends (see Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8. Fmancral Statements and Supplementary Data for
more information). |
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial information for Per-Se for and as of each
of the five fiscal years in the period ended December 31, 2005.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share data):

STATEMENTS OF INCOME DATA

Revenue ..., $372,718  $352,791 $335,169 $325,564  $305,822
Operating income ...........oovevrnnn.... 40,102 28,934 36,508 29,888 10,957
Interest expense. . ........coviinin... 6,088 6,825 14,646 18,069 18,009
Interest income . .......... ... ... .. ..., (1,655) (525) (297) 471) (1,121)
Loss on extinguishment of debt.............. — 5,896 6,255 — —
Income tax (benefit) expense(l) ............ (1,286)  (28,101) 27 800 343
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . .. 36,955 44,839 15,877 11,490 (6,274)
Net income (loss)(2) ........ . it 37,369 48,158(3) 11,989 8,989 (6,109)(4)
Shares used in computing net income (loss)

per common share — basic ............... 30,084 30,843 30,594 30,061 29,915
Shares used in computing net income (loss)

per common share — diluted . ............. 33,386 33,082 32,661 31,966 29,915

PER SHARE DATA
Income (loss) from continuing operations —

basic ... $ 123 § 145 $§ 052 § 038 $ (0.21)
Net income (loss) per common share —basic $§ 124 $§ 15 $ 039 $ 030 $ (0.20)
Income (loss) from continuing operations —

diluted ......... ... $ 111§ 136 $ 049 $ 036 § (0.21)
Net income (loss) per common share —

diluted ....... ... $§ 112 $ 146 $ 037 $ 028 § (0.20)

As of December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(in thousands)

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Working capital . ............. ... ... ... $ 61,968 $ 44,168 $ 20,313 $ 20,602 $ 22,519
Intangible assets ......................... 60,145 53,333 52,336 55,494 61,929
Total assets . ......... . i 239,523 202,691 172,084 210,586 203,220
Totaldebt ........... ... .. ... .......... 125,625 125,625 121,875 175,020 175,091
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) (2) ........... 44,516 12,975 (17,612)  (37,972)  (49,901)

(1) Includes the release of $2.2 million and $28.1 million of the valuation allowance against the
Company’s deferred tax asset resulting in an income tax benefit that was recorded in the fourth
quarters of 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(2) Reflects the results from discontinued operations of $0.4 million, $3.3 million, $(3.9) million,
$(2.5) million and $0.2 million for 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

(3) Reflects an expense of approximately $6.3 million related to the additional procedures performed in
2004, a gain of approximately $1.5 million on the settlement with Lloyd’s of London and an expense
of approximately $1.0 million related to the relocation of the Company’s principal executive office.

(4) Reflects expenses of $3.4 million related to a process improvement project.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financi:al Condition and Results of Operations
\ .

The following “Management’s Discussion and Analysis|of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” contains forward-looking statements about even‘its that have not yet occurred. All statements,
trend analysis and other information contained below relating to markets, products and trends in revenue,
as well as other statements including words such as “anticip\‘ates,” “believes” or “expects” and statements
in the future tense are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to
business and economic risks, and actual events or the Company’s actual future results could differ
materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements due to such risks and uncertainties. The
Company disclaims any responsibility to update any forward-looking statement. Risks and uncertainties
that may affect future results and performance include, but are not limited to, those discussed under the
heading “Risk Factors” at pages 7 to 13 of this Annual Rep;ort on Form 10-K.

On August 29, 2005, Per-Se and NDCHealth Corporation (“NDCHealth”) announced that they had
signed definitive agreements for the acquisition of NDCHealth, a leading provider of healthcare technology
and information solutions. The transaction was completed on January 6, 2006. In the acquisition, Per-Se
acquired the physician, hospital and retail pharmacy businesées of NDCHealth. The retail pharmacy
business will be operated as a new division known as the Pharmacy Solutions division. Accordingly, the
Company will serve the healthcare industry through three d1v1s1ons Physician Solutions, Hospital Solutions
and Pharmacy Solutions, effective January 6, 2006. The followmg “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” addressesw the Company’s business as of December 31,
2005. Therefore, discussion related to the business acquired as part of the NDCHealth acquisition, which
closed on January 6, 2006, is not included. w
Performance Measurements Important to Management 1

The Company’s management is focused on profitable revenue growth. The Company’s business model
is designed such that revenue is generally recurring in nature and cash flow generation is relatively
consistent. Management follows certain key metrics in monitoring its performance. Such key metrics
include, but are not limited to: ;
+ net new business sold in the Physician Solutions divis“ion (defined by the Company as the

annualized revenue value of new contracts signed in a period, less the annualized revenue value of

terminated business in that same period); |
1

 net backlog in the Physician Solutions division (deﬁn%:d by the Company as the annualized revenue

related to new contracts signed with the business still ‘to be implemented, less the annualized
revenue related to existing contracts where discontinuance notification has been received);

+ transaction volume in the Hospital Solutions division; |

 new business sold in the Hospital Solutions division; ‘

» sales pipelines and sales personnel productivity in botﬁ divisions;

+ EBITDA (a non-Generally Accepted Accounting Pririciple (“GAAP”) measure defined as earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) and operating margins in both divisions;

+ days in accounts receivable in both divisions;

+ cash flow generated from operations; and !

+ free cash flow (a non-GAAP measure defined as net cash provided by continuing operations less
investments in capitalized software development costs 'and capital expenditures and represents cash
flow available for activities unrelated to operations, such as debt reduction).

|
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The financial health of the Company is also dependent upon its capital structure. Management tracks
its debt-to-EBITDA ratio and interest expense coverage ratio in monitoring the appropriateness of its
capital structure.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Correction,
(“SFAS No. 154”). SFAS No. 154 supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 20,
Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements.
SFAS No. 154 requires the retroactive application of changes in accounting principles to prior periods’
financial statements, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period specific effects or the
cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 does not change the guidance for reporting the correction
of an error in previously issued financial statements or the change in an accounting estimate,
SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning
after December 31, 2005. The Company does not believe SFAS No. 154 will have a significant impact on
the Company.

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No, 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS No. 123(R)”), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(“SFAS No. 123”). SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees (“APB No. 257), and amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Statement 123(R)
requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employce stock options, to'be
recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. The original effective date of
SFAS No. 123(R) was for interim periods beginning after June 15, 2005.

On April 14, 2005, the SEC announced the adoption of a rule that amends the compliance date for
SFAS No. 123i(R). SFAS No. 123(R) must be adopted by the Company no later than January 1, 2006.
The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 and elected the modified prospective
method.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company accounted for share-based
payments to employees using APB Opinion No. 25 and the intrinsic value method and, as a result,
generally recognized no compensation cost for employee stock options. Accordingly, the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value method could have a significant impact on the Company’s results of
operations, although it will have no impact on the Company’s overall cash flow or financial position. The
impact of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) cannot be determined at this time because it will depend on
levels of share-based payments granted in the future. Had the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in
prior periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as
described in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.

In September 2004, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a tentative conclusion
on Issue Number 04-08, The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share
(“EITF No. 04-08”). The EITF concluded that contingently convertible debt instruments should be
included in diluted earnings per share computations regardless of whether the market price trigger has
been met. The effective date is for periods ending after December 15, 2004. In November 2004, the
Company exercised its irrevocable option to pay the principal of its contingently convertible debt, its
3.25% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2024, in cash and therefore, EITF No. 04-08 did not
have any effect on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Overview of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
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financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. |

Critical accounting policies are those accounting policiés that management believes are both most
important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condltlon and results, and/or they require
management’s most difficult, subjective and/or complex Judgments often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognition 1

The Company’s revenue is derived from services and products delivered to the healthcare industry
through its two operating divisions:

Physician Solutions provides Connective Healthcare solutions that manage the revenue cycle for
physician groups. The division provides outsourced revenue cycle management services that are
targeted at hospital-affiliated and academic physician practices. Fees for these services are primarily
based on a percentage of net collections on the Company’s clients’ accounts receivable. The division
recognizes revenue and bills its customers when the customers receive payment on those accounts
receivable. Contracts are typically multi-year in length and require no payment from the customer
upon contract signing. Since this is an outsourced service delivered on the Company’s proprietary
technology, there are no license or maintenance fees to'be paid by the physician group customers. The
division also recognized approximately 3%, 4% and 5% of its revenue (or 2%, 3% and 3% of total
Company revenue), on a monthly service fee and per-transaction basis from the physician practice
management (“PPM”) product line, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively. An unbilled receivable is recorded when revenue is earned, but the customer has not
been invoiced due to the terms of the contract. The Physician Solutions division does not rely, to any
material extent, on estimates in the recognition of revenue. Revenue is recognized in accordance with
Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue Recognition (“SAB No. 104”).

Hospital Solutions provides Connective Healthcare solutions that improve revenue cycle and
resource management for hospitals. ‘

Revenue cycle management solutions primarily include services that allow a hospital’s central
billing office (“CBO”) to more effectively manage its cash flow. These services include electronic and
paper transactions, such as clairas processing, which can be delivered via the Web or through
dedicated electronic data interfaces and high-speed print and mail services. Revenue related to these
transactions is billed and recognized when the services are performed on a per-transaction basis.
Contracts are typically multi-year in length. The division also recognizes revenue related to direct and
indirect payments it receives from payers for the electronic transmission of transactions to the payers.
The division recognizes revenue on these transactions at the time the electronic transactions are sent.
Revenue is recognized on these transactions in accordance with SAB No. 104.

‘Resource management solutions include staff and patient scheduling software that enable
hospitals to efficiently manage their resources, such as personnel and the operating room, to reduce
costs and improve their bottom-line. The resource management software is sold as a one-time license
fee plus implementation services and an annual maintenance fee. Contracts are typically structured to
require a portion of the license fee and implementation services to be paid periodically throughout the
installation process, including a portion due upon signing. For software contracts that require the
division to make significant production, modification or customization changes, the division recognizes
revenue for the license fee and implementation services using the percentage-of-completion method
over the implementation period. |

The division relies on estimates of work to be completed to determine the amount of revenue to
be recognized on each contract using the percentage-of-completion method. Because estimates of the
extent of completion that differ from actual results could affect revenue, the division periodically
reviews the estimated hours to complete major projects and compares these estimates to budgeted

21



hours to support the revenue recognized on that project. Approximately 7%, 8% and 9% of the
division’s revenue (or 2%, 2% and 2% of total Company revenue) was determined using the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and
2003, respectively.

When the division receives payment prior to shipment or fulfillment of its significant obligations,
the Company records such payments as deferred revenue and recognizes them as revenue upon
shipment or fulfillment of significant vendor obligations. An unbilled receivable is recorded when the
division recognizes revenue on the percentage-of-completion basis prior to achieving a contracted
billing milestone. Additionally, an unbilled receivable is recorded when revenue is earned, but the
customer has not been invoiced due to the terms of the contract. For minor add-on software license
sales where no significant customization remains outstanding, the fee is fixed, an agreement exists and
collectibility is probable, the division recognizes revenue upon shipment. For software maintenance,
the division defers billed maintenance and recognizes revenue ratably over the term of the
maintenance agreement, which is typically one year. Revenue recognized on the percentage-of-
completion basis is done so in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”) 81-1,
Accounting for Performance of Construction Type and Certain Production Type Contracts. Revenue
recognized upon software shipment is done so in accordance with Statement of Position 97-2,
Software Revenue Recognition (“SOP 97-27).

For arrangements that include one or more elements, or multiple-element arrangements, to be
delivered at a future date, revenue is recognized in accordance with SOP 97-2 as amended by
SOP 98-9, Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, with Respect to Certain
Transactions. SOP 97-2, as amended, requires the Company to allocate revenue to each élement in a
multiple-element arrangement based on the element’s respective vendor-specific objective evidence, or
VSOE, of fair value. Where VSOE does not exist for all delivered elements (typically software license
fees) revenue from multiple-element arrangements is recognized using the residual method. Under the
residual method, if VSOE of the fair value of the undelivered elements exists, the Company defers
revenue recognition of the fair value of the undelivered elements. The remaining portion of the
arrangement fee is then recognized either by using the percentage-of-completion method if significant
production, modification or customization is required or upon delivery, assuming all other conditions
for revenue recognition have been satisfied. VSOE of fair value of maintenance services is based upon
the amount charged for maintenance when purchased separately, which is the renewal rate.
Maintenance services are typically stated separately in an arrangement. VSOE of fair value of
professional services (i.e. implementation, consulting services and training classes not essential to the
functionality of the software) is based upon the price charged when professional services are sold
separately and is based on an hourly rate or per training class fee.

Amortization and Valuation of Intangibles

Amortization of intangible assets includes the amortization of client lists, developed technology and
software development costs. The Company relies on estimates of the useful lives and net realizable value,
as appropriate, of these assets on which to base its amortization. The Company bases these estimates on
historical experiences, market conditions, expected future revenues and maintenance costs and the products
or services provided. The Company periodically evaluates whether to revise estimates of the remaining
useful lives of the intangible. Additionally the Company evaluates whether any changes would render its
intangibles impaired or indicate that an asset has a different useful life. Conditions that may indicate an
impairment include an economic downturn or change in future operations. In the event such a condition
exists, the Company performs an assessment using a variety of methodologies, including cash flow analysis,
estimates of sales proceeds and independent appraisals. Where applicable, the estimate uses an appropriate
interest rate based on appropriate discount rates.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of businesses acquired and the value of
their workforce in the Physician Solutions division in 1995 and the Hospital Solutions division from
1995 to 20035, over the fair market value of their identifiable net assets. As a result of the Company’s
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reorganization in July 2003, the Company transferred the estimated fair value of the goodwill
associated with the PPM assets to the Physician Solutions division from the Hospital Solutions
division. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(“SFAS No. 142”), the Company no longer amortizesj goodwill but reviews it annually for
impairment. !

1

Trademarks — Trademarks represent the value of ithe trademarks acquired in the Hospital
Solutions division from 2000 ta 2005. The Company expects the trademarks to contribute to cash
flows indefinitely and therefore deems the trademarks to have indefinite useful lives. In accordance
with SFAS No. 142, the Company no longer amomzcs trademarks but reviews them annually for
impairment. \

SFAS No. 142 requires companies with goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets to
complete a periodic review and impairment test of its goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible
assets. The Company performed its periodic review of its goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible
assets for impairment as of December 31, 2005, and did not identify an asset impairment as a result
of the review. The Company’s periodic review of its goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible
assets was based upon a discounted future cash flow arﬂalysis that included revenue and cost estimates,
market growth rates and appropriate discount rates. The Company will continue to test its goodwill
and other indefinite lived intangible assets annually for 1mpalrment as of December 31 or sooner if
indicators of impairment exist. 1

Client Lists — Client lists represent the value of clients acquired in the Physician Solutions
division from 1992 to 1996 and the Hospital Solutions division from 1995 to 2005. The Company
amortizes client lists using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which range from
five to ten years. g

Developed Technology — Developed technology reforesents the value of the systems acquired in
the Hospital Solutions division from 2000 to 2005. The‘Company amortizes these intangible assets
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of five years.

Software Development Costs — Software developmyent includes costs incurred in the development
or the enhancement of software in the Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions divisions for resale

or internal use.
|

Software development costs related to external use' software are capitalized upon the
establishment of technological feasibility for each product and capitalization ceases when the product
or process is available for general release to customers. Technological feasibility is established when
all planning, designing, coding and testing activities required to meet a product’s design specifications
are complete. The Company amortizes external use software development costs over the greater of the
ratio that current revenues bear to total and anticipated! future revenues for the applicable product or
straight-line method over the estimated economic lives of the assets, which are generally three to five
years. The Company monitors the net realizable value Qf all capitalized external use software
development costs to ensure that it can recover the investment through future sales.

|

Software development costs related to internal use software are capitalized after the preliminary
project stage is complete, when management with the relevant authority authorizes and commits to
the funding of the software project, when it is probable ithat the project will be completed, and the
software will be used to perform the function intended. Capitalization ceases no later than the point at
which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. The Company expenses
software development costs related to internal use software as incurred during the planning and post-
implementation phases of development. Internal-use software 1s amortlzed on a straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life, generally five years.
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Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN No. 457).
FIN No. 45 requires that a guarantor recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair
value of the obligation undertaken by issuing the guarantee. FIN No. 45 also requires additional
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations
under certain guarantees it has issued. Certain of the Company’s sales agreements contain infringement
indemnity provisions that are covered by FIN No. 45. Under these sales agreements, the Company agrees
to defend and indemnify a customer in connection with infringement claims made by third parties with
respect to the customer’s authorized use of the Company’s products and services. The indemnity
obligations contained in sales agreements generally have no specified expiration date and generally limit
the award to the amount of fees paid. The Company has not previously incurred costs to settle claims or
pay awards under these indemnification obligations. Also, the Company maintains membership in a group
captive insurance company for its workers compensation insurance. The member companies agree to
jointly insure the group’s liability risks up to a certain threshold. As a member, the Company guarantees to
pay an assessment, if an assessment becomes due, as a result of insured losses by its members. This
guarantee will never exceed a percentage of the Company’s loss funds (an amount that is based on the
Company’s insured five-year loss history). The Company issues a letter of credit to the group captive
insurance company as security for potential assessments and to meet any surplus needs. At December 31,
2005, and 2004, the Company had outstanding letters of credit to the group captive insurance company
amounting to approximately $1.8 million and $1.5 million, respectively. As a result, the Company’s
estimated fair value of the infringement indemnity provision obligations and the captive insurance
guarantee is nominal.

Other
Additionally, the Compény does not have:
— Material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations
— Any derivative financial instruments

— Any material off-balance sheet arrangements other than its operating leases disclosed in Notes 9
and 10 of Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
and certain vendor financing arrangements in the ordinary course of business or

— Any material related party transactions

General Overview

Management believes the key elements for assessing the Company’s performance are the .ability to
generate stable and improving operating profit margins on existing business, and to generate similar or
better operating profit margins on new business. An additional element is the ability to generate positive
cash flow from continuing operations. In assessing the Company’s performance, adjustments are made for
items the Company considers to be atypical, such as those noted below, to help ensure the analysis is
performed on a consistent, comparable basis from period to period.

The Company’s business is focused on the U.S. healthcare industry, specifically on the administrative
functions of healthcare providers. The healthcare industry is generally not impacted by wider trends in the
U.S. economy. The Company’s revenue may be impacted by payer reimbursement rates for physicians, but
typically the mix of rate increases or decreases for the different physician specialties the Company supports
results in a typically nominal impact on the Physician Solutions division as well as consolidated results, as
was the case during 2005. The Hospital Solutions division may be impacted by the overall hospital-
spending environment, but as revenue for the division’s services and products are generated primarily by
either transaction-based fees or supported by the maintenance fees from its substantial installed base,
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versus software license and implementation fees, division or consohdatcd results are not typically materially
impacted. ‘

Consolidated revenue and operating income for the year?cnded December 31, 2005, increased as
compared to the same period of 2004. Consolidated operating margins increased from 8.2% in 2004 to
10.8% in 2005 due to an improvement in operating performance that was partially offset by an approximate
$1.0 million expense in 2005 related to the conclusion of binding arbitration of a claim of breach of
contract arising from an acquisition completed in 2000. In addmon several atypical items contributed to
increased operating expenses in 2004 that did not occur durlng 2005. In particular, the Company incurred
expenses of approximately $6.3 million in 2004 related to the additional procedures as part of the year-end
2003 audit. The Company also incurred approximately $1.9 million of expenses related to the initiative to
comply with the requirements of Section 404(a) of the Sarbémes-Oxley Act, compared to $1.4 million in
2003, as well as approximately $1.0 million in expenses associated with the relocation of the Company’s
corporate office in July 2004. All three of these items were classified in the Corporate segment. Margins
were also negatively impacted in 2004 by the deferral and delay of revenue in the Physician Solutions
division. Specifically, the division deferred approximately $0.8 million in revenue related to a large contract
for which the division has performance targets as well as the'delay of approximately $1.5 million in
revenue related to a technical problem in transmitting electronic claims to payers. The $0.8 million in
revenue was deferred and all expenses related to the contract were recorded during 2004. The $1.5 million
in revenue was delayed during the fourth quarter of 2004, and was recognized during the first quarter of
200S. All expenses related to generating the claims were recqrded in the fourth quarter of 2004. Partially
offsetting these negative items was a gain of $1.5 million that the Company recognized in the third quarter
of 2004 in conjunction with a settlement with its former i msurance underwriters, Lloyd’s of London, which
was recorded in the Corporate segment. :
|

The Company has improved its capital structure, evidenced by decreased interest expense. Interest
expense in 2005 decreased by $0.7 million, or 11%, compared to 2004, and interest expense in 2004
decreased approximately $7.8 million, or 53%, compared to 2;003. Both reductions were due to decreases in
the Company’s effective interest rate. These reductions resulted from the debt refinancing undertaken in
September 2003 combined with another refinancing in June 2004, which further lowered the Company’s
interest rate to a fixed 3.25%. The Company incurred expenses of approximately $6.3 million related to the
September 2003 refinancing and approximately $5.9 million related to the June 2004 refinancing. The
Company believes these refinancings, which improved its borrowing rate, earnings and cash flow
generation, were important steps in effectively managing its capital structure.

In addition, the business continued to generate positive cash flow from continuing operations in 2005.
Cash flow from continuing operations in 2005 was relatively flat at $48.8 million as compared to 2004.
However, 2004 included several atypical items that mcreased cash flow, as mentioned previously. Cash
flow from continuing operations was $48.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, which was an
increase of approximately 72% over the Company’s performa;nce in 2003.

Results of Operations l

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. !

|
\
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Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Revenue. Revenue classified by the Company’s reportable segments (““divisions™) is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
(in thousands)
Physician Solutions .. ........oiitiururine it $274,576  $260,473
Hospital Solutions . .........ou i 112,282 105,923
ELmIinations . .. ...t et (14,140)  (13,605)

$372,718  $352,791

Revenue for the Physician Solutions division increased approximately 5% in 2005 compared to 2004.
Pricing for the division’s services and products was stable compared to the prior year period. The revenue
increase in the physician outsource business is due to the implementation of the record levels of net new
business sold during 2004 and 2005. Approximately $1.5 million of the $14.1 million revenue increase in
2005 related to revenue that was delayed from the quarter ended December 31, 2004, due to a technical
problem in the claims clearinghouse. Net new business sold during 2005 was a record $25 million
compared to the record level of net new business sold in 2004 of $19 million. Net new business sold is
defined as the annualized revenue value of new contracts signed in a period, less the annualized revenue
value of terminated business in that same period. Net backlog at December 31, 2005, was approximately
$12 million, compared to the net backlog of approximately $5 million at December 31, 2004. Net backlog
represents the annualized revenue related to new contracts signed with the business still to be
implemented, less the annualized revenue related to existing contracts where discontinuance notification
has been received and the customer has yet to be phased out. The Company focuses on maintaining a
positive net backlog and believes it is a useful indicator of future revenue growth.

Revenue for the Hospital Solutions division increased approximately 6% in 2005 compared to 2004.
Pricing for the division’s services and products was stable compared to the prior year period. Revenue
growth in the division is due to the implementation of new business sold during 2004 and 2005.
Additionally, 2004 revenue included previously unbilled maintenance revenue that was not included in
2005 for certain customers that the Company recognized upon receipt of payment. Medical transaction
volume increased approximately 14% for the period over the same period of 2004. Revenue growth does
not necessarily correlate directly to transaction volume due to the mix of services and products sold by the
division. The Company believes transaction volume is a useful indicator of future revenue growth as
business is implemented into the division’s recurring revenue model.

The Hospital Solutions division revenue includes intersegment revenue for services provided to the
Physician Solutions division, which is shown as Eliminations to reconcile to total consolidated revenue.

Segment Operating Income. Segment operating income is revenue less cost of services, selling,
general and administrative expenses and other expenses. Segment operating income, classified by the
Company’s divisions, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
(in thousands)
Physician Solutions . ........ ... $ 31,345 § 27,566
Hospital Solutions . ... 24,367 23,323
COTPOTatE . . Lt (15,610)  (21,955)

$ 40,102 '$ 28,934

Physicians Solutions’ segment operating income increased 14% in 2005 over 2004, resulting in an
operating margin of approximately 11.4% versus approximately 10.6% in the prior year. Margin expansion
in the current year period is the result of revenue growth as well as the recognition of approximately
$1.5 million of revenue in 2005 that was delayed from the quarter ended December 31, 2004, due to a
technical problem in the claims clearinghouse. Operating margins in 2004 were also negatively impacted
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by the deferral of approximately $0.8 million in revenue rel%lted to a large Physician Solutions contract.
While the division was unable to recognize the revenue related to the revenue delay and the revenue
deferral, all related expenses were recorded during 2004. Margins in the current year were negatively
impacted by results for the division’s PPM solution, which represents approximately 3% of the division’s
total revenue in 2005. The Company completed the conversion of its PPM customers to a new system
platform in 2005. The Company incurred costs during 2005 'to support both the legacy platform and the

new platform, resulting in negative margins for this business.

Hospital Solutions’ segment operating income increased‘ approximately 4% in 2005 over 2004, and
operating margins were approximately 21.7% versus approximately 22.0% in the prior year. The current
year includes approximately $1.6 million of costs associated }with the Company’s physician claims
clearinghouse enhancement. Also, operating margins in the prior year period were higher due to the
previously unbilled maintenance revenue that was being recdgnized upon receipt of payment.

The Company’s corporate overhead expenses, which indlude certain executive and administrative
functions, decreased approximately $6.3 million, or approximately 29% in 2005 over 2004. Expenses in
2005 were negatively impacted by an approximate $1.0 millibn related to the conclusion of binding
arbitration of a claim of breach of contract arising from an acquisition completed in 2000. In 2004,
Corporate overhead expenses included approximately $6.3 million of expenses related to the additional
procedures performed in 2004, approximately $1.9 million of professional services expense related to the
Company’s initiative to comply with the requirements of Sec:tion 404 (a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act as
compared to $1.4 in 2005, a gain of approximately $1.5 million on the settlement with Lloyd’s of London
and an expense of approximately $1.0 million related to the relocation of the Company’s principal
executive office (refer to Note 2 of Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data on pages F-14 to F-15 for more information).

Interest. In June 2004, the Company refinanced its debt and reduced its interest rate by issuing
$125 million aggregate principal amount of 3.25% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2024. This
resulted in the reduction of interest expense of approximately $1.0 million in 2005 as compared to 2004
(refer to Note 9 of Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data on pages F-20 to F-22 for more information). Interest é\:xpense was approximately $6.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005, as compared to approxirpately $6.8 million for the same period in
2004. !

Other Expenses. On March 10, 2006, the Company concluded binding arbitration for a claim of
breach of contract arising from an acquisition completed in ZOOO. The binding arbitration resulted in an
award to be paid by Per-Se of approximately $1.3 million, including interest of $0.3 million. The Company
included the award in Other Expenses and the interest in Interest Expense in the Company’s 2003
Consolidated Statement of Income. In Note 18, the costs associated with the award are classified in the
Corporate segment. ‘

Income Taxes. Income tax (benefit) expense, which is‘frelated to federal, state, local and foreign
income taxes, was a benefit of approximately ($1.3) million and a benefit of $(28.1) during the years
ended December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, and 2004, the Company reasslessed the recoverability of its deferred tax
asset. Based on its analysis, the Company determined a partial valuation allowance of $125.3 and
$137.4 million was required as of December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Realization of the net
deferred tax asset is dependent upon the Company generating sufficient taxable income prior to the
expiration of the federal and state net operating loss carryforwards. The Company determined during 2005 .
and 2004 that it was more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax asset would be realized during
the foreseeable future; therefore, the valuation allowance was adjusted accordingly. The Company
recognized a non-cash tax benefit of approximately $2.2 million and $28.1 million during 2005 and 2004,
respectively, as a result of the valuation allowance adjustment. At December 31, 2005, the Company had
federal net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) for income tax purposes of approximately
$375.4 million. The NOLs will expire at various dates between 2006 and 2024 (refer to Note 15 of Notes
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to Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data on pages F-27 to F-29
for more information regarding NOL expiration dates and respective amounts).

Discontinued Operations. In June 2003, the Company announced that it agreed to sell its Patientl
clinical product line (“Patientl”) to Misys Healthcare Systems, a division of Misys ple (“Misys™) for
$30 million in cash. The Company entered into binding arbitration with Misys regarding the final closing
adjustments and on May 21, 2004, the arbitrator awarded the Company approximately $4.3 million. On
June 1, 2004, the Company received payment of approximately $4.5 million, which included interest of
approximately $0.2 million, In December 2005, the Company determined that payment was not required
on a Patient] tax liability that was not included in the sale to Misys. Therefore, the approximately
$0.4 million liability was reversed and recognized as income in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Income.

In September 2003, the Company initiated a process to sell its Businessl patient accounting product
line (“Business1”). On February 2, 2004, the Company announced the sale of Businessl, effective
January 31, 2004, to a privately held company for $0.6 million. No cash consideration was received at
closing and the Company has not recognized proceeds on the sale. The Company does not anticipate
receiving payment for the sale of Businessl, however, the sale improved the Company’s profitability and
cash flow.

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Revenue. Revenue classified by the Company’s reportable segments (““divisions™) is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003
(in thousands)
Physician Solutions ........ ...t $260,473  $251,251
Hospital SOIutions .. ... e e 105,923 97,240
Eliminations ... ... i i i e (13,605)  (13,322)

$352,791  $335,169

Revenue for the Physician Solutions division increased approximately 4% in 2004 compared to 2003.
The revenue increase is due to the implementation of net new business sold during the first six months of
2004 as well as prior periods. Pricing for the division’s services during 2004 was consistent with the prior
year. ‘

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company deferred approximately $0.8 million in revenue
related to a large contract signed in 2004. The revenue deferral was required because the interim
measurement periods specified in the contract do not coincide with the Company’s quarterly reporting
periods. As a result, a portion of the fees the Company received under this contract were subject to an
interim performance target for a fiscal quarter ending after December 31, 2004, and consequently, were not
considered fixed and determinable for revenue recognition purposes at the end of the year. All expenses
incurred by the Company related to the contract for the year ended December 31, 2004, were recorded
during 2004.

During December 2004, the Company experienced a technical problem in its physician claims
clearinghouse that resulted in a delay in transmitting electronic claims to payers for its Physi¢ian Solutions
division. The delay in transmitting claims adversely impacted the timing of reimbursement from payers,
and reduced revenue recognized by the Physician Solutions division during the quarter ended
December 31, 2004, by approximately $1.5 million. The Company recognized this revenue during the first
quarter of 2005.

The division had a positive net backlog of approximately $5 million as of December 31, 2004,
compared to a negative net backlog of approximately $2 million at December 31, 2003. The Company
focuses on maintaining a positive net backlog and believes it is a useful indicator of future revenue growth.

Revenue for the Hospital Solutions division increased approximately 9% in 2004 compared to 2003.
Pricing for the division’s products and services in 2004 was consistent with the prior year. Revenue growth
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in the division was positively impacted by an increase in resource management revenue of approximately
8%, which was equally attributable to the implementation of new business sold as well as previously
unbilled maintenance for certain resource management software customers for which revenue was
recognized upon receipt of payment. Revenue growth was aiso positively impacted by an increase in
revenue cycle management revenue of approximately 9%. This growth is evidenced by the medical
transaction volume increase of approximately 14% for the period over 2003. The increase in revenue for
revenue cycle management services and the medical transaction volume increase primarily resulted from
new business sold during the second quarter of 2004. Transaction volume growth and revenue growth can
differ due to the mix of services and products sold by the division. The Company believes transaction
volume is a useful indicator of future revenue growth as business is implemented into the division’s
recurring revenue model. |

The Hospital Solutions division revenue includes intersegment revenue for services provided to the
Physician Solutions division, which is shown as Eliminations to reconcile to total consolidated revenue.

Segment Operating Income. Segment operating income is revenue less cost of services, selling,
general and administrative expenses and other expenses. Segment operating income, classified by the
Company’s divisions, is as follows: |

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003
. (in thousands)
Physician Solutions .............................. e $ 27,566 $ 29,356
Hospital Solutions ............................... e 23,323 22,569

Cotporate . ... e b (21,955) (15417)
: $ 28934 $ 36,508

Physicians Solutions’ segment operating income decreasbd 6% in 2004 over 2003, resulting in an
operating margin of approximately 10.6% in 2004 versus approximately 11.7% in 2003. Margins for 2004
were negatively impacted by costs associated with the implementation of approximately $16 million of net
new business sold during the first nine months of 2004, compared to net new business sold of $5 million in
the first nine months of 2003. Because the division recognizes revenue on a percentage of cash collections,
costs are typically incurred in the first three months of implémenting a contract before revenue is
recognized. The operating margin for 2004 was negatively impacted by the deferral of approximately
$0.8 million of revenue, as well as the delay of approximately $1.5 million of revenue, as previously
mentioned, as all related expenses were recorded during 2004,

Hospital Solutions’ segment operating income increased approximately 3% in 2004 over 2003, and
operating margins were approximately 22.0% in 2004 versus approximately 23.2% in 2003. The operating
margin decline can be attributed to a large print and mail customer contract, signed in the second quarter
of 2004, which was profitable for 2004 but below the normal profitability level for print and mail contracts,
which negatively impacted margins by approximately 1.4% in 2004. As part of the transaction in signing
the customer, the Company acquired substantially all of the production assets and personnel of the
customer’s hospital and physician patient statement and paper claims print and mail business. The division
consolidated this operation into its existing print and mail facility located in Lawrenceville, Georgia during
the first half of 2005, which improved margins for this contract. The operating margin decline was partially
offset by unbilled maintenance revenue for certain resource management software customers that was
recognized upon receipt of payment, which positively impacted margins by 1.2% in 2004.

The Company’s corporate overhead expenses, which include certain executive and administrative
functions, increased approximately $6.5 million, or approximately 42% in 2004 over 2003. Corporate
overhead expenses included approximately $6.3 million of expenses related to the additional procedures
performed in 2004, approximately $1.9 million of professional services expense related to the Company’s
initiative to comply with the requirements of Section 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, a gain of
approximately $1.5 million on the settlement with Lloyd’s of London, a decrease in insurance expense of
approximately $1.4 million, and an expense of approximately $1.0 million related to the relocation of the
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Company’s principal executive office (refer to Note 2 of Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data on pages F-14 to F-15 for more information).

Interest. Interest expense was approximately $6.8 million for the twelve months ended December 31,
2004, as compared to approximately $14.6 million for the same period in 2003.

In 2003, the Company permanently retired $50 million of its then outstanding debt of $175 million.
The Company refinanced the remaining balance of $125 million at substantially lower interest rates
through the issuance of term loan debt. Subsequently, in June 2004, the Company refinanced its debt and
further reduced its interest rate by issuing $125 million aggregate principal amount of 3.25% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures due 2024. These actions resulted in the reduction of interest expense of
approximately $7.8 million in 2004 as compared to 2003 (refer to Note 9 of Notes to Financial Statements
in Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data on pages F-20 to F-22 for more information).

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt. During the year ended December 31, 2004, in connection with the
retirement of the Company’s then-outstanding $118.8 million under the Term Loan B, the Company wrote
off approximately $3.5 million of deferred debt issuance costs associated with the Term Loan B.
Additionally, the Company incurred a prepayment penalty of approximately $2.4 million due to the early
retirement of the Term Loan B.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company incurred a write-off of approximately
$1.6 million of deferred debt issuance costs associated with the retirement of its then outstanding debt and
incurred expenses associated with the retirement of approximately $4.7 million.

Other Expenses. As a result of allegations of improprieties made during 2003 and 2004, the
Company’s external auditors advised the Company and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
that additional procedures should be performed related to the allegations. These additional procedures were
required due to Statement of Auditing Standards No. 99, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement
Audit, (“SAS No. 99”), which became effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2002,
Due to the volume and, in some cases, vague nature of many of the allegations, the scope of the additional
procedures was broad and extensive.

The Company recorded costs related to the additional procedures totaling approximately $6.3 million
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, and included these costs in other expenses in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. In segment reporting, these costs are classified in the
Corporate segment.

On May 10, 2004, the Company reached a settlement with the Company’s former insurance carrier,
Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London (collectively “Lloyd’s”). On July 7, 2004, pursuant to the
settlement, as amended, Lloyd’s paid the Company $16.2 million in cash. As of the payment date, the
Company had an approximately $14.7 million receivable from Lloyd’s and recognized a gain of
approximately $1.5 million on the settlement in the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. The gain
has been reflected in the Company’s Corporate segment. In the Consolidated Statement of Income, the
gain is included in other expenses.

On July 30, 2004, the Company relocated its principal executive office to Alpharetta, Georgia. The
Company entered into a noncancelable, operating lease for that office space in February 2004 which will
expire in July 2014. While the new landlord assumed the payments for the lease of the Company’s former
corporate office, the Company recorded an expense of approximately $1.0 million upon its exit of the
former office facility. The expense has been reflected in the Company’s Corporate segment. In the
Consolidated Statement of Income, the expense is included in other expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Hospital Solutions and Corporate divisions incurred
approximately $0.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively, of restructuring expenses related to the July 2003
realignment of the Company into the Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions divisions following the
Patientl divestiture.

Income Taxes. Income tax (benefit) expense, which is related to federal, state, local ard foreign
income taxes, was a benefit of approximately ($28.1) million and an expense of $27,000 during the years
ended December 31, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The 2003 income tax expense was offset by a benefit for
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a federal income tax refund of approximately $0.8 million related to the gain on the sale of Healthcare
Recoveries, Inc. (“HRI), resulting in a net tax expense of‘$27 000.

As of December 31, 2004, and 2003, the Company reassessed the recoverability of its deferred tax
asset. Based on its analysis, the Cornpany determined a full‘valuatlon allowance against the deferred tax
asset of $167.3 million was required as of December 31, 2003, and a partial valuation allowance of
$137.4 million was required as of December 31, 2004. Realization of the net deferred tax asset is
dependent upon the Company generating sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the federal
and state net operating loss carryforwards. The Company determined during 2004 that it was more likely
than not that a portion of the deferred tax asset would be realized during the foreseeable future; therefore,
the valuation allowance was adjusted accordingly. The Company recognized a non-cash tax benefit of
approximately $28.1 million during 2004 as a result of the valuation allowance adjustment. At
December 31, 2004, the Company had federal net operatlng\ loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) for income tax
purposes of approximately $393.7 million.

Discontinued Operations. 1In June 2003, the Company;announced that it agreed to sell Patientl to
Misys for $30 million in cash. Patientl was the Company’s only clinical product line and its sale allowed
the Company to better focus on improving reimbursement and administrative efficiencies for physician
practices and hospitals. The sale was completed on July 28, %2003. The Company recognized a gain on the
sale of Patientl of approximately $10.4 million, subject to cl;osing adjustments, in 2003. Net proceeds on
the sale of Patient! were approximaiely $27.9 million, subject to closing adjustments. The Company
entered into binding arbitration with Misys regarding the final closing adjustments and on May 21, 2004,
the arbitrator awarded the Company approximately $4.3 million. On June 1, 2004, the Company received

payment of approximately $4.5 million, which included interest of approximately $0.2 million.

In September 2003, the Company initiated a process to sell Businessl. As with the sale of Patientl,
the discontinuance of Businessl allowed the Company to focus resources on solutions that provide
meaningful, strategic returns for the Company, its customers and its shareholders. Pursuant to
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS No. 144”), the
Company wrote down the net assets of Business! to fair market value less costs to sell and incurred an
$8.5 million expense. On February 2, 2004, the Company announced the sale of Businessl, effective
January 31, 2004, to a privately held company for $0.6 millic‘?n.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, the consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
presented to reflect Patientl and Business! as discontinued 0perat1ons for all periods presented.
Summarized operating results for the discontinued operatlons are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003
Patientl Businessl . Total Patientl (1) Businessl Total
‘ (in thousands)

Revenue.................... $ — $ 106 $ 106 $15247 § 474  $15721
Loss from discontinued . |

operations before income

TAXES. . v $(18) $(303) ;$(321) $(1,270)  $(3,589) $(4,859)
Income tax expense .......... — - = 46 — 46
Loss from discontinued 1

operations, net of tax ... . ... $(18) $(303) $(321) $(1,316)  $(3,589) $(4,905)

(1) Patientl financial information includes activity through ﬁhe sale date of July 28, 2003.

On November 30, 1998, the Company completed the sale of its MSC business segment. In 1999, the
Company completed the sale of both divisions of its Impact business segment. Pursuant to APB No. 30,
Reporting the Results of Operations -— Reporting the Effects bf Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company have been presented to reflect the activity associated with MSC and Impact as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. |
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During the years ended December 31, 2004, and 2003, the Company incurred expenses of
approximately $14,000 and $0.9 million, respectively, which were primarily legal costs associated with
MSC and Impact. These expenses were recognized through (loss) income from discontinued operations in
the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table is a summary of the Company’s cash balances and cash flows from continuing |
operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, and 2004 (in thousands):

2005 2004
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at December 31................ $ 61,161 $ 42,422
Cash provided by continuing operations .................ccovvieon.. $ 48,773 § 48,924
Cash used for investing activities from continuing operations ........... $(23,657) $(10,581)
Cash used for financing activities from continuing operations ........... $ (6,377) $(20,758)

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of
no more than three months at the date of purchase.

Restricted cash at December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004, of approximately $20,000 and
$51,000, respectively, represents amounts collected on behalf of certain Physician Solutions and Hospital
Solutions clients, a portion of which is held in trust until it is remitted to such clients.

During 2005, the Company generated approximately $48.8 million in cash from continuing operations
which includes cash generated from normal operations offset by interest payments of approximately
$4.5 million.

During 2004, the Company generated approximately $48.9 million in cash from continuing operations
which includes cash generated from normal operations as well as the receipt of the $16.2 million
settlement from Lloyd’s of London (refer to “Note 9 — Legal Matters” in the Company’s Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information), offset by cash payments related to additional
procedures necessary under SAS No. 99 totaling approximately $6.3 million (refer to “Note 2 — Other
Expenses” in the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information), the
payment of approximately $5.7 million in expenses and legal settlements related to the matter with Lloyd’s
of London and interest payments of approximately $5.7 million.

During 2005, cash used for investing activities from continuing operations was approximately
$23.7 million consisting primarily of approximately $14.2 million for capital expenditures and investment in
software development costs, approximately $5.7 million of cash used for current and prior year acquisitions
and $3.8 million in transaction costs related to the acquisition of NDCHealth. During the latter part of
2004, the Company initiated a project to enhance substantially its physician claims clearinghouse
functionality. During 2005, the Company invested approximately $1.9 million for capital expenditures and
capitalized software development costs related to this project.

During 2004, cash used for investing activities from continuing operations was approximately
$10.6 million consisting primarily of approximately $13.0 million for capital expenditures and investment in
software development costs and approximately $1.1 million of cash used for an acquisition, partially offset
by approximately $3.7 million of net proceeds related to the final closing adjustments from the July 2003
sale of Patientl.

During 20035, the Company used approximately $6.4 million in cash for financing activities which
included approximately $15.4 million used for the repurchase of the Company’s Common Stock which was
partially offset by proceeds from the exercise of stock options of approximately $9.2 million.

On March 9, 2005, the Company announced that the Board authorized the repurchase of up to one
million shares of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock. Under the share repurchase program, the
Company was able to repurchase shares from time to time at management’s discretion in the open market,
by block purchase, in privately negotiated transactions or as otherwise allowed by securities laws and
regulations. All shares repurchased were placed into treasury to be used for general corporate purposes.
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During 2005, the Company repurchased one million shares of its outstanding Common Stock at a cost of
approximately $15.4 million. |

During 2004, the Company used approximately $20.8 mtillion in cash for financing activities. On
June 30, 2004 the Company raised $1235 million from the sale of 3.25% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures due 2024 (the “Debentures”) and retired the $118.8 million then outstanding under the Term
Loan B concurrently with the completion of the Convertible Debenture offering. On June 30, 2004, the
Company also completed an amendment to the Revolving Credit Facility to increase its capacity and lower
the Company’s borrowing rate. The Revolving Credit Facilit}j/’s capacity was expanded from $50 million to
$75 million and the facility’s maturity was extended to three years. The Company incurred a prepayment
penalty on the early retirement of the Term Loan B totaling $2.4 million in addition to financing costs of
approximately $3.5 million related to the Convertible Debenture offering and amendment to the Revolving
Credit Facility. The Company also repurchased, for approximately $25 million, an aggregate of
approximately 2.0 million shares of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock, at the market price of
$12.57 per share, in negotiated transactions concurrently with the Debentures offering. The cost of the
refinancing and purchase of Common Stock is partially oﬁset by proceeds from the exercise of stock
options of approximately $7.4 million. |

For more information about the Company’s long-term débt, refer to “Note 9 — Long-Term Debt” in
the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. |

On January 6, 2006, Per-Se acquired Atlanta, GA-basec‘i‘ NDCHealth. The acquisition included the
physician, hospital and retail pharmacy businesses, for total consideration of approximately $665 million.
As part of the transaction, Wolters Kluwer Health, Inc., whdlly owned by Wolters Kluwer NV, based in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands, purchased the pharmaceutical information management business from
NDCHealth for $382 million in cash. The transaction resulted in consideration to NDCHealth'’s
shareholders of $19.50 per share, with $14.05 paid in cash and $5.45 paid in Per-Se stock. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company had incurred approximately $3.8 million of transaction costs that are
included in other long-term assets in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company also secured financing in the form of a new senior
credit facility consisting of a $435 million Term Loan B and a $50 million revolving credit facility
(“Senior Credit Facility”). The Term Loan B bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.25% or Base Rate,
as defined by the Senior Credit Facility, plus 1.25% and matures in seven years. The revolving credit
facility has an interest rate that varies between LIBOR plus 1.50% and LIBOR plus 2.50% or between
Base Rate plus 0.5% and Base Rate plus 1.50%, based on pel‘;formance, and matures in five years. The
Company has incurred no borrowings under the revolving credit facility. All outstanding debt of
NDCHealth was retired in connection with the closing of thé transaction.

During 2004, the Company reached a settlement with Lloyd’s. In the settlement, Lloyd’s agreed to
pay the Company $20 million in cashk by July 9, 2004. Lloyd’s also agreed to defend, settle or otherwise
resolve at their expense the two remaining pending claims covered under the errors and omissions
(“E&O”) policies issued to the Company by Lloyd’s. In exchange, the Company provided Lloyd’s with a
full release of all E&O and directors and officers and company reimbursement (“D&O”) policies. The
California Superior Court retained jurisdiction to enforce any aspect of the settlement agreement.

As of the settlement date, the Company had an $18.3 niillion receivable from Lloyd’s, of which
approximately $4.9 million represented additional amounts to be paid by the Company under prior
E&O settlements covered by Lloyd’s. Effective on May 12, 2004, as a result of negotiations among the
Company, Lloyd’s, and a party to a prior E&O settlement with the Company, the Lloyd’s settlement was
amended to reduce by $3.8 million the additional amounts to' be paid by the Company under the prior
E&O settlements covered by Lloyd’s. This amendment reduced the amount of cash payable by Lloyd’s to
the Company in the settlement from $20 million to $16.2 million, and reduced the amount of the
Company’s Lloyd’s receivable by $3.8 million. On July 7, 2004 pursuant to the settlement as amended,
Lloyd’s paid the Company $16.2 million in cash. ;
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During the course of litigation the Company funded the legal costs and any litigation settlements
related to E&O claims covered by the Lloyd’s E&O policies. These items negatively impacted the
Company’s cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2004, by approximately $5.7 million, which
consisted of approximately $2.1 million related to the cost of pursuing the litigation against Lloyd’s and
approximately $3.6 million related to the funding of legal costs and litigation settlements covered by the
Lloyd’s E&O policies. The negative impact of these items on the Company’s cash flow for the year ended
December 31, 2003, was approximately $7.4 million, which consisted of approximately $2.1 million related
to insurance premium increases for new insurance coverage and the cost of pursuing the litigation against
Lloyd’s and approximately $5.3 million related to the funding of legal costs and litigation settlements
covered by the Lloyd’s E&O policies.

The Company is subject to claims, litigation and official billing inquiries arising in the ordinary course
of its business. These matters include pending lawsuits involving claims that are not required to be
separately described in this report. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to the claims
and other issues asserted in such matters; however, there can be no assurance that such matters or any
future legal matters will not have an adverse effect on the Company. Amounts of awards or losses, if any,
in pending legal matters have not been reflected in the financial statements unless probable and reasonably
estimable.

The Company has not experienced material changes in the underlying components of cash generated
by operating activities from continuing operations. The Company believes that existing cash and the cash
provided by operations will provide sufficient capital to fund its working capital requirements, contractual
obligations, investing and financing needs.

Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2005:

Paymeunts Due by Period as of December 31, 2005

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1 -3 Years 3 -5 Years - 5 Years

(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations

Long-term debt ............... $125000 § — 8  — $ - $125,000
Operating lease obligations ... ... 39,216 12,028 17,764 13,002 16,422
Capital lease obligations ........ 625 135 281 209 —
Purchase obligations
Capital expenditure obligations 1,791 1,791 — — —
Other purchase obligations . . .. 874 874 — — —

Other long-term liabilities
reflected on the Company’s
Balance Sheet under GAAP:

Restructuring reserves and

other(l) ................. 807 232 366 198 11
Software maintenance

agreements ............... 551 275 276 — —

Total ... ... ... .. . . $188,864  $15,335 $18,687 $13,409  $141,433

(1) The amounts reflected under restructuring reserves and other are amounts reserved for estimated lease
termination costs associated with the Company’s Physician Solutions division’s 1995 restructuring. For
more information, see “Note 5 — Restructuring Expenses” in the Company’s Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company invests excess cash in commercial paper, boney market funds and other highly liquid
short-term investments. Due to the limited amounts of these investments and their short-term nature, the
Company does not expect any fluctuation in the prevailing 1nterest rates to have a material effect on its
financial statements.

The Company has the option of entering into loans based on LIBOR or on Base Rates under the
Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan B. As such, the Company could experience fluctuations in
interest rates under the Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan B.

In connection with the acquisition of NDCHealth on Jaruary 6, 2006, the Company secured financing
in the form of a new senjor credit facility consisting of a $435 million Term Loan B and a $50 million
revolving credit facility. Also on January 6, 2006, the Company entered into a four-year interest rate swap
agreement, in order to hedge against potential interest rate fluctuations resulting from the variable interest
rate under the terms of the new senior credit facility. Pursuant to the terms of the interest rate swap, the
Company is obligated to periodically pay an amount based on a fixed interest rate, and the Company will
receive an amount based on a variable rate. The variable rateis based on the three-month LIBOR rate
available at the time. By entering into the interest rate swap, the Company has effectively fixed the
maximum interest rate that the Company will pay on a portion of the $435 million outstanding under the
Credit Facility at 4.76% per annum plus the applicable spread, which is 225 basis points. The amount of
the Credit Facility that is covered by the swap is $125 million in years one and two, decreasing to
$100 million in year three and $75 million in year four. The interest rate swap will terminate on
December 31, 2009, unless sooner terminated pursuant to its terms.

|
The floating rate debt outstanding under the Term Loan B which is not subject to the above
referenced interest rate swap agreement subjects the Compan):/ to risk resulting from changes in short-term
interest rates. The potential change in annual interest expense resulting from a hypothetical 100 basis point
change in short-term interest rates applied to the Company’s ﬂoatmg rate debt at January 6, 2006 would
be approximately $3.1 million.

‘\
Exchange Rate Sensitivity 1
The majority of the Company’s sales and expenses are denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, the
Company has not experienced any significant foreign exchange gains or losses to date. The Company
conducts only limited transactions in foreign currencies and ddes not expect material foreign exchange
gains or losses in the future. The Company does not engage in any foreign exchange hedging activities.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements appea} beginning at page F-1.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With. Accountants on: Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None ‘

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

|

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Conclusnon Regarding the Effectiveness of
Disclosure Controls and Procedures “
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2005. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
the Company’s Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2005, to provide reasonable assurance that information the
Company is required to disclose in reports that the Company files or submits under the Securities
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Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported accurately. It should be noted that
a control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues within the
Company have been detected. Furthermore, the design of any control system is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions, regardless of how unlikely.
Because of these inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements or omissions due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

In connection with efforts to comply with Section 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in 2006, the
Company will continue to enhance its internal control structure, as necessary, on an ongoing basis.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company has conducted an evaluation
of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based upon that evaluation, management of the Company has concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered
public accounting firm that audited the financial statements included herein, as stated in their report which
is included herein,

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter
ended December 31, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III |

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item with respect to directors and executive officers of the .
Registrant, except certain information regarding executive officers that is contained in Part I of this Report
pursuant to General Instruction G of this Form 10-K, is included in the sections entitled “Board of
Directors” and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934” of the Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 25, 2006, and is incorporated herein
by reference. ‘

The Registrant has adopted Standards of Conduct, whiéh meet the definition of a “code of ethics”
under Item 406 of the Securities and Exchange Commissioril’s Regulation S-K, and which are applicable
to and binding upon all of the Registrant’s employees (including the principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or|persons performing similar functions) and, as
required by the context, directors. Any waiver of the Standairds of Conduct for officers or directors of the
Registrant must be approved by the Board of Directors of the Registrant and must be publicly disclosed in
accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission and Nasdaq rules. The Standards of Conduct are
posted in the corporate governance area of the investors section of the Registrant’s Internet website at
WWW.per-se.Com. \
Item 11. Executive Compensation “

The information required by this Item is included in the sections entitled “Certain Information
Regarding Executive Officers,” “Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation,” “Com-
pensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Stock Price Performance Graph” of the
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 25, 2006, and is incorporated
herein by reference. i

|
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters ,

The information required by this Item is included in thé sections entitled “Director and Executive
Officer Common Stock Ownership” “Principal Stockholders’] and “Equity Compensation Plan Informa-
tion” of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 25, 2006, and is
incorporated herein by reference. |

|
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions |

The information required by this Item is included in the‘ sections entitled “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions™ of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on
May 25, 2006, and is incorporated herein by reference. ‘

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services |

The information required by this Item is included in theisection entitled “Selection of Independent
Auditors” of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of: Stockholders to be held on May 25, 2006,

and is incorporated herein by reference. ‘

PART IV

Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules |
(a) 1. Financial Statements 7
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm;

Consolidated Balance Sheets — as of December 31,:2005 and 2004;
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Consolidated Statements of Income — years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003;
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003;

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) — years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003; and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
2. Financial Statement Schedules
Included in Part IV of the report:

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts — years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003;

Schedules, other than Schedule 11, are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under
which they are required.

3. Exhibits

The following list of exhibits includes both exhibits submitted with this Form 10-K as filed with the

Commission and those incorporated by reference to other filings:

Exhibit

Number Document

2.1 — Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 26, 2005, among Registrant, Royal Merger Co.

and NDCHealth Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2005) (schedules and similar attachments to this exhibit have not
been filed; Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any of these materlals to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon request).

2.2 — Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 26, 2005, among Wolters Kluwer Health, Inc,,
NDC Health Information Services (Arizona) Inc., and NDCHealth Corporation (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to NDCHealth Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on August 29, 2005) (schedules and similar attachments to this exhibit have not been filed;
Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any of these materials to the Securities and
Exchange Commission upon request).

3.1 — Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant (incorporated by reference to ‘Exhibit 3.1 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 (the “1999 Form 10-K”)).

3.2 — Restated By-laws of Registrant, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2005).

4.1 — Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 1999
Form 10-K).

42 — Form of Option Agreement relating to Registrant’s Amended and Restated Non-Employee

Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Definitive Proxy
Statement dated April 1, 2003, relating to Registrant’s 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders).

4.3 — Form of Option Agreement relating to Registrant’s Second Amended and Restated: Non-Qualified
Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

44 — Form of Option Agreement relating to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-
Executive Employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

4.5 — Form of Option Agreement relating to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employ-
ces of Acquired Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registration Statement on
Form S-3, File No. 33-71552).

4.6 — Rights Agreement dated as of February 11, 1999, between Registrant and American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company (including form of rights certificates) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 12, 1999).
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Exhibit
Number

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

10.1

10.2

10.3
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8
10.9
10.10

10.11

10.12

Document

First Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as:of February 11, 1999, between Registrant and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, entered into as of May 4, 2000 (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Quarterly Report of For{m 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).
Second Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of February 11, 1999, between Registrant and

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, entered into as of December 6, 2001, to be effective as
of March 6, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 4.12 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2001 (the “2001 Form 10-K”}).

Third Amendment to Rights Agreement dated asiof February 11, 1999, between Registrant and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, enteted into as of March 10, 2003 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.13 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002
{(the “2002 Form 10-K™)).

Fourth Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of February 11, 1999, between Registrant and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, entered into as of February 18, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 22, 2005).

Fifth Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of February 11, 1999, between Registrant and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, entered into as of August 26, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 26, 2005).

Indenture dated as of June 30, 2004, between Registrant and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Trustee, relating to Registrant’s 3.25% Convertible;Subordinated Debentures Due 2024 (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,

2004). ‘

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 6, 2006, among Registrant, certain
domestic subsidiaries of Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., Wachovia Bank, National Association,
and the other lenders party thereto (incorporated by referenee to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form §-K filed on January 12, 2006). |

Amended and Restated Per-Se Technologies, Inc Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan
(incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Definitive Proxy Statement dated April 1, 2003,
relating to Registrant’s 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders).

Second Amended and Restated Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Non-Qualified
Stock Option Plan (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for' Non-Executive Employees (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996
{the “1996 Form 10-K”)).

First Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the 1‘996 Form 10-K).

Second Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employ-
ees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1997 (the “1997 Form 10-K”)). ;

Third Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

Fourth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employ-
ees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

Fifth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

Sixth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998 (the “1998 Form 10-K”)). ?

Seventh Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employ-
ees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the 1999 Form 10-K).
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Exhibit
Number

10.13 —

10.14 —

10.15 —
10.16 —

10.17 —

10.18 —

10.19 —

10.20 —

10.21 —

1022 —
10.23 —
10.24 —
10.25 —

10.26 —

10.27 —
10.28 —

10.29 —

10.30 —
10.31 —

10.32 —

Document

Eighth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employ-
ees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000 (the “2000 Form 10-K™}).

Ninth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002).

Tenth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the 2002 Form 10-K).

Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired Companies (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-67752).

First Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employecé of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to Registration Statement on Form S-8, File
No. 33-71556).

Second Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to Registration Statement on Form S-8, File
No. 33-88442).

Third Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1995).

Fourth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registration Statement on Form S-8, File
No. 333-3213).

Fifth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-8, File
No. 333-07627).

Sixth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the 1996 Form 10-K).

Seventh Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the 1998 Form 10-K).

Eighth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan For Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Ninth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan For Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the 2000 Form 10-K).

Tenth Amendment to Registrant’s Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan For Employees of Acquired
Companies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2002).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Employees’ Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2005).

First Amendment to the Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Employees’ Retirement Savings Plan (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2005),

Second Amendment to the Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Employees’ Retirement Savings Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 19,
2005).

Retirement Savings Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registration Statement on
Form S-1, File No. 33-42216).

Registrant’s Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-90874).

First Amendment to Registrant’s Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1997).
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Number

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

Document

Second Amendment to Registrant’s Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for‘the quarter ended September 30, 1997).

Third Amendment to Registrant’s Deferred Compensatlon Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.76 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

Fourth Amendment to Registrant’s Deferred Compensatlon Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.32 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Fifth Amendment to Registrant’s Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.36 to the 2000 Form 10-K). |

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan effective as of January 1, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the 2001 Form 10-K).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred éompensation Plan Trust Agreement dated as
of February 12, 2002, between Registrant and Merrill Lynch Trust Company, FSB (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Written description of Registrant’s Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Deferred Stock Unit Plan \(mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to
the 2001 Form 10-K). \

First Amendment to Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Deferred Stock Unit Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Deferred Stock Unit Plan Trust Agreement dated as of May 1, 2002,
between Registrant and Merrill Lynch Trust Company, FSB (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for:the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. 2005 Senior Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2005).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. 2005 Senior Managemen‘t Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2005).

Employment Agreement dated November 19, 1996! between Registrant and David E. McDowell
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the 1996 Form 10-K).

Amendment Number 1 to Employment Agreement:between Registrant and David E. McDowell,
dated October 20, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Amendment Number 2 to Employment Agreement'between Registrant and David E. McDowell,
dated December 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 19, 2003).

Employment Agreement dated as of November 13, 2000 between Registrant and Philip M. Pead
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the 2000 Form 10-K).

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between Registrant and Philip M. Pead, dated
May 8, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003).

Employment Agreement dated April 14, 2000, between Registrant and Chris E. Perkins (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the 2000 Form 10-K).

Amendment Number 1 to Employment Agreement between Registrant and Chris E. Perkins, dated
as of February 7, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the 2000 Form 10-K).

Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2003, between Registrant and Philip J. Jordan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement dated as of May 31, 2001 between Registrant and Paul J. Quiner
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003).
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Exhibit
Number

10.54 —

10.55 —

10.56 —

10.57 —

23 —
31,1 —

31.2 —

321 —

322 —

Document

Employment Agreement dated as of February 9, 2005, as amended effective as of December 29,
2005, between G. Scott MacKenzie and NDCHealth Corporation.

Data Supply and Services Agreement, dated as of January 6, 2006, among NDC Health
Information Services (Arizona) Inc., NDCHealth Corporation and Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 12, 2006).

Retail Informatics Data and Services Agreement, dated as of January 6, 2006, between NDC
Health Information Services (Arizona) Inc. and NDCHealth Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 12, 2006).

Per-Se Technologies, Inc. 2006 Senior Management Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2006).

Subsidiaries of Registrant.
Consent of Emnst & Young LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a),
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a),
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The exhibits, which are referenced in the above documents, are hereby incorporated by reference.
Such exhibits have been omitted for purposes of this filing but will be furnished supplementary to the
Commission upon request.
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SIGNATURES |

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

Date: March 15, 2006

i
|
PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INnC.
(Registrant)

By: ! /s/ Curis E. PERKINS

! Chris E. Perkins

| Executive Vice President, Chief
‘ Operating Officer and

| Interim Chief Financial Officer

‘ /s/  RicHARD A. FLYNT

| Richard A. Flynt
Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller
‘\ {Principal Accounting Officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

March 15, 2006 /s/ PHILIP M. PEAD

Philip M. Pead
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director

March 15, 2006 /s/  CHRIS E. PERKINS

Chris E. Perkins
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer
and
Interim Chief Financial Officer

March 15, 2006 /s/ RICHARD A. FLYNT

Richard A. Flynt
Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

March 15, 2006 /s/ JouN W. CLAY, JR. :

John W. Clay, Jr.
Director

March 15, 2006 /s/  JOHN W. DANAHER, M.D.

John W. Danaher, M.D.
Director

March 15, 2006 /s/ CRAIG MACNAB

Craig Macnab
Director

March 15, 2006 /s/ Davip E. MCDOWELL

David E. McDowell
Director

March 15, 2006 /s/ C. CHRISTOPHER TROWER

C. Christopher Trower
Director

March 15, 2006 /s/  JEFFREY W, UBBEN

Jeffrey W. Ubben
Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
|
The Board of Directors and Stockholders |
Per-Se Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for éach of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2005. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15(a)2. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based
on our audits. !

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also,
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveniess of Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2003, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
and our report dated March 13, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emnst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 13, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 'ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Per-Se Technologies, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual !
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the ‘
“Company”’) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based {
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevént or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2003, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Per-Se Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity
(deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, and our
report dated March 13, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 13, 2006
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

; December 31,
2005 2004

(in thousands, except par
value data)

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ........................... e $ 61,161 § 42422
Restrictedcash.......... ... ... i e 20 51

Total cash and cash equivalents .. ............... e 61,181 42,473
Accounts receivable, billed (less allowances of $3,035 and $3 229,

TESPECHIVELY) oot e 54,135 49,105
Accounts receivable, unbilled (less allowances of $313 and $371 respectively) 262 302
Deferred income taxes —current, net . ................. P 4,056 3,264
Prepaid expenses ............. e 3,004 2,823
Other. .. e 3,535 4,906

Total current assets . ... U 126,173 102,873
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation . . . ................ 16,843 15,512
Goodwill ... ... . PR 38,199 32,549
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization..................... 21,946 20,784
Deferred income taxes, net.................. .. ... .. ... e 26,238 24,851
Other . L 10,124 6,122
Total @ssets .. ...t e $ 239,523 § 202,691

Current Liabilities: 5
Accounts payable . ... .. ... L $ 5982 § 5290
Accrued compensation . .......... ..o . 15,265 14,562
Accrued eXPenses . ... u v e e 17,002 14,628
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obhgauons .............. 135 98
Deferred revenue . ......... ... e 25,821 24,127
Total current liabilities . ....................... A 64,205 58,705
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations .............. P 125,490 125,527
Other obligations .......... . ... ... i i e 5,312 5,484
Total liabilities .. ....... ... .. .. . i e 195,007 189,716

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 11) !
Stockholders’ Equity: « i
Preferred stock, no par value, 20,000 shares authorized; none issued ......... — —

Common stock, voting, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares authorlzed 33,511 and
32,324 shares issued and 30,523 and 30,336 shares outstanding as of

December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004, respectively ................ 335 323
Common stock, non-voting, $0.01 par value, 600 shares authorlzed none
ISSUEA . L . e — —
Paid-in capital ......... ... . e 804,875 795,263
Accumulated deficit. .. ... .. L (719,759)  (757,128)
Treasury stock at cost, 2,988 and 1,988 shares as of Decembcr 31, 2005, and
December 31, 2004, respectively .................... e (41,817) (26,510)
Deferred stock unit plan obligation .................... e 1,429 1,511
Accumulated other comprehensive loss................. b (547) (484)
Total stockholders’ equity ............. ... ..... b 44,516 12,975
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ......... e $ 239,523 $ 202,691

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, exceptiper share data)
REVEIUE . . oottt i e $372,718  $352,791  $335,169
Operating expenses:
Cost Of SEIVICES . ... vt 248,372 232,661 217,895
Selling, general and administrative .. ........ ... ... ... ... .. 83,226 85,351 79,936
Other eXpenses . ..ot 1,018 5,845 830
Operating INCOME . .. ..o\ttt et et 40,102 28,934 36,508
Interest eXpense. . . ..ot e 6,088 6,825 14,646
INterest iNCOMIE ... v vt e e (1,655) (525) (297)
Loss on extinguishment of debt............ ... ... ... ... ... ..., — 5,896 6,255
Income before income taxes . ...... ... .. ..., 35,669 16,738 15,904
Income tax (benefit) expense ............ouiiiiiiiiniii, (1,286)  (28,101) 27
Income from continuing operations. ............ ...y 36,955 44,839 15,877
Discontinued operations (see Note 4)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Patientl .......... — (18) (1,316)
Gain on sale of Patientl, netof tax ............... ... ... ... ... 434 3,784 10,417
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Businessl ......... — (303) (3,589)
Loss on sale of Businessl, netoftax .............. ... ... — (130) (8,528)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Other ............ (20) (14) (872)
414 3,319 (3,888)
Net INCOME ..o e $ 37,369 § 48,158 § 11,989
Net income per common share-basic:
Income from continuing operations. .....................coo.o... $ 123 $§ 145 $ 0.52
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Patientl .......... — — (0.04)
Gain on sale of Patientl, netof tax .......... ... ... ... ... ..... 0.01 0.12 0.34
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Businessl ......... — (0.01) (0.12)
Loss on sale of Businessl, netoftax ........................... — — (0.28)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Other ............ — — (0.03)
Net income per common share-basic .. ................... $§ 124 $ 156 § 0.39
Weighted average shares used in computing basic income per common
Share . .. 30,084 30,843 30,594
Net income per common share-diluted:
Income from continuing operations. ...............c.oiiiiiinn, $ 111 $§ 136 § 049
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Patientl .......... — — (0.04)
Gain on sale of Patientl, netof tax .......... ... ... ... ... .... 0.01 0.11 0.32
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Businessl ......... — (0.01) (0.11)
Loss on sale of Businessl, netoftax ........................... — — (0.26)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Other ............ — — (0.03)
Net income per common share-diluted ................... $ 112 $ 146 $ 037
Weighted average shares used in computing diluted income per ‘
common Share . ... ... e 33,386 33,082 32,661

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. LAND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT?S OF CASH FLOWS

; Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
‘; (in thousands)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: ;
Net INCOME ..ot vt it $37,369 $ 48,158 $ 11,989
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash prov1dcd by
operating activities: |
Depreciation and amortization. ................... i ... 14,959 15,456 16,509
Loss from discontinued operations .................0 ....... 20 465 14,305
Gain on sale of Patientl......................... 0. .. ... (434) (3,784) (10,417)
Amortization of deferred financing costs ............0 . ..... 1,336 1,275 1,269
Loss on extmgulshment of debt. oo — 5,896 6,255
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effects of |
acquisitions and divestitures: !
Restricted cash . ... ... .. . .. . . . — — 4,162
Accounts receivable, billed ........ ... ... .. i L (3,344) (1,303) (4,370)
Accounts receivable, unbilled . .......... . ... ... 40 275 129
Accounts payable ...... ... L 506 (1,315) 3,062
Accrued compensation ................. R 783 (3,502) (1,639)
Accrued EXPENSES .. .ot (1,854) (1,158) (7,177)
Deferred tax asset . . .....ovvtrinn et (2,179) (28,115) —
Deferred reVENUE . . .« oo v o ettt e 1,694 3,793 1,962
Other,net. ... .. o (123) 12,783 (7,568)
Net cash provided by continuing operations .......i....... 48,773 48,924 28,471
Net cash used for discontinued operations. . ............... — (434) (10,419)
Net cash provided by operating activities. ....... P 48,773 48,490 18,052
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: }
Purchases of property and equipment.................0....... (8,108) (6,337) (6,367)
Software development costs . ............. i (6,121) (6,681) (3,976)
Net proceeds from sale of Patientl and Businessl, net of tax..... — 3,654 27,925
Acquisition, net of cash acquired ............ ... ... ... .. .. .. (5,405) (1,141) —
Capitalized acquisition costs ...........covviirnniiin ., (3,763) — —
OThET oo (260) (76) (55)
Net cash (used for) provided by continuing operations ....  (23,657) (10,581) 17,527
Net cash used for discontinued operations. . .. ... REREREE — — (2,288)
Net cash (used for) provided by investing act1v1tlcs ...... (23,657) (10,581) 15,239
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: ‘
Proceeds from borrowings . ... — 125,000 125,000
Treasury stock purchase . .................oioui...! PR (15,404) (24,999) —
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options ...........i....... 9,219 7,398 7,969
Debt issuance costS. .. ...ouvir i e, — (6,378) (9,797)
Paymentsof debt ... .. ... .. . . oo (76)  (121,875)  (178,145)
Other .. ‘ ....... (116) 96 205
Net cash used for financing activities............ Lo (6,377) (20,758) (54,768)
Cash and Cash Equivalents: ;
Netchange ......... i S 18,739 17,151 (21,477)
Balance at beginning of period ....................... T, 42,422 25,271 46,748
Balance atend of period ........ ... ... . ... . . e $ 61,161 § 42422 § 25271

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Deferred  Accumulated

Stock Other Total
Common Common Paid-In Accumulated Treasury Unit Plan Comprehensive  Stockholders’
Shares Stock Capital  Warrants Deficit Stock  Obligation (Less)/Income Equity (Deficit)
(in thousands)
Balance at December 31,

2002 ... 30,163 $302 $778,021 $ 1,495 $(817,275) $ (1,045) $1,045 $(515) $(37,972)
Netincome .............. — — — — 11,989 — — — 11,989
Foreign currency translation '

adjustment. ............ — — — — — — — 84 &4
Total comprehensive income 12,073
Exercise of stock options ... 1,159 11 7,958 — — — — — 7,969
Tax effect of exercise of

stock options . .......... — — 318 — — — — — 318
Deferred stock unit plan

activity ................ — — — — — (258) 258 — —
Balance at December 31,

2003 ... 31,322 313 786,297 1,495  (805,286)  (1,303) 1,303 (431) (17,612)
Netincome .............. — — —_ — 48,158 — — —_ 48,158
Foreign currency translation

adjustment............. — — — — - — — (53) (53)
Total comprehensive income 48,105
Exercise of stock options ... 1,002 10 7,388 — — — — — 7,398
Tax effect of exercise of

stock options . .......... — — 68 — — — — — 68
Treasury stock purchase. . .. — — — — —  (24,999) — — (24,999)
Expiration of warrants .. ... — — 1,495  (1,495) — — — - —
Other ................... — — 15 — — — — — 15
Deferred stock unit plan

activity .. ... — — — — — (208) 208 — —
Balance at December 31,

2004 ... 32,324 323 795,263 —  (757,128) (26,510) 1,511 (484) 12,975
Net income .............. — — — — 37,369 — — — 37,369
Foreign currency translation

adjustment............. — — — — — — — (63) (63)
Total comprehensive income 37,306
Exercise of stock options ... 1,187 12 9,207 —_ —_ — — — 9,219
Tax effect of exercise of

stock options ........... — — 405 — — — — — 405
Treasury stock purchase. ... — — — —_ —  (15,404) — — (15,404)
Other ................... - — — — 15 — — 15
Deferred stock unit plan

activity . ........ . ... — — — — — 82 (82) — —
Balance at December 31,

2005. .. ... 33,511 $335  $804,875 § — §(719,759) $(41,817) $1,429 $(547) $ 44,516

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.EAND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
’\

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies f

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial state;ments include the accounts of Per-Se

Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Per-Se” or the “C?mpany”). All intersegment accounts have
been eliminated. The Hospital Solutions division’s revenue includes intersegment revenue for services
provided to the Physician Solutions division, which has been eliminated in total consolidated revenue.
Certain amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to

the current year presentation. !

The consolidated financial statements of the Company ilave been presented to reflect the operations of
the Hospital Solutions division’s Patientl clinical product line (“Patientl”) and Business!-PFM patient
accounting product line (“Businessl”) as discontinued operations. Patientl was sold on July 28, 2003, and
Business] was sold effective January 31, 2004. Additionally, the activity related to the Medaphis Services
Corporation (“MSC”) and Impact [nnovations Group (“Irﬁpact”) businesses, which were sold in 1998
and 1999, respectively, are also reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented. For more
information about the Company’s discontinued operations, refer to “Note 4 — Discontinued Operations

and Divestitures” in the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
i

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In May 2005, thé Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 154, Accounting Changes
and Error Correction, (“SFAS No. 154”). SFAS No. 154 supersedes Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Statements. SFAS No. 154 requires the retroactive application of changes in accounting
principles to prior periods’ financial statements, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 does not change the guidance for
reporting the correction of an error in previously issued financial statements or the change in an accounting
estimate. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years
beginning after December 31, 2005. The Company does not believe SFAS No. 154 will have a significant
impact on the Company. |

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS No. 123(R)”), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(“SFAS No. 123”). SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees (“APB No. 25”), and amends SFAS No. 95, Szétemenl of Cash Flows. Statement 123(R)
requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be
recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. The original effective date of
SFAS No. 123(R) was for interim periods beginning after June 15, 2005.

On April 14, 2005, the SEC announced the adoption of a rule that amends the compliance date for
SFAS No. 123(R). SFAS No. 123(R) must be adopted by the Company no later than January 1, 2006.
The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, and elected the modified prospective
method. ;

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company accounted for share-based
payments to employees using APB Opinion No. 25 and the intrinsic value method and, as a result,
generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee stock options. Accordingly, the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value method could have a significant impact on the Company’s results of
operations, although it will have no impact on the Company’s overall cash flow. The impact of adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) cannot be determined at this time because it will depend on levels of share-based
payments granted in the future. Had the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in prior periods, the impact
of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as described on page F-12.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

In September 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a tentative conclusion on
Issue Number 04-8, The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share (“EITF
No. 04-8”). The EITF concluded that contingently convertible debt instruments should be included in
diluted earnings per share computations regardless of whether the market price trigger has been met. The
effective date of this consensus is for periods ending after December 15, 2004. In November 2004, the
Company exercised its irrevocable option to pay the principal of its Convertible Subordinated Debentures
in cash and therefore, EITF No. 04-8 did not have any effect on the Company’s Consolidated Statements
of Income.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Bad debt estimates. The Company relies on estimates to determine the bad debt expense and
the adequacy of the reserve for doubtful accounts receivable. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the Company and the industry in which it operates. If the financial condition
of the Company’s customers deteriorated, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required. The Company actively reviews its accounts
receivable and does not believe actual results will vary materially from the Company’s estimates.

Accrued expenses. The Company relies on estimates to determine the amounts that are recorded
in accrued expenses. Estimates of requirements for legal services and settlements expected to be
incurred in connection with a loss contingency and to meet regulatory demands within the Company’s
business and industry are used to accrue legal expenses. Income tax accruals are estimated based on
historical experience of the Company, prevailing tax rates and the current business environment.
Restructuring and severance cost accruals are made using estimates of the costs required to effect the
desired change within the Company.

Revenue Recognition. The Company derives revenue from services and products delivered to the
healthcare industry through its two operating divisions:

Physician Solutions provides Connective Healthcare solutions that manage the revenue cycle for
physician' groups. The division provides outsourced revenue cycle management services that are
targeted at hospital-affiliated and academic physician practices. Fees for these services are primarily
based on a percentage of net collections on the Company’s clients’ accounts receivable. The division
recognizes revenue and bills its customers when the customers receive payment on those accounts
receivable. Contracts are typically multi-year in length and require no payment from the .customer
upon contract signing. Since this is an outsourced service delivered on the Company’s proprietary
technology, there are no license or maintenance fees to be paid by the physician group customers. The
division also recognized approximately 3%, 4% and 5% of its revenue, (or 2%, 3% and 3% of total
company revenue), on a monthly service fee and per-transaction basis from the MedAxxis product
line, an application service provider (“ASP”) physician practice management system, for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Physician Solutions division does not
rely, to any material extent, on estimates in the recognition of this revenue. Revenue is recognized in
accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue Recognition
(“SAB No. 104”).

Hospital Solutions provides Connective Healthcare solutions that improve revenue cycle and
resource management for hospitals.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ;&ND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALiSTATEMENTS — (Continued)
|

Revenue cycle management solutions primarily include services that allow a hospital’s central
billing office to more effectively manage its cash flow. These services include electronic and paper
transactions, such as claims processing, which can be dcllivered via the Web or through dedicated
electronic data interfaces and high-speed print and mail services. Revenue related to these transaction
services are billed and recognized when the services are'performed on a per transaction basis.
Contracts are typically multi-year in length. The division also recognizes revenue related to direct and
indirect payments it receives from payers for the electronic transmission of transactions to the payers.
The division recognizes revenue on these transactions at the time the electronic transactions are sent.

Revenue is recognized in accordance with SAB No. 104.

Resource management solutions include staff and patient scheduling software that enable
hospitals to efficiently manage resources, such as personnel and the operating room, to reduce costs
and improve their bottom line. The resource management software is sold as a one-time license fee
plus implementation services and an annual maintenance fee. Contracts are typically structured to
require a portion of the license fee and implementation services to be paid periodically throughout the
installation process, including a portion due upon signing. For software contracts that require the
division to make significant production, modification or customization changes, the division recognizes
revenue for the license fee and implementation services iusing the percentage-of-completion method
over the implementation period. The Hospital Solutions'division relies on estimates of work to be
completed to determine the amount of revenue to be recognized related to each contract using the
percentage of completion method. Because estimates of ithe extent of completion that differ from
actual results could affect revenue, the division periodically reviews the estimated hours to complete
major projects and compares these estimates to budgeted hours or days to support the revenue
recognized on that project. Approximately 7%, 8% and 9% of the division’s revenue (or 2%, 2% and
2% of total Company revenue) was determined using the percentage-of-completion method of
accounting for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

When the division receives payment prior to shipme‘nt or fulfillment of its significant obligations,
the Company records such payments as deferred revenuej and recognizes them as revenue upon
shipment or fulfillment of significant obligations. An unbilled receivable is recorded when the division
recognizes revenue on the percerntage-of-completion basis prior to achieving a contracted billing
milestone. Additionally, an unbilled receivable is recorded when revenue is earned, but the customer has
not been invoiced due to the terms of the contract. For minor add-on software license sales where no
significant customization remains outstanding, the fee is fixed, an agreement exists and collectibility is
probable, the division recognizes revenue upon shipment.:For software maintenance, the division defers
billed maintenance and recognizes revenue ratably over the term of the maintenance agreement, which
is typically one year. Revenue recognized on the percentage-of-completion basis is done so in
accordance with AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”)! 81-1, Accounting for Performance of
Construction Type and Certain Froduction Type Contracts. Revenue recognized upon software shipment
is done so in accordance with SOP 97-2, Software Reven‘ye Recognition (“SOP 97-27).

For arrangements that include one or more elements, or multiple-element arrangements, to be
delivered at a future date, revenue is recognized in accordance with SOP 97-2 as amended by
SOP 98-9, Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, with Respect to Certain
Transactions. SOP 97-2, as amended, requires the Company to allocate revenue to each element in a
multiple-clement arrangement based on the element’s respective vendor-specific objective evidence, or
VSOE, of fair value. Where VSOE does not exist for a11 delivered elements (typically software license
fees) revenue from multiple-element arrangements is recognized using the residual method. Under the
residual method, if VSOE of the fair value of the undelivered elements exists, the Company defers
revenue recognition of the fair value of the undelivered elements. The remaining portion of the
arrangement fee is then recognized either by using the percentage-of-completion method if significant
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued).

production, modification or customization is required or upon delivery, assuming all other conditions
for revenue recognition have been satisfied. VSOE of fair value of maintenance services is based upon
the amount charged for maintenance when purchased separately, which is the renewal rate.
Maintenance services are typically stated separately in an arrangement. VSOE of fair value of
professional services (i.e., implementation, consulting services and training classes not essential to the
functionality of the software) is based upon the price charged when professional services iare sold
separately and is based on an hourly rate for professional services or per training class fees.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an
initial maturity of no more than 90 days at the date of purchase.

Restricted Cash. At December 31, 2005, and 2004, restricted cash primarily represents amounts
collected on behalf of certain Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions clients, a portion of which is held
in trust until it is remitted to such clients.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The carrying amount of all of the Company’s financial
instruments approximates fair value. Additionally, the Company had unused letters of credit in the amount
of $2.9 million and $2.8 million at December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment, including equipment under capital leases, are
stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally ten years for furniture and fixtures, three to ten years for
equipment and twenty years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and amortized
over the remaining term of the lease or the useful life of the asset, whichever period is shorter. The
Company recorded depreciation expense of approximately $6.8 million, $7.8 million and $9.4 million in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of businesses acquired and the value of their
workforce in the Physician Solutions division in 1995 and the Hospital Solutions division from 1995 to
2005 over the fair market value of their identifiable net assets. The Company performs a periodic review of
its goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment as of December 31 each year or
sooner if indicators of impairment exist. The Company’s initial impairment and periodic review of its
goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets were based upon a discounted future cash flow analysis
that included revenue and cost estimates, market growth rates and appropriate discount rates. As of
December 31, 2005, and 2004, the Company did not record an impairment of goodwill or indefinite-lived
intangible assets as a result of the review.

Trademarks. Trademarks represent the value of the trademarks acquired in the Hospital Solutions
division from 2000 to 2005. The Company expects the trademarks to contribute to cash flows indefinitely
and therefore deems the trademarks to have indefinite useful lives.

Client Lists. Client lists represent the value of clients acquired in the Physician Solutions division
from 1992 to 1996 and the Hospital Solutions division from 1995 to 2005. The Company amortizes client
lists over their estimated useful lives, which range from five to ten years.

Developed Technology. Developed technology represents the value of the systems acquired in the
Hospital Solutions division from 2000 to 2005. The Company amortizes these intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Software Development Costs. Software development includes costs incurred in the development or
the enhancement of software in the Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions divisions for resale or
internal use.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Software development costs, related to external use software, are capitalized upon the establishment of
technological feasibility for each product and capitalization ‘ceases when the product or process is available
for general release to customers. Technological feasibility is established when all planning, designing,
coding and testing activities required to meet a product’s désign specifications are complete. Technological
feasibility for relatively minor enhancements to an existing product may also be established using a
working model provided that there are no major changes to: the functions of the product and there are no
high-risk development issues. The Company amortizes external use software development costs over the
greater of the ratio that current revenues bear to total and anticipated future revenues for the applicable
product or the straight-line method over the estimated economic lives of the assets, which are generally
three to five years. The Company monitors the net realizable value of all capitalized external use software
development costs to ensure that it can recover its investment through future sales.

Software development costs, related to internal use sofﬁware, are capitalized after the preliminary
project stage is complete, when management with the relevant authority authorizes and commits to the
funding of the software project and it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will
be used to perform the function intended. Capitalization of Hevelopmcnt costs related to upgrades and
enhancements of existing internal use software are capitalized only when such expenditures result in
additional functionality. Capitalization ceases no later than the point at which the project is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. The Company expenses software development costs, related to
internal use software, as incurred during the planning and post implementation phases of development. The
Company amortizes internal-use software on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, generally
five years. ‘

Research and Development Costs. The Company expenses research and development costs as
incurred. The Company recorded research and development costs of approximately $11.2 million,
$8.3 million and $8.0 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts are included in Selling,
General and Administrative expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Advertising Costs. The Company expenses advertising“costs as incurred. The Company recorded
advertising costs of approximately $0.5 million, $0.7 million and $0.7 million in 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

Shipping and Postage Costs. The Company expenses shipping and postage costs as incurred. These
costs are primarily incurred related to providing print and m‘ail services to customers, which are billed to
the customer and included in revenue. The Company recorded shipping and postage costs of approximately
$26.3 million, $23.8 million and $19.3 million in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. These amounts are

included in Cost of Services in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans. In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure (“SFAS No. 148”). SFAS No. 148 provides
alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to t}‘ne fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 123, to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results.
SFAS No. 148 is effective for financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and for
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The annual disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148
were adopted by the Company on January 1, 2003. As previously discussed, SFAS No. 123(R) was issued
on December 16, 2004, with a revised effective date no Iater than January 1, 2006. The Company adopted
SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006.




PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

At December 31, 2005, the Company has four stock-based compensation plans described more fully
in Note 13. The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans under APB Opinion No. 25.
No stock-based compensation cost is reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income, as
all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and net
income per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to
stock-based compensation.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

(in thousands,
except per share data)

Net income as reported ... ..o $37,369  $48,158  $11,989

Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards, net

of related tax effects .. ....... ... ... .. .. (4,661) (4,334) (4,210)
Pro forma net inCome . ... ..ot $32,708 $43,824 $ 7,779
Net income per common share:

Basic —asreported ........ . i $ 124 §$ 156 § 0.39

Basic —proforma ......... ... ... i $ 109 § 142 § 0.25

Diluted —asreported. ............. . i $§ 112 $ 146 § 037

Diluted—proforma............. ... ... .o $ 098 § 132 § 024

Legal Costs. The Company expenses ordinary legal and administrative fees, costs and expenses as
incurred. Legal and administrative fees, costs, expenses, damages or settlement losses for specific legal
matters that the Company determines to be probable are accrued at such time when they are reasonably
estimable.

Income Taxes. The Company recognizes deferred income taxes for the tax consequences of
“temporary differences” between financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets
and liabilities. The Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities by reference to the tax laws and
changes to such laws. Management includes the consideration of future events in assessing the likelihood
that the Company will realize tax benefits. See Note 15 where the Company discusses the realizability of
the deferred tax assets.
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PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Net Income Per Share. Net income per common share-basic is calculated by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of shares of common stock oﬁtstanding during the period. Net income per
common share-diluted reflects the potential dilution that could occur from common shares issuable
through stock options and warrants. The following sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net
income per common share (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,

‘ 2005 2004 2003
NEtINCOME .ottt e e e Lo $37,369  $48,158  $11,989
Common shares outstanding:
Shares used in computing net income per common share-basic 30,084 30,843 30,594
Effect of potentially dilutive stock options and warrants ... ... 3,302 2,239 2,067
Shares used in computing net income per common share —
diluted ......... *‘ ......... 33,386 33,082 32,661
Net income per common share:
Basic. ..ot e $ 124 § 15 §$§ 039
Diluted .. ... e $ 112 § 146 § 037

Options to purchase 0.4 million and 1.6 million shares bf common stock outstanding during 2005 and
2004, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise

prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares, and therefore, the effect would
have been antidilutive.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Compalny’s average market price exceeded the market
trigger price of the Company’s contingently convertible debt instrument and as such, the computation of
diluted earnings per share includes approximately 0.6 million shares, related to the convertible debt
instrument (see Note 9 for additional information). !

Foreign Currency Translation and Comprehensive (Loss) Income. The functional currency of the
Company’s operations outside of the United States is the local country’s currency. Consequently, assets
and liabilities of operations outside the United States are translated into dollars using exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing
during the period. Cumulative translation gains and losses are reported in accumulated other
comprehensive (loss) income. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the only
component of other comprehensive loss is the net foreign currency translation, which was $(0.1) million,
($0.1) million and $0.1 million, respectively. ‘

Guarantees. In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 435, Guarantor’s Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others
(“FIN No. 45”). FIN No. 45 requires that a guarantor recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken by issuing the guarantee. FIN No. 45 also requires
additional disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees it has issued. Certain of the Company’s sales agreements contain
infringement indemnity provisions that are covered by FIN No. 45. Under these sales agreements, the
Company agrees to defend and indemnify a customer in connection with infringement claims made by
third parties with respect to the customer’s authorized use of the Company’s products and services. The
indemnity obligations contained in sales agreements generally have no specified expiration date and
generally limit the award to the amount of fees paid. The Company has not previously incurred costs to
settle claims or pay awards under these indemnification obligations. Also, the Company maintains
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

membership in a group captive insurance company for its workers compensation insurance. The member
companies agree to jointly insure the group’s liability risks up to a certain threshold. As a member, the
Company guarantees to pay an assessment, if an assessment becomes due, as a result of insured losses by
its members. This guarantee will never exceed a percentage of the Company’s loss funds (an amount that
is based on the Company’s insured five-year loss history). The Company issues a letter of credit to the
group captive insurance company as security for potential assessments and to meet any surplus needs. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had outstanding letters of credit to the group captive
insurance company amounting to approximately $1.8 million and $1.5 million, respectively. As a result, the
Company’s estimated fair value of the infringement indemnity provision obligations and the captive
insurance guarantee is nominal.

Related Party Transactions. In November 2000, pursuant to the employment agreement between the
Company and Philip M. Pead, the Company’s Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and
President, the Company entered into a promissory note agreement with Mr. Pead for $250,000. This
amount is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2005 and 2004. The loan is secured by an aggregate of 74,000 shares of Common Stock,
which Mr. Pead purchased in the open market with the proceeds of the note, and is payable in full upon
the earlier to occur of the termination of Mr. Pead’s employment or the sale of all or any part of those
shares. Any overdue payment on the loan bears interest at a rate equal to the rate of interest then imputed
by the Internal Revenue Service plus 4% per annum, or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is
lower. Because the shares were purchased in the open market by Mr. Pead, and the note only bears
interest in the event of an overdue payment, the Company did not record any compensation expense
associated with this arrangement at inception, and has not recorded any compensation expense‘in any
subsequent period.

2. Other Expenses
Binding Avbitration

On March 10, 2006, the Company concluded binding arbitration for a claim of breach of contract
arising from an acquisition completed in 2000. The binding arbitration resulted in an award to be paid by
Per-Se of approximately $1.3 million, including interest of $0.3 million. The Company included the award
in Other Expenses and the interest in Interest Expense in the Company’s 2005 Consolidated Statement of
Income. In Note 18, the costs associated with the award are classified in the Corporate segment.

NDCHealth Transition

On August 29, 2005, Per-Se and NDCHealth Corporation (“NDCHealth”) announced that they had
signed definitive agreements for the acquisition of NDCHealth, a leading provider of healthcare technology
and information solutions by Per-Se. The transaction was completed on January 6, 2006 (for more
information about the Company’s acquisition of NDCHealth, refer to “Note 19 — Subsequent Events”).
The Company recorded integration costs related to the NDCHealth acquisition totaling approximately
$74,000 during the year ended December 31, 2003, and included these costs in other expenses in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. In Note 18, these expenses are classified in the Corporate
segment.

Additional Procedures

As a result of allegations of improprieties made during 2003 and 2004, the Company’s external
auditors advised the Company and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors that additional
procedures should be performed related to the allegations. These additional procedures were required due
to Statement of Auditing Standards No. 99, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit, that
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

became effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2002. Due to the volume and, in some
cases, vague nature of many of the allegations, the scope of the additional procedures was broad and
extensive. The additional procedures included the review of| certain of the Company’s revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities accounts for the years 2001 through 2003. '

The Company recorded costs related to the additional procedures totaling approximately $6.3 million
during the year ended December 31, 2004, and included th;se costs in other expenses in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income. In Note 18, these expenses are classified in the Corporate segment.

Gain on Settlement with Lloyd’s ‘]

On May 10, 2004, the Company reached a settlement with the Company’s former insurance carrier,
Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London (collectively “Lloyd’s). On July 7, 2004, pursuant to the
settlement, as amended, Lloyd’s paid the Company $16.2 million in cash. As of the payment date, the
Company had an approximately $14.7 million receivable from Lloyd’s and recognized a gain of
approximately $1.5 million on the settlement for the year eﬁded December 31, 2004,

Executive Office Relocation |

On July 30, 2004, the Company relocated its principal executive office to Alpharetta, Georgia. The
Company entered into a noncancelable operating lease for that office space commencing July 1, 2004,
which will expire in July 2014. While the new landlord will assume the payments for the lease of the
Company’s former corporate office space, the Company recorded a non-cash expense related to the lease
expense of approximately $1.0 million upon its exit of the f?rmer office facility. Amounts received from
the landlord are considered incentives, which were recorded)as a liability and are being amortized over the
lease term. |

i
Other |

In 2003, the Company recorded net expenses of $0.8 million for severance costs and restructuring
expenses related to the realignment of the Company into the Physician Solutions and Hospital Solutions
divisions. !

|
3. Acquisitions |

On December 1, 2005, the Company acquired privately held Integra Solutions (“Integra™), a hospital
revenue cycle management outsourcing firm located in Norcross, Georgia, for a purchase price of
approximately $10.8 million. The Company paid approximately $3.4 million of the purchase price at
closing and will pay the remaining purchase price of approxi}nately $5.4 million at the one-year
anniversary. In addition, if Integra achieves certain revenue objectives over the first two years, the
Company will pay an additional purchase price amount of approximately $3.8 million. Since the amount is
contingent, the additional purchase price is not included in the Company’s December 31, 2005,
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Integra Solutions offers a comprehensive suite of services designed to help
healthcare providers improve their bottom line results. This includes a full range of outsourcing options,
from health information and patient accounting management consulting to auditing and accounts
receivable services. The Company currently provides outsourbing services to more than 80 hospitals, and
Integra will be a key component of its outsourcing growth strategy in the hospital market.

The Company recorded the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, has
preliminarily allocated the purchase price to the assets acquifed and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair market value at the date of acquisition. Approximately $2.0 million of the purchase price
was allocated to client lists and other with a four to seven-ye‘iar life, approximately $0.9 million was
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allocated to a developed technology with a five-year life and approximately $5.9 million of the purchase
price was allocated to indefinite lived intangible assets. The remaining $1.7 million of the purchase price
was allocated to tangible assets acquired. The operating results of the acquisition are included in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income from the date of acquisition in the Hospital Solutions
division.

The pro-forma impact of this acquisition was immaterial to the financial statements of the 'Company
and therefore has not been presented.

On May 28, 2004, the Company entered into a five-year contract to provide print and mail services
for a new customer. As part of the transaction, the Company purchased substantially all of the production
assets and personnel of that customer’s hospital and physician patient statement and paper claims print and
mail business for cash consideration of approximately $1.1 million. In addition, the Company recorded
acquisition liabilities of approximately $1.0 million associated with the transaction.

The Company recorded the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly,
allocated the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
market value at the date of acquisition. Approximately $1.9 million of the purchase price was allocated to a
finite-lived intangible asset with a five-year life. The remaining $0.2 million of the purchase price was
allocated to tangible assets acquired. The operating results of the acquisition are included in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income from the date of acquisition in the Hospital Solutions division.

The pro forma impact of this acquisition was immaterial to the financial statements of the Company
and therefore has not been presented.

4. Discontinued Operations and Divestitures

In June 2003, the Company announced that it agreed to sell Patientl to Misys Healthcare Systems, a
division of Misys plc (“Misys”) for $30 million in cash. Patientl was the Company’s only clinical product
line, and its sale allowed the Company to better focus on optimizing reimbursement and improving
administrative efficiencies for physician practices and hospitals. The sale was completed on July 28, 2003,
and the Company recognized a gain on the sale of Patient! of approximately $10.4 million, net of taxes of
approximately $0.5 million, subject to closing adjustments. Net proceeds on the sale of Patientl were
approximately $27.9 million, subject to closing adjustments. The Company and Misys entered into binding
arbitration regarding the final closing adjustments, and on May 21, 2004, the arbitrator awarded the
Company approximately $4.3 million. On June 1, 2004, the Company received payment of approximately
$4.5 million, which included interest of approximately $0.2 million. The Company recognized an additional
gain on sale of approximately $3.8 million, net of taxes of approximately $0.2 million, in 2004. In
December 2005, the Company determined that payment was not required on a Patientl tax liability that
was not included in the sale to Misys. Therefore, the approximately $0.4 million liability was reversed and
recognized as income in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Income.

In September 2003, the Company initiated a process to sell Businessl. As with the sale of Patientl,
the discontinuance of Business! allowed the Company to focus resources on solutions that provide
meaningful, strategic returns for the Company, its customers and its shareholders. Pursuant to
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS No. 144”), the
Company wrote down the net assets of Businessl to fair market value, less costs to sell, and incurred an
$8.5 million expense. The Company completed the sale of Businessl effective January 31, 2004, to a
privately held company for $0.6 million. No cash consideration was received at closing and the Company
has not recognized proceeds on the sale. The Company does not anticipate receiving payment for the sale
of Businessl, however, the sale improved the Company’s profitability and cash flow.
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1
Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, the consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
presented to reflect Patient! and Business] as discontinued operations for all periods presented.
Summarized operating results for the discontinued operations are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003
Patientl Businessl | Total Patient1 Business1 Total
% (in thousands)
Revenue ..................... $§ — $ 106 1 $ 106 815247 § 474 $15721
Loss from discontinued operations }
before income taxes.......... $(18) $(303) $(321) §(1,270) $(3,589) $(4,859)

Income tax expense......... c — — ‘ — 46 — 46
|
|

Loss from discontinued f
operations, net of tax......... $(18) $(303)‘i $(321) $(1,316) $(3,589) §(4,905)

1
There were no assets and liabilities for the discontinued operations at December 31, 2005, and 2004.
|

In October of 2001, the Company received $1.0 million in cash from the buyer of the government
division of Impact when the term of the purchase agreement escrow expired. This amount was recorded as
a component of discontinued operations. In May of 2001, the Company received an insurance settlement
related to a matter filed against the commercial division of Impact of approximately $3.0 million, which
was recorded as a component of discontinued operations. The Company continues to pursue claims against
a former vendor of this division for damages incurred in this matter.

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company also incurred expenses of
approximately $20,000, $14,000 and $0.9 million, respectively, which were primarily legal costs, associated
with MSC and Impact. Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, the consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been presented to reflect the activity associated with MSC and Impact as discontinued operations for
all periods presented. ‘

The net operating results of these segments have been reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Income as “Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — Other” and the net cash flows have been
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as “Net cash used for discontinued operations.”

5. Restructuring Expenses

In early 1995, the Company initiated a reengineering program focused upon its billing and accounts
receivable management operations (the “Reengineering Project”). As part of the Physician Solutions
Restructuring Plan, the Company recorded restructuring reserves in 1995 through 1996. In 1996, the
Company abandoned its Reengineering Project. The Compaﬂny periodically reevaluates the adequacy of the
reserves established for the Physician Solutions Restructuring Plan. In 1997 and 1999 the Company
recorded an additional expense of $1.7 million and $0.3 million, respectively, for lease termination costs.

A description of the type and amount of restructuring ¢osts, recorded at the commitment date and
subsequently incurred for the restructurings discussed above, is as follows:

Reserve Costs - Reserve "~ Costs Reserve Costs Reserve

v

Balance Paid or Balance . Paid or Balance Paid or Balance
January 1, Otherwise ~ December 31, : Otherwise December 31,  Otherwise December 31,
2003 Settled 2003 . Settled 2004 Settled 2005

(in thousands)

Lease termination 1
COStS . oo v $1,980 $(550) $1,430 -‘ $(326) $1,104 $(297) $807
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The terminated leases have various expiration dates through 2011. The estimated lease termination
costs to be incurred within the next 12 months are classified in accrued expenses in the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The estimated lease termination costs to be incurred beyond the next
12 months are classified in other obligations in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:
As of December 31,

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Land ... $ 406 § 590
Buildings . ... ... 2,751 2,751
Furniture and fXtUIes .. ... ot 14,936 14,876
Equipment ....... ... . . e 105,212 106,539
Equipment under capital leases ........ ... ... .. . i 711 625
Leaschold improvements .. . . ...... ... 6,797 6,250

130,813 131,631
Less accumulated depreciation . ...... ...t (113,970)  (116,119)

$ 16,843 § 15,512

7. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following:

As of As of
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Estimated Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Useful Life Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Goodwill ................... Indefinite $ 44,707 $ (6,508) $ 39,057 $ (6,508)
Client lists ... ...ooovnnn. .. 5-10 years 48,052 (42,795) 46,181 (39,305)
Developed technology......... 5 years 5,486 (4,319) 4,616 (3,229)
Trademarks ................. Indefinite 1,586 — 1,316 —
Software development costs.... 5 years 31,914 (18,121) 25,794 (14,589)
Other ...................... 1 year 150 {(7) — —

$131,895 $(71,750) $116,964  $(63,631)

On December 1, 2005, the Company acquired Integra for a purchase price of approximately
$10.8 million. The Company paid approximately $5.4 million of the purchase price at closing and will pay
the remaining purchase price of approximately $5.4 million at the one-year anniversary. In addition, if
Integra achieves certain revenue objectives over the first two years, the Company will pay an additional
purchase price amount of approximately $3.8 million. Since the amount is contingent, the additional
purchase price is not included in the Company’s December 31, 2005, Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
Company recorded the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, has
preliminarily allocated the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair market value at the date of acquisition. Approximately $2.0 million of the purchase price
was allocated to client lists and other with a four to seven-year life, approximately $0.9 million was
allocated to a developed technology with a five-year life and approximately $5.9 million of the purchase
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price was allocated to indefinite lived intangible assets. The remammg $1.7 million of the purchase price
was allocated to tangible assets acquired. }

On May 28, 2004, the Company entered into a ﬁve-yeér contract to provide print and mail services
for a new customer. As part of the transaction, the Company purchased substantially all of the production
assets and personnel of that customer’s hospital and physician patient statement and paper claims print and
mail. The Company recorded the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly,
allocated the purchase price to the assets acquired and llabﬂltles assumed based on their estimated fair
market value at the date of acquisition. Approximately $1. 9\ million of the purchase price was allocated to
a finite-lived intangible asset with a five-year life.

Expenditures on capitalized software development costé were approximately $6.1 million, $6.7 million
and $4.0 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Amortization expense related to the Company’s
capitalized software costs totaled $3.5 million, $2.6 million énd $2.1 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The unamortized balance of software development costs at December 31, 2005, and 2004 was
$13.8 million and $11.2 million, respectively. The Companyiamortizes software development costs using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of tf}e assets, which are generally three to five
years.

The acquisition related intangible asset amortization exbense estimated as of December 31, 2003, for
the five years following 2005 and thereafter is as follows (in‘g thousands):

2006 ... e $1.823
2007 .« oo PP 1,326
2008 .+ e 1,273
2000 . R 1,055
2000 « oo e 835
Thereafter \ ............................ 235

| $6,567

8. Accrued Expenses

. . |
Accrued expenses consist of the following: |

As of December 31,

‘i 2005 2004

| {in thousands)
Accrued restructuring and severance costs, current . . . .................. $ 232§ 262
Accrued legal and accounting costs .. ............... e 1,653 3,494
Accrued legal settlements . ...... .. ... ... ... .. e 944 400
Accrued taXes . ... .................. 887 1,301
Accrued interest . ......... ... b 312 4
Funds due clients . .......... .. .. b 3,117 3,107
Accrued costs — businesses acquired . .............. ................. 5,485 502
(o] 1S T S 4,372 5,558

$17,002  $14,628
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9. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:
As of December 31,

2005 " 2004
(in thousands)
3.25% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2024 .. ............... $125,000 $125,000
Capital lease obligations, weighted average effective interest rate of 1.6%
and 3.1% in 2005 and 2004, respectively............ ... ... ..o 625 625
125,625 125,625
Less current pOrtion. . ..ottt et ettt e e e (135) (98)

$125,490  $125,527

On February 20, 1998, the Company issued $175 million of 9'. Senior Notes due 2005 (the
“Notes”). On March 17, 2003, the Company repurchased $15.0 million of the Notes at par plus accrued
interest of approximately $0.1 million. The Company wrote off approximately $0.2 million of deferred debt
issuance costs associated with the original issuance of the Notes related to this repurchase, which is
included in loss on extinguishment of debt in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Income for the
year ended December 31, 2003.

On August 12, 2003, the Company commenced a cash tender offer for its then outstanding
$160 million of Notes (the “Tender Offer”). On September 11, 2003, the Company repurchased
$143.6 million of the Notes that were tendered at the redemption price of 102.625% of the principal
amount, as required under the Indenture governing the Notes, and accrued interest of approximately
$1.0 million. The remaining $16.4 million of the Notes were retired on September 18, 2003, through a call
initiated by the Company on August 12, 2003, at the redemption price of 102.375% of the principal
amount plus accrued interest of approximately $10,000 (the “Call”). The Company wrote-off
approximately $1.4 million of deferred issuance costs associated with the original issuance of the Notes
related to their retirement through the Tender Offer and the Call, which are included in loss on
extinguishment of debt in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. In addition, the Company
incurred expenses associated with the retirement of the Notes of approximately $4.7 million, including the
Tender Offer premium and the Call premium which are also included in loss on extinguishment of debt in
the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

On September 11, 2003, the Company entered into a $175 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”), consisting of a $125 million Term Loan B (the “Term Loan B”) and a $50 million
revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”). The Company had approximately $118.8 million
outstanding under the Term Loan B as of June 30, 2004, under a LIBOR-based interest contract bearing
interest at 5.36%. The Company has had no borrowings outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility
since its inception.

On June 30, 2004, the Company issued $125 million aggregate principal amount of 3.25% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures due 2024 (the “Debentures™) to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to
Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. As originally issued, the Debentures were
convertible into shares of the Company’s Common Stock at an initial conversion rate of 56.0243 shares per
$1,000 principal amount (a conversion price of approximately $17.85) once the Company’s Common
Stock share price reaches 130% of the conversion price, or a share price of approximately $23.20. In
November 2004, the Company exercised its irrevocable option to pay, when due, the principal of
Debentures submitted for conversion in cash rather than shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The
Company will satisfy any amount above the conversion trigger price of $17.85 through the issuance of
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|
Common Stock. The Debentures mature on June 30, 2024, and are unsecured. Interest on the Debentures
is payable semiannually at the rate of 3.25% per annum on June 30 and December 30 of each year,
beginning on December 30, 2004. The Company may redeer:n the Debentures either in whole or in part
beginning July 6, 2009. The holders may require the Company to repurchase the Debentures on June 30,
2009, 2014, and 2019 or upon a fundamental change, as dcﬁ:ned in the Indenture governing the
Debentures. The Company used the proceeds from issuance of the Debentures, together with cash on
hand, to retire the $118.8 million outstanding under the Term Loan B, as well as to repurchase, for
approximately $25 million, an aggregate of approximately 2.0 million shares of the Company’s outstanding
common stock, at the market price of $12.57 per share, in negotiated transactions concurrently with the
Debentures offering. In addition, the Company incurred expenses associated with the retirement of the
Term Loan B of approximately $5.9 million, which included;the write-off of approximately $3.5 million of
deferred debt issuance costs, and which is classified as loss o‘n extinguishment of debt in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income. |

On June 30, 2004, the Company also amended the Revblving Credit Facility to increase its capacity
from $50 million to $75 million, to extend its maturity to three years, and to lower the interest rate from
LIBOR plus amounts ranging from 3.0% to 3.5% to LIBOR |plus amounts ranging from 2.5% to 3.0%. The
Company is required to pay an annual commitment fee of 0.5% of the unused capacity related to the
Revolving Credit Facility. The Company did not incur any borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility
in connection with the retirement of the Term Loan B or thé share repurchase. The Company intends to
use the Revolving Credit Facility, as needed, for future 1nvcstmcnts in operations, including capital
expenditures, strategic acquisitions, to secure its letters of credlt as needed, and other general corporate
purposes. The Company has not incurred any borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2005.

All obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a
senior secured basis, jointly and severally by all of the Company’s present and future domestic and
material foreign subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Guarantors™). The financial statements of the Subsidiary
Guarantors have not been presented, as all subsidiaries, except for certain minor foreign subsidiaries, have
provided guarantees, and the parent company does not have jany significant operations or assets separate
from its investment in those subsidiaries. Any non-guarantor subsidiaries are minor individually and in the
aggregate to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. There are no restrictions on the Subsidiary
Guarantors that would prohibit the transfer of funds or assets to the parent company by dividend or loan.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains financial and other restrictive covenants, including, without
limitation, those restricting additional indebtedness, lien creation, dividend payments, asset sales and stock
offerings, and those requiring a minimum net worth, maximum leverage and minimum fixed charge
coverage, each as defined in the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company was in compliance with all

applicable covenants as of December 31, 2005. i

| . .
The Company’s policy is to amortize debt issuance costs using the straight-line method over the life
of the debt agreement. Amortization expense related to debt'issuance costs on the Notes, the Revolving
Credit Facility, Credit Agreement and the Debentures for the years ended 2005, 2004, and 2003 were

$1.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.5 million, respectively. ‘
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The aggregate maturities of long-term debt, including capital leases, are as follows at December 31,
2005 (in thousands):

2006 . e $ 135
2007 . 138
2008 143
2000 L. 147
2000 o 62
Thereal T . o 125,000

$125,625

The Company’s capital leases consist principally of leases for equipment. As of December 31, 2005,
the net book value of equipment subject to capital leases totaled $0.6 million.

10. Lease Commitments

The Company leases office space and equipment under noncancelable operating leases, which expire
at various dates through 2016. The Company’s operating leases generally have one to three year terms with
renewal options and may contain customary rent holidays, rent concessions or leasehold improvement
incentives. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, including, when
applicable, rent holidays, rent concessions and leasehold improvement incentives. Rent expense was
$14.2 million, $14.1 million and $14.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

2006 . . $12,028
2007 o 9,726
2008 8,038
2000 7,197
2000 L 5,805
Thereafter ... 16,422

$359,216

11. Legal Matters
Pending Legal Matters

The Company is subject to claims, litigation and official billing inquiries arising in the ordinary course
of its business. These matters include, but are not limited to, lawsuits brought by former customers with
respect to the operation of the Company’s business, The Company has also received written demands from
customers and former customers that have not resulted in legal action. Within the Company’s industry,
federal and state civil and criminal laws govern medical billing and collection activities. These laws provide
for various fines, penalties, multiple damages, assessments and sanctions for violations, including possible
exclusion from federal and state healthcare payer programs.

The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to the claims and other issues asserted in
pending legal matters; however, there can be no assurance that such matters or any future legal matters
will not have an adverse effect on the Company. Amounts of awards or losses, if any, in pending legal
matters have not been reflected in the financial statements unless probable and reasonably estimable.
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On March 10, 2006, the Company concluded binding z;lrbitration for a claim of breach of contract
arising from an acquisition completed in 2000. The binding iarbitration resulted in an award to be paid by
Per-Se of approximately $1.3 million, including interest of $0.3 million. The Company included the award
in Other Expenses and the interest in Interest Expense in the Company’s 2005 Consolidated Statement of
Income. In Note 18, the costs associated with the award are classified in the Corporate segment.

Settled Legal Matters

On May 10, 2004, the Company reached a settlement with the Company’s former insurance carrier,
Lloyd’s. In the settlement, Lloyd’s agreed to pay the Company $20 million in cash by July 9, 2004.
Lloyd’s also agreed to defend, settle or otherwise resolve, at.their expense, the two remaining pending
claims covered under the errors and omissions (“E&QO”) po}icies issued to the Company by Lloyd’s. In
exchange, the Company provided Lloyd’s with a full release’ of all E&QO and directors and officers and
company reimbursement (“D&O”) policies. The California ?Superior Court retained jurisdiction to enforce
any aspect of the settlement agreement. |

As of the settlement date, the Company had an $18.3 million receivable from Lloyd’s, of which
approximately $4.9 million represented additional amounts to be paid by the Company under prior
E&OQO settlements covered by Lloyd’s. Effective on May 12, 2004, as a result of negotiations among the
Company, Lloyd’s, and a party to a prior E&O settlement with the Company, the Lloyd’s settlement was
amended to reduce by $3.8 million the additional amounts tb be paid by the Company under the prior
E&O settlements covered by Lloyd’s. This amendment reduced the amount of cash payable by Lloyd’s to
the Company in the settlement from $20 million to $16.2 million, and reduced the amount of the
Company’s receivable from Lioyd’s by $3.8 million. On July, 7, 2004, pursuant to the settlement, as
amended, Lloyd’s paid the Company $16.2 million in cash. As of the payment date, the Company had an
approximately $14.7 million receivable from Lloyd’s and recognized a gain of approximately $1.5 million
on the settlement in the year ended December 31, 2004,

12.  Stockholders’ Rights Plan ?
On January 21, 1999, the Board approved a stockholders’ rights agreement (the “Rights
Agreement”’). Pursuant to the Rights Agreement, the Compjamy declared a dividend of one right for each
outstanding share of Common Stock to stockholders of record at the close of business on February 16,
1999, Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company a unit (a “Unit”) consisting
of one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, without par value, at a
purchase price of $75 per Unit, . !

Initially, the rights are deemed 1o be attached to certificates representing all outstanding shares of
Common Stock, and they are not represented by separate rights certificates. Subject to certain exceptions
specified in the Rights Agreement, the rights will separate from the Common Stock and become
exercisable upon the earlier to occur of (i) 10 business days following a public announcement that a
person or group of affiliated or associated persons (an “Acquiring Person”) has acquired beneficial
ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding Common Stock or (ii) 10 business days following the
commencement of a tender offer for the Common Stock.

In the event that a person becomes an Acquiring Person, except pursuant to an offer for all
outstanding shares of Common Stock that the independent directors of the Company determine to be fair
and otherwise in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders (after receiving advice from one or
more investment banking firms), each holder of a right will thereafter have the right to receive, upon
exercise, Common Stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, jprope:rty or other securities of the Company)
having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the right (i.e., $150 per Unit).
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Until a right is exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a stockholder of the
Company, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends. While the distribution of
the rights will not be taxable to stockholders or to the Company, stockholders may, depending upon the
circumstances, recognize taxable income in the event that the rights become exercisable for Common
Stock (or other consideration) of the Company, or for common stock of the acquiring company, or in the
event of the redemption of the rights as set forth above. As of December 31, 2005, and 2004, no rights
have become exercisable under this agreement.

On May 4, 2000, the Company amended the Rights Agreement to provide that the meaning of the
term “Acquiring Person” shall not include Basil P. Regan and Regan Partners, L.P. (collectively, “Regan
Fund Management”), so long as Regan Fund Management does not become the beneficial owner of 20%
or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. Effective March 6, 2002, the Company amended the
Rights Agreement to rescind the May 4, 2000, amendment, thereby making Regan Fund Management
subject to the 15% beneficial ownership threshold described above. On March 10, 2003, the Company
amended the Rights Agreement to provide that the term “Acquiring Person” shall not include ValueAct
Capital Partners, L.P. (“ValueAct Partners”), ValueAct Capital Partners II, L.P. (“ValueAct Part-
ners I1”), ValueAct Capital International, Ltd. (*ValueAct International””), VA Partners, L.L.C.

(“VA Partners”), Jeffrey W. Ubben, George F. Hamel, Jr., and Peter H. Kamin (ValueAct Partners,
ValueAct Partners II, ValueAct International, VA Partners and Messrs. Ubben, Hamel and Kamin, and
their affiliates, collectively, (“ValueAct), so long as ValueAct does not become the Beneficial Owner of
20% or more of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock. As of December 31, 2005, and 2004,
ValueAct was the beneficial owner of approximately 17.6% and 17.7%, respectively, of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock.

On February 18, 2005, the Company amended the Rights Agreement to remove Section 23{c)
thereof (the “slow hand” provision) in its entirety. Section 23(¢) previously provided that if, within
180 days of a public announcement by a third party of an intent or proposal to engage in an acquisition of
or business combination with the Company or otherwise to become an Acquiring Person theré was an
election of directors resulting in a majority of the Board being comprised of persons who were not
nominated by the Board in office immediately prior to such election, then following the effectiveness of
such election, the rights could not be redeemed for a period of 180 days unless (1) the rights were
otherwise then redeemable absent the provisions of paragraph 23(c) and (2) the Board fulfilled certain
specified procedural obligations.

This amendment also amended and restated Section 29 of the Rights Agreement to create a
three-year independent director evaluation (“TIDE”) Committee, consisting of independent members of
the Board, that will review and evaluate the Rights Agreement at least once every three years to consider
whether the maintenance of the Rights Agreement continues to be in the best interest of the Company, its
stockholders and other relevant constituencies of the Company. The TIDE Committee may also review
and evaluate the Rights Agreement if (1) any person has made an acquisition proposal to the Company or
its stockholders, or taken any other action that could cause such person to become an Acquiring Person,
and (2) a majority of the members of the TIDE Committee deems such review and evaluation appropriate
after giving due regard to all relevant circumstances.

On August 26, 2005, the Company and NDCHealth Corporation entered into an Agreement and Plan
of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) providing for the Company’s acquisition of NDCHealth
Corporation. Effective immediately prior to the execution of the Merger Agreement, the Company
amended the Rights Agreement with the purpose and intent of rendering the Rights Agreement
inapplicable to the transaction.
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13. Common Stock Options and Stock Awards ;

The Company has several stock option plans including a‘} Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, a
Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employces of Acquireg Companices and a Non-Qualified Stock
Option Plan for Non-Executive Employees. Options expire ten to eleven years after the date of grant and
generally vest over a three-to-five year period. The total number of options available for future grant under
these stock option plans was approximately 0.8 million at December 31, 2005.

The Company also has a Non-Qualified Non—Employee1 Director Stock Option Plan (the “Director
Plan”) for non-employees who serve on the Company’s Board of Directors. The Director Plan provides for
an initial grant of 10,000 options at a strike price equal to the average of the fair market values for the five
trading days prior to the date of the grant. Additionally, each non-employee director receives an annual
grant of 10,000 options at each subsequent annual meeting in which the non-employee director is a
member of the Board of Directors. All options granted under the Director Plan originally vested over a
five-year period and expired eleven years from the date of grant. On April 1, 1999, the Director Plan was
amended so that all future options granted under the Director Plan fully vest as of the date of grant but
are not exercisable until one year after the date of grant. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had
108,539 options available for future grant under this plan.

In June of 1999, in connection with the settlement withithe former shareholders of Medical
Management Sciences, Inc., the Company issued warrants to purchase 166,667 shares of Common Stock.

These warrants expired unexercised on June 25, 2004.

&
Activity related to all stock option plans is summarized as follows (shares in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
Weighted-Average . Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding as ’
of January 1 ........ 6,384 $10.19 6,635 $ 8.94 7,319 $ 8.36
Granted .............. 220 $17.39 1,532 $14.15 685 $11.66
Exercised ............. (1,187) $ 7.77 (1,003) $ 7.38 (1,159) $ 6.87
Canceled ............. (231) $13.76 (580) $11.16 (210) $ 8.84
\
Options outstanding as {
of December 31 ... .. 5,386 $10.86 6,584 $10.19 6,635 $ 8.94
Options exercisable as of
December 31........ 3,590 $ 9.82 3,731 $ 9.16 3,838 $ 9.31
Weighted-average fair
value of options }
granted during the |
Vear .. ... ... $ 6.92 $ 5.50 $ 5.25
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2005 (shares in thousands):

Options Qutstanding

Weighted- Options Exercisable

Number Average Weighted- Number Weighted-
Outstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Average
December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices 2005 Life (yvears) Price 2005 Price
$3.75t0%6.25 ... ... 879 6.10 $ 5.90 758 $ 5.88
$6.64 t0 §7.53 ... ... .. 1,354 6.20 $ 7.10 1,113 $ 7.10
$7.63 to $12.70 ............. 1,060 7.25 $10.54 752 $§ 9.75
$12.92 1081402 ............ 816 8.96 $13.75 301 $13.62
$14.61 to $16.13 ............ 937 6.65 $15.54 486 $15.88
$16.14 1082934 ............ 339 7.05 $19.87 178 $20.77
$30.00..................... 1 1.49 $30.00 1 $30.00
$3.75 10 $30.00 ............. 5,386 6.95 $10.86 3,589 $ 9.82

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans under APB No. 25. As a result, the
Company has not recognized compensation expense for stock options granted to employees with an
exercise price equal to the quoted market price of the Common Stock on the date of grant and that vest
based solely on continuation of employment by the recipient of the option award. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 123 for disclosure purposes in 1996. For SFAS No. 123 purposes, the Company estimates the
fair value of each option grant as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003

Expected life (years) ...... ..o 34 4.5 5.0

Risk-free interest rate . . ... .. ... ... i i 390 3.60% 3.00%
Dividend rate . ... 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility. ... ... 47.31% 54.31% 53.05%

Per-Se has never paid cash dividends on its Common Stock. The Credit Agreement entered into on
September 11, 2003, as amended, contains restrictions on the Company’s ability to declare or pay cash
dividends on its Common Stock.

14. Deferred Stock Unit Plan

Effective October 1, 2001, and approved by the stockholders at the annual meeting held on May 2,
2002, the Board of Directors adopted the Per-Se Technologies, Inc. Deferred Stock Unit Plan (the
“Plan”). The purpose of the Plan is to further align the interests of the Company’s non-employee directors
and a select group of key employees of the Company (and its affiliates) with the interests of stockholders
by encouraging additional ownership of the Common Stock. The Plan also provides the participants with
an opportunity to defer taxation of income in consideration of the valuable services that they provide to the
Company. Non-employee directors of the Company are automatically eligible to participate in the Plan.
The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors may select key employees of the Company from
time to time as eligible participants. Currently, seven non-employee directors and six executives (including
two employee directors) are eligible to participate in the Plan.

Pursuant to the Plan, a non-employee director may elect to defer up to 100% of his Board and
committee meeting fees and his annual retainer each year. Eligible employees may elect each vear to defer
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up to 50% of their annual incentive bonus and receive an enhancement bonus equal to $0.25 for each
dollar of compensation deferred. The Compensation Committee may also from time to time in its sole
discretion designate such other enhancement bonus contribu;tions as it deems appropriate. The cash
amount of such deferrals and, in the case of employee participants, the enhancement bonuses will be
converted to stock units, by dividing the amount to be deferred, plus any enhancement bonus, by the fair
market value of the Common Stock on the date the amounts are credited to the participant’s account.

Participants are always fully vested in the stock units cénverted from deferrals of compensation.
However, stock units that are converted from an enhancement bonus credited to an employee participant,
and any related dividend equivalent stock units, will vest at the rate of 20% each year over a period of five
years from the date of deferral of the related compensation. 'If a participant’s employment is terminated for
“cause” (as defined in the Plan) or if he or she resigns without “good reason” (as defined in the Plan)
before the enhancement bonus stock units are vested, he or she will forfeit any such unvested stock units.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, and 2004, thej\Plan purchased a total of 11,193 shares and
19,925 shares, respectively, of the Company’s Common Stock at a total cost of approximately $0.4 million
and $0.3 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2005, and 2004, the Plan distributed a
total of 40,023 shares and 7,672 shares, respectively. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 97-14,
Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements Where Amounts Earned Are Held in a Rabbi Trust
and Invested, the shares purchased and the Company’s obligétion are reflected as treasury stock and
deferred compensation obligation, respectively, in the financial statements.

|
15. Income Taxes ‘

Income tax (benefit) expense aitributable to continuingloperations comprises the following:

For the Year Ended December 31,
! 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Current: \
Federal . ..o L $§ 569 $ 83 $ (701)
SHALE . . v v et - 316 (82) 728
Foreign ..... .. o i L 8 13 —
893 14 27
Deferred: 1 :
Federal .. ......... oo o 13,183 1,485 6,624
State ... Lo 2,178 879 10,869
Valuation benefit................. ... .. ... ... .. .. Lo (17,540)  (30,479)  (17,493)

: (2,179)  (28,115) —

Income tax (benefit) expense atiributable to continuing
OPETATIONS . . oo v e et i 8 (1,286) $(28,101) 8 27
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A reconciliation between the amount determined by applying the federal statutory rate to income

before income taxes and income tax (benefit) expense is as follows:
For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Income tax expense at federal statutory rate ............... $ 12484 % 5858 % 35,566
State taxes, net of federal benefit ........................ 1,936 825 480
Change In tax rates. .. ...ovvv et i, 552 (4,428) 10,869
Valuation allowance ............c it (17,540)  (30,479) (17,493
Expiration of net operating losses and credits .............. 1,219 — —
Other .. 63 123 605

$ (1,286) $(28,101) $ 27

Deferred taxes are recorded based upon differences between the financial statement and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and available tax credit carryforwards. The components of deferred taxes at
December 31, 2005, and 2004, are as follows:

As of December 31,

2005 2004
(in thousands)

Current:
Accounts receivable, unbilled . ........ ... ... $ (100) S 91
ACCTUEA CXPEIISES .« o v vt vt ettt i a e e e et e 4,627 5,336
Net operating loss carryforwards ...........c.coviiiiiiiiinnn .. 14,616 12,799
Valuation allowance . ....... ... o i e (16,781) (15,955)
O e . 1,694 1,175
$§ 4056 § 3,264
Noncurrent:
Net operating loss carryforwards ........... .. .. i, $ 129,278 % 138,512
Valuation allowance ... ... ...t i e e (108,537)  (121,473)
Depreciation and amortization . ......... ..ot 3,033 7,316
L@ /=T 13 J L 861 485
O her . o . 1,603 11

$ 26,238 § 24,851

The 2004 current and non-current deferred tax asset balances have been reclassified to conform to the
2005 presentation. This reclassification resulted in a $9.5 million reduction of the previously reported 2004
current deferred tax asset and a corresponding $9.5 million increase to the non-current deferred tax asset.
This reclassification resulted from a reallocation of the valuation allowance between current and non-
current deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had alternative minimum tax (“AMT”) credits of
approximately $0.9 million that may be carried forward indefinitely as a credit against regular tax liability.
In addition, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) for income tax purposes
of approximately $375.4 million, which consist of $346.8 million of consolidated NOLs and $28.6 million
of separate return limitation year NOLs. Of the $375.4 million of NOLs available, $105.1 million relate to
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non-qualified s)tock option deductions. When realized, the resulting benefits of those deductions will be
credited to stockholder’s equity. The NOLs will expire at various dates from 2006 through 2024 as follows:

\ Amounts

I Expiring

i‘ (in millions)
2006 10 2007 . ..ot $ 20.6
2008 10 2010 . ..ot 69.1
2011 10 2014 . . oo 136.1
2015102024 . ... R 149.6
1 $375.4

In addition to the NOL’s above, the Company’s state net operating loss carryforwards at
December 31, 2005, for income tax purposes was approx1mately $298.5 million. These NOL’s will expire
at various dates from 2006 through 2024.

Prior to 2004, the Company had a full valuation al]owailce against its deferred tax asset due to the
uncertainty regarding its ability to generate sufficient future taxable income prior to the expiration of its
NOLs. In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company reassessed the valuation allowance previously
established and determined that it was more likely than not ‘that a portion of the deferred tax asset would
be realized in the foreseeable future. This determination was based upon the Company’s projection of
taxable income for 2005 and 2006. As a result, the Company released a portion of the allowance resulting
in an income tax benefit of §28.1 million for 2004. The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
decreased by $12.1 million in 2005, primarily due to the utilization of NOLs to offset current taxable
income. Approximately $2.2 million of the $12.1 million decrease relates to an additional release of the
valuation allowance in the fourth quarter of 2005 based upon the Company’s projection of taxable income
for 2006 and 2007. The Company will continue to assess the' potential realization of the remaining deferred
tax asset, and will adjust the valuation allowance in future periods, as appropriate. Approximately
$37.0 million of the total valuation allowance of $125.3 million at December 31, 2003, relates to
non-qualified stock option deductions. The Company will continue to release its valuation allowance as a
benefit to continuing operations until only the stock option benefit remains. Any release of valuation
allowance related to stock option benefit will be recorded to “Stockholders’ Equity.

16. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has various defined contribution plans whereby employees meeting certain eligibility
requirements can make specified contributions to the plans. The Company matches a percentage of the
employee contributions. The Company’s contribution expensc‘\ was $2.2 million, $2.1 million and
$1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

17. Cash Flow Information

|
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information and non-cash investing and financing activities are
as follows: ‘
i 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Additions to capital lease obligations ............... ... ... ... $ — $ 625 § —

Liabilities assumed in acquisitions ................. b 241 947 —
Cash paid for: :

Interest . ... P 4,518 5,686 18,296

Extinguishment of debt .......................... S — 6,378 5,412

Income taxes .............. i PO 626 640 565
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18. Segment Reporting

The Company’s reportable segments are operating units that offer different services and products.
Per-Se provides its services and products through its two operating divisions: Physician Solutions and
Hospital Solutions. Both operating divisions generate approximately 100% of their revenue in the U.S.

The Physician Solutions division provides Connective Healthcare services and solutions that manage
the revenue cycle for physician groups. The division is the largest provider of business management
outsourced services that supplant all or most of the administrative functions of a physician group. The
target market is primarily hospital-affiliated physician groups in the specialties of radiology, anesthesiology,
emergency medicine and pathology as well as physician groups practicing in the academic setting and
other large physician groups. The division recognizes revenue primarily on a contingency fee basis, which
aligns the division’s interests with the interests of the physician groups it services. The outsourced services
business recognizes revenue as a percentage of the physician group’s cash collections for the services
performed. Since this is an outsourced service delivered on the Company’s proprietary technology, license
fees or maintenance fees are not required to be paid by the division’s hospital-affiliated physician groups.
The division also sells a physician practice management (“PPM”) solution that is delivered via an
ASP model. The PPM solution collects a monthly usage fee from the office-based physician practices
using the system. The division’s revenue model is 100% recurring in nature due to the transaction-based
nature of its fee revenue in the outsourced services business and the monthly usage fee in the PPM
business. The business of the Physician Solutions division is conducted by PST Services, Inc. a Georgia
corporation d/b/a “Per-Se Technologies,” which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Hospital Solutions division provides Connective Healthcare solutions designed to increase revenue
and decrease expenses for hospitals, with a focus on revenue cycle management and resource management.
The division’s revenue cycle management solutions enable a hospital’s central billing office to improve its
revenue cycle. The division has one of the largest clearinghouses in the medical industry, which provides
an important infrastructure to support its revenue cycle offering. The division also provides resource
management solutions that enable hospitals efficiently to manage resources, such as personnel and the
operating room, to reduce costs and improve their bottom line. The division primarily recognizes revenue
on a per-transaction basis for its revenue cycle management solutions and primarily recognizes revenue on
a percentage-of-completion basis or upon software shipment for sales of its resource management software
solutions. Approximately 90% of the division’s revenue is recurring due to its transaction-based business
and the maintenance revenue from its substantial installed base for the revenue cycle management and
resource management software solutions. The business of the Hospital Solutions division is conducted by
the following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company: Per-Se Transaction Services, Inc., an Ohio
corporation; Patient Account Management Services, Inc., an Ohio corporation; PST Products, LLC, a
California limited liability company; and Knowledgeable Healthcare Solutions, Inc., an Alabama
corporation. All of these subsidiaries do business under the name “Per-Se Technologies.”

The Company evaluates each segment’s performance based on its segment operating income. Segment
operating income is revenue less cost of services, selling, general and administrative expenses and other
expenses.

The Hospital Solutions segment revenue includes intersegment revenue for services provided to the
Physician Solutions segment, which are shown as Eliminations to reconcile to total consolidated revenue.
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The Company’s segment information from continuing operations is as follows:

‘ For the Year Ended December 31,
! 2005 2004 2003
{in thousands)

Revenue: |
Physician Solutions . . ............ ...l $274,576  $260,473  $251,251
HospitalSolutions..............................j ..... 112,282 105,923 97,240
Eliminations. . ................ ... ... ... ... I (14,140) (13,605)  (13,322)

‘ $372,718  $352,791  $335,169

Segment operating expenses:

Physician Solutions . . .......................... ..., $243,231  $232907  $221,895

Hospital Solutions . ............................. R 87,915 82,600 74,671
Corporate .. ... 15,610 21,9355 15,417
EliMInations . . ... oottt e e e (14,140)  (13,605)  (13,322)

| $332,616  $323,857  $298,661

Segment operating income:

Physician Solutions . .. ........ ... .. .. . P $ 31,345 § 27,566 $ 29,356
Hospital Selutions . ............................. e 24,367 23,323 22,569
COTPOTALE .+« v v e v v - (15610)  (21,955)  (15,417)
‘ $ 40,102 $ 28,934 § 36,508
Interest EXPense. . ... cutt et $ 6,088 $ 6825 § 14,646
INEErest iNCOME - .. v .o oo e e . $ (1,655) $ (525) $  (297)
Loss on extinguishment of debt..................... e $ — $ 589 § 6,255
Income before income taxes ............oovvunuin.. L $ 35669 § 16,738 $ 15,904
Depreciation and amortization:
Physician Solutions.............. .. .. ........... coo.o 8 8092 9331 $ 10475
Hospital Solutions.............................. R 6,492 5,661 5,270
COTPOrate . ..o et e 369 464 764
$ 14953  § 1545 § 16,509
Capital expenditures and capitalized software development tcosts:
Physician Solutions . ................................ § 7224 § 6547 § 5467
Hospital Solutions. . ............................i.... 6,073 5,667 4,655

COTPOTALE . . o oot i 932 804 221
' ! $ 14,229 $ 13,018 $ 10,343
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As of December 31,
2005 2004
(in thousands)

Identifiable Assets:

Physician Solutions(1) ....... .. it $ 66,380 $ 63,611
Hospital Solutions(1) ... .ot e e 71,482 59,964
COIPOTALE . . oot e 101,661 79,116

$239,523  $202,691

(1) Identifiable assets in the Physician Solutions division include approximately $8,936 of goodwill for all
periods presented. Identifiable assets in the Hospital Solutions division include approximately $29,263
and $23,613 of goodwill as of December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

19. Subsequent Events (Unaudited)

On August 29, 2003, Per-Se and NDCHealth Corporation (“NDCHealth”) announced that they had
signed definitive agreements for the acquisition of NDCHealth, a leading provider of healthcare technology
and information solutions by Per-Se. The transaction was completed on January 6, 2006, The acquisition
included the NDCHealth physician, hospital and retail pharmacy businesses for total consideration of
approximately $665 million. The transaction resulted in consideration to NDCHealth’s shareholders of
$19.50 per share, with $14.05 paid in cash and $5.45 paid in Per-Se stock. As part of the transaction,
Wolters Kluwer, based in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, purchased the pharmaceutical information
management business from NDCHealth for $382 million in cash.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company secured financing in the form of a new senior credit
facility consisting of a $435 million Term Loan B and a $50 million revolving credit facility (“Senior
Credit Facility”). The Term Loan B bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.25% or Base Rate, as
defined by the Senior Credit Facility agreement, plus 1.25% and matures in seven years. The revolving
credit facility has an interest rate that varies between LIBOR plus 1.50% and LIBOR plus 2.50% or
between Base Rate plus 0.5% and Base Rate plus 1.50%, based on performance, and matures in five years.
The Company has incurred no borrowings under the revolving credit facility. All outstanding debt of
NDCHealth was retired in connection with the closing of the transaction.

Also on January 6, 2006, the Company entered into a four-year interest rate swap agreement, in order
to hedge against potential interest rate fluctuations resulting from the variable interest rate under the terms
of the new senior credit facility. Pursuant to the terms of the interest rate swap, the Company is obligated
to periodically pay an amount based on a fixed interest rate, and the Company will receive an amount
based on a variable rate. The variable rate is based on the three-month LIBOR rate available at the time.
By entering into the interest rate swap, the Company has effectively fixed the maximum interest rate that
the Company will pay on a portion of the $435 million outstanding under the Credit Facility at 4.76% per
annum plus the applicable spread, which is 225 basis points. The amount of the Credit Facility that is
covered by the swap is $125 million in years one and two, decreasing to $100 million in year three and
$75 million in year four. The interest rate swap will terminate on December 31, 2009, unless sooner
terminated pursuant to its terms.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had incurred approximately $3.8 million of transaction costs
related to the acquisition of NDCHealth that are included in other long-term assets in the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company will record the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly,
will allocate the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their ¢stimated fair
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market value at the date of acquisition. The Company has not yet obtained all the information related to
the fair value of acquired assets, contingent liabilities, total expenses related to the acquisition and
acquisition liabilities required to finalize the purchase price allocation.

In the first quarter of 2006, the Company will reassess'the valuation allowance recorded against its
deferred tax assets. This assessment will be based upon projections of taxable income for the next two
years including the operations of the businesses acquired in'the NCDHealth transaction. The Company
anticipates releasing an additional portion of its valuation al;lowance in the first quarter of 2006 as a result

of the assessment. \‘

For additional information, refer to the Company’s Forim S-4/A-2 filed on November 30, 2005.
|

20. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) ‘

! Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
(in thousands, except per share data)

2005 ‘,
Revenue .............. ... ... ... i $92,030  $93,300 $94,006 $93,382
Cost of services . ...l 60,037 62,470 63,089 62,776
Income from continuing operations .......... 9,431 7,546 9,823 10,155
Discontinued operations, net of tax. .......... — — — 414
Net iNCome . ...oovveeei e 9,431 7,546 9,823 10,569(1)
Net income per common share — basic from j

continuing operations .................... 0i31 0.25 0.33 0.34

Discontinued operations, net of tax, per

common share . ....................... — -— — 0.01
Net income per common share — basic. . . . . 0.‘31 0.25 0.33 0.35
Shares used to compute net income per \

common share — basic................. 30,294 29,773 29,994 30,277

Net income per common share — diluted from ‘
continuing operations .................... 0.29 0.23 0.29 0.29
Discontinued operations, net of tax, per ;
common share ........... ... .. .. ...... — -— — 0.01
|
Net income per common share — diluted . . . 029 0.23 0.29 0.30
Shares used to compute net income per ‘
common share — diluted ............... 32,552 32,410 33,792 34,792
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2004

Revenue ......... ... o
Cost of services . ...t
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . ..
Discontinued operations, net of tax...........
Net Income . .....covvniii i

Net income (loss) per common share — basic
from continuing operations. ...............

Discontinued operations, net of tax, per
common share . ............ ... .

Net income per common share — basic.......

Shares used to compute net income per
common share -~—basic...................

Net income (loss) per common share —
diluted from continuing operations .........

Discontinued operations, net of tax, per
common Share ...........o.oiinen.....

Net income per common share — diluted . . . ..

Shares used to compute net income per
common share -—diluted .................

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30

September 30 December 31

(in thousands, except per share data)

$84,601  $88,141

55,398
1,607
(580)
1,027

0.05

(0.02)
0.03

31,531
0.05

(0.02)
0.03

34,200

56,939
(1,387)
3,791
2,404

(0.04)

0.12
0.08

31,530
(0.04)

0.12
0.08

31,530

$90,641 $89,408
60,486 59,838
8,807 35,812
(107) 215
8,700 36,027(1)
0.29 1.18
— 0.01
0.29 1.19
30,088 30,238
0.27 1.10
— 0.01
0.27 1.11
32,168 32,511

Includes the release of $2.2 million and $28.1 million of the valuation allowance against the
Company’s deferred tax asset resulting in an income tax benefit that was recorded in the fourth

quarter of 2005 and 2004, respectively.

PER-SE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to
Beginning Costs and Other Balance at
Description of Year Expenses Accounts Deductions End of Year
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts......... $3,600 $ 891 — $(1,143) $3,348
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts......... $4,795 $ 603 — $(1,798) $3,600
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts......... $4,288 $1,159 — $ (652) $4,795
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Director since 2004

John W. Clay, Jr*
Former Vice Chairman of
SunTrust Banks, Inc.
Director since 2004

“Independent directors

Investor Information

For investor information, including
additional annual reports, 10-Ks, 10-Qs or
any other financial literature, please contact
Fer-Se Investor Relations at 877/73PER-SE
ar investors@per-se.com.

Corporate Headquarters
Fer-Se Technologies
1145 Sanctuary Parkway
Suite 200

Alpharetta, GA 30004
770/237-4300

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

Flaza Level

New York, NY 10038

800/937-5449

info@amstock.com

www.amstock.com

Inquiries regarding stock transfers, lost certificates
or address changes should be directed to
Armerican Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

Independent Registered
Fublic Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP

Suite 2800

600 Peachtree Street
Atlanta, GA 30308

Frincipal Outside Counsel
Alston & Bird LLP

One Atlantic Center

1201 West Peachtree Strest
Atlanta, GA 30309

King & Spalding LLP
1180 Peachtree Street
Atlanta, GA 30309

Per-Se on NASDAQ

Fer-Se Technologies' common stock trades
on The NASDAQ Stock Market®, under the
symbol PSTI.

For More Information
To learn more about Per-Se Technologies,
please visit www.per-se.com.

Market Prices

The prices in the table below represent the high
and low sales price for the Per-Se Technologies’
common stock as reported in the Nasdag Stock
Market for the periods presented. There were
6,314 stockholders of record of the Company's
common stock as of March 17, 2006.

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2005
First Quarter $ 16.25 $ 14.15
Second Quarter 21.55 14.94
Third Quarter 23.55 17.97
Fourth Quarter 2564 12.83
High low

Year Ended December 31, 2004
First Quarter $ 1826 $ 10.68

Second Quarter 14.90 8.10
Third Quarter 158.10 11.47
Fourth Quarter 16.35 12.89

Safe Harbor

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of federal
securities laws, including statements concerning
Per-Se's anticipated performance in 2006

and beyond. Such statements are subject to
numerous risks and uncertainties, which could
cause actual results to differ substantially from
those expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements. For information about such risks and
uncertainties, please read the discussion under
the caption “Forward-Looking Statements” in the
Form 10-K accompanying this Annual Report.
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